
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
Monday, January 29, 2024 - 6:00 PM

City Council Chambers 169 SW Coast Highway Newport , Oregon 97365 

All public meetings of the City of Newport will be held in the City Council Chambers of the
Newport City Hall, 169 SW Coast Highway, Newport. The meeting location is accessible to
persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter, or for other accommodations, should be
made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Erik Glover, City Recorder at
541.574.0613, or e.glover@newportoregon.gov.

All meetings are live-streamed at https://newportoregon.gov, and broadcast on Charter Channel
190. Anyone wishing to provide written public comment should send the comment to
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. Public comment must be received four hours prior to a
scheduled meeting. For example, if a meeting is to be held at 3:00 P.M., the deadline to submit
written comment is 11:00 A.M. If a meeting is scheduled to occur before noon, the written
comment must be submitted by 5:00 P.M. the previous day.
To provide virtual public comment during a city meeting, a request must be made to the meeting
staff at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting. This provision applies only to public
comment and presenters outside the area and/or unable to physically attend an in person
meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

1

mailto:e.glover@newportoregon.gov
https://newportoregon.gov/


4.  CONSENT CALENDAR

4.A Acknowledge Receipt  of  Links to Video/Audio Files for Minutes
Video Links for Minutes to be approved 1-29-2024.pdf

4.B Approval of  City Council Meet ing and Work Session Minutes
December_21__2023_Special_City_Council_Meeting_Minutes_Final.pdf
01-02-2024_City_Council_Minutes-final.pdf
01-02-2024_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf
01-08-2024_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf

4.C Receipt  of  Approved Committee Minutes
60 Plus Minutes 10-23-23.pdf
60 Plus Minutes-11-20-23.pdf
9-12-2023_BPAC_Minutes__Approved_12.19.23_.pdf
AC_March_15_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_April_12_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_July_12_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_May_10_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_August_9_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_September_13_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_November_8_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_January_10_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_May_23_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_June_13_2023_minutes-FInal.pdf
AC_March_14_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_July_11_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_August_8_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
AC_September_12_2023_minutes.pdf
AC_November_14_2023_minutes-_Final.pdf
AC_December_12_2023_minutes_Final.pdf
PC_Reg_Session_12-11-23_Approved_01-08-24.pdf
PC_Work_Session_12-11-23_Approved_01-08-2024.pdf

4.D Ratify the Mayor's Reappointment of  Jim Seavers to the Airport  Committee for
a term expiring December 31, 2025.
Staff_Report_-_Committee_Appointment-_Airport.pdf

4.E Ratify the Mayor's Reappointment of  Dietmar Goebel and Cynthia Jacobi to
the Audit  committee for Terms Expiring December 31, 2025.

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398538/Video_Links_for_Minutes_to_be_approved_1-29-2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398860/December_21__2023_Special_City_Council_Meeting_Minutes_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398861/01-02-2024_City_Council_Minutes-final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398862/01-02-2024_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398863/01-08-2024_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398642/60_Plus_Minutes_10-23-23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398643/60_Plus_Minutes-11-20-23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398871/9-12-2023_BPAC_Minutes__Approved_12.19.23_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398882/AC_March_15_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398873/AC_April_12_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398879/AC_July_12_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398883/AC_May_10_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398875/AC_August_9_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398888/AC_September_13_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398885/AC_November_8_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398877/AC_January_10_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398884/AC_May_23_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398880/AC_June_13_2023_minutes-FInal.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398881/AC_March_14_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398878/AC_July_11_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398874/AC_August_8_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398887/AC_September_12_2023_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398886/AC_November_14_2023_minutes-_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398876/AC_December_12_2023_minutes_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398889/PC_Reg_Session_12-11-23_Approved_01-08-24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398890/PC_Work_Session_12-11-23_Approved_01-08-2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398899/Staff_Report_-_Committee_Appointment-_Airport.pdf


Staff_Report_-_Committee_Appointment-_Audit.pdf

5.  PUBLIC HEARING

5.A Public Hearing and Potent ial Adopt ion of  Ordinance No. 2218, and Ordinance
Banning the Sale or Use of  Fireworks in the City of  Newport .
City Manager's Report.pdf
Council_Staff_Report_Fireworks_ban_Public_Hearing_ordinance_1-16-24.pdf
Fireworks_-_Sales___Use_-_by_Jurisdiction__12.22.23_.pdf
Lincoln County Ordinance 532 Fireworks amendments 1_3_24.pdf
Ord._No._2218_-_Fireworks_-_amending_NMC_8.20.020_-_final_draft_-track_changes.
pdf
Ord._No._2218_-_Fireworks_-_amending_NMC_8.20.020_-_final_draft_-clean_copy.pdf
Trout_Public_Comment.pdf
K Kelly Fireworks Comment .pdf
Walser-Clark Comment Fireworks.pdf
Wilson Fireworks Comment.png

5.B Public Hearing and Considerat ion of  Changes to Chapter 4.15 Vehicles for
Hire, to Incorporate Provisions for Temporary Taxi Drivers for the Seafood and
Wine Fest ival
City Manager's Report.pdf
NMC_ch._4.15_modified_1-11-24_-_track_changes.pdf

5.C Public Hearing and Potent ial Adopt ion of  Resolut ion No. 4007, a Resolut ion
Establishing Fees for Payment in Lieu of  Providing Off-Street Parking Spaces
for New Developments in Metered Areas
City Manager's Report.pdf
Staff_Report1.pdf
Resolution No. 4007 - In Lieu Fees_updated.pdf
Ord_2215_Signed.pdf
Special_Parking_Area_Map.pdf

5.D Public Hearing and Potent ial Adopt ion of  Resolut ion No. 4004, a Resolut ion
Providing for a Supplemental Budget and Making Appropriat ions/Total
Requirement changes for Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024
City Manager's Report.pdf
Staff Report for Resolution 4004 City Supplemental Budget - January 29, 2024.pdf
Resolution No. 4004 City Supplemental Budget January 29, 2024.pdf
Resolution No. 4004 - Attachment A.pdf

5.E Public Hearing and Potent ial Adopt ion of  Resolut ion No. 4009, a Resolut ion

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398900/Staff_Report_-_Committee_Appointment-_Audit.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398917/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398908/Council_Staff_Report_Fireworks_ban_Public_Hearing_ordinance_1-16-24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398909/Fireworks_-_Sales___Use_-_by_Jurisdiction__12.22.23_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398650/Lincoln_County_Ordinance_532_Fireworks_amendments_1_3_24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398911/Ord._No._2218_-_Fireworks_-_amending_NMC_8.20.020_-_final_draft_-track_changes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398911/Ord._No._2218_-_Fireworks_-_amending_NMC_8.20.020_-_final_draft_-track_changes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398910/Ord._No._2218_-_Fireworks_-_amending_NMC_8.20.020_-_final_draft_-clean_copy.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398913/Trout_Public_Comment.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401671/K_Kelly_Fireworks_Comment_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401672/Walser-Clark_Comment_Fireworks.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401673/Wilson_Fireworks_Comment.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398956/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398957/NMC_ch._4.15_modified_1-11-24_-_track_changes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399005/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399012/Staff_Report1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401459/Resolution_No._4007_-_In_Lieu_Fees_updated.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399006/Ord_2215_Signed.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399011/Special_Parking_Area_Map.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399023/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401506/Staff_Report_for_Resolution_4004_City_Supplemental_Budget_-_January_29__2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401507/Resolution_No._4004_City_Supplemental_Budget_January_29__2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401508/Resolution_No._4004_-_Attachment_A.pdf


Adopting a Posit ion Prof ile as Standards, Criteria, and Policy Direct ives to be
Used in Hiring a City Manager and Allowing for Public Comment
City Manager's Report.pdf
Res 4009 Final.pdf
Newport_CM_Position_and_Hiring_Cover_Page_vF.pdf

6.  COMMUNICATIONS

6.A From Oregon Cascade West Council of  Governments Appointment to the
CWACT 
City Manager's Report 
CWACT Member Nomination Fillable Form.pdf
CWACT email.pdf

6.B From the Airport  Committee - Land Lease for Hangar Site D-3 to Michael and
Karyn Vest
City Manager's Report.pdf
Staff_Report_Michael___Karyn_Vest_D3_lease.pdf
Agreement_XXXX_Vest_D3.pdf
South_Hangar_Site_2020.pdf
agreement_3415_5D_Holdings_LLC_D3.pdf

7.  CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

7.A Report  and Possible Act ion of  Modif icat ion to the City of  Newport 's Def ined
Contribut ion Ret irement Program
City Manager's Report.pdf

7.B Considerat ion of  an Amendment to the Safe Routes to School
Intergovernmental Grant Agreement for Bike and Pedestrian Improvements
Along NE Harney Street
City Manager's Report.pdf
Staff Report.pdf
SRTS23-12_City_of_Newport_Amd_1.pdf
Newport_Request_for_Change_Order_No._1.pdf
SRTS23-12_City_of_Newport_fully_executed.pdf
Hwy_20_and_Harney_Base_Map__7-28-2022_.pdf

7.C Considerat ion of  Adopt ion Resolut ion 4008, a Resolut ion Recert ifying a Water
Supply Management and Conservat ion Work Group
City Manager's Report.pdf

4

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399032/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401412/Res_4009_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399033/Newport_CM_Position_and_Hiring_Cover_Page_vF.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401044/Comm-Apointment_of_Members_to_CWACT.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401092/CWACT_Member_Nomination_Fillable_Form.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401095/CWACT_email.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399055/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399057/Staff_Report_Michael___Karyn_Vest_D3_lease.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399054/Agreement_XXXX_Vest_D3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399056/South_Hangar_Site_2020.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399053/agreement_3415_5D_Holdings_LLC_D3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399096/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399097/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399105/Staff_Report3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399100/SRTS23-12_City_of_Newport_Amd_1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399099/Newport_Request_for_Change_Order_No._1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399104/SRTS23-12_City_of_Newport_fully_executed.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399098/Hwy_20_and_Harney_Base_Map__7-28-2022_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399116/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf


Res 4008.pdf
Resolution_3949_Signed_EG_5252022_Final.pdf

7.D Authorizat ion of  an Addit ional Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Posit ion for Finance
City Manager's Report.pdf
Staff_Report_Accounting_Technician_-_Receivables_2024.pdf
Accounting_Technician_Receivables_Final_2023.pdf

7.E Draft  Policy for Government Speech
City Manager's Report.pdf
Resolution.pdf
Email_from_Allen_Justia_Government_Speech_Link.pdf

7.F Authorizat ion of  Travel to Washington D.C. for Council Members for Meetings
on the Big Creek Dam
City Manager's Report 

8.  LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD

8.A Award of  Bid for the Water Treatment Plant Excess Recirculat ion (XR)
Upgrade/Storage Building Project  to Emory and Sons Construct ion Group,
LLC, in the Amount of  $568,940
City Manager's Report.pdf
WTP XR Upgrades - Staff Report for Construction.pdf

8.B Authorizat ion of  Funding and the Purchase of  a Storage Area Network (SAN)
from Dell [RE]DESIGN in the Amount of  $466,810 through the Nat ional
Cooperat ive Purchase Alliance (NCPA)Number C000000985001
City Manager's Report 
SAN 2024 Report.pdf
City of Newport x [re]DESIGN x Dell - Data Center Modernization 12.15.23.pdf
City of Newport - Data Center Modernization - 12.18.23 (3).pdf

9.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

10.  ADJOURNMENT

5

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401421/Res_4008.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399118/Resolution_3949_Signed_EG_5252022_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399124/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399125/Staff_Report_Accounting_Technician_-_Receivables_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399123/Accounting_Technician_Receivables_Final_2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399128/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399130/Resolution.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399129/Email_from_Allen_Justia_Government_Speech_Link.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401362/Washington_DC_Travel.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2399156/City_Manager_s_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2408933/WTP_XR_Upgrades_-_Staff_Report_for_Construction.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401477/LCRB-_SAN_Network_Upgrade.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401475/SAN_2024_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2398648/City_of_Newport_x__re_DESIGN_x_Dell_-_Data_Center_Modernization_12.15.23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2401474/City_of_Newport_-_Data_Center_Modernization_-_12.18.23__3_.pdf


Video Links for Minutes to be Approved 1-16-2024 

 
Special City Council Minute 12/21/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1177 

 

City Council Work Session Minutes 1/02/24 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1178 

 

City Council Minutes 1/02/24 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1180 

 

City Council Work Session Minutes 1/08/24 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1181 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 3/15/22 

https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/779 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 4/12/22 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/795 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 5/10/22 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/815 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 7/12/22 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1166 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 8/09/22 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/862 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 9/13/22 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/881 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 11/08/22 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/911 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 1/10/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/954 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 3/14/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/996 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 5/23/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1046 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 6/13/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1055 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 7/11/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1070 

6

https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1177
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1178
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1180
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1181
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/779
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/795
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/815
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1166
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/862
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/881
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/911
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/954
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/996
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1046
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1055
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1070


Video Links for Minutes to be Approved 1-16-2024 

 
 

Airport Committee Minutes 8/08/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1085 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 9/12/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1105 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 11/14/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1150 

 

Airport Committee Minutes 12/12/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1169 

 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Minutes 9/12/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1106 

 

Planning Commission Regular Session Minutes12/11/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1168 

 

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 12/11/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1167 

 

60+ Committee Minutes 10/23/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1131 

 

60+ Committee Minutes 11/27/23 

 https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1159 

 

7

https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1085
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1105
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1150
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1169
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1106
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1168
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1167
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1131
https://thecityofnewport.granicus.com/player/clip/1159


 

 

Newport City Council Special Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
December 21, 2023 

City of Newport  
Special City Council Minutes 

December 21, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 5:02 P.M.     Time End: 5:23 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan  Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

Councilor Emond (Zoom) Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder  

Councilor Botello  Jeanne Tejada, Deputy City Recorder 

Councilor Goebel  Steve Baugher, Finance Director  

Councilor Hall Chris Beatty, Acting City Engineer  

Councilor Parker David Allen, City Attorney 

Councilor Jacobi (Zoom)  

  

 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

SPECIAL MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
 

Roll Call 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 
 
Glover conducted roll call.  
 
Council, staff and the audience participated in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  

REPORT AND APPROPRIATION ADDITION TO 
FUNDING FOR REPAIRS FOR THE OCEANVIEW 
DRIVE SLIDE UNDER LIMITED EMERGENCY 
2023-2 
 
City Manager Report 

 

 

 

Glover introduced this topic and Nebel presented the 

written City Manager Report.    

Beatty reported that a 24” storm sewer was placed 

under the road, to replace the very deep and broken 

storm sewer which was located, and the rock slope 

armoring was being completed.  

Beatty advised of two slide locations, and reported the 

current line is truss pipe which is old, and not been 

used for quite some time.  He advised a second slide 

took place slightly north of the current site, but the 

sanitary sewer is being bypassed via pump to a 2nd 

manhole, due to slide breaking the pipe, and then the 

repair area breaking again during a 2nd slide.  The 

original plan was to splice in a repair section, but due 

to the number of breaks, and the age of the pipe it was 

now determined it was in the best interest of the City to 

replace the entire run of sanitary sewer.   He added 

8



 

 

Newport City Council Special Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
December 21, 2023 

the road/slope armoring had an additional benefit of 

adding a 2-foot shoulder increasing safety.  

It was referenced an additional $100,000 was needed 

to come from reserves in the General fund, and the 

contract itself was designed to be NTE/not to exceed 

$100,000, for a total of $250,000,  including previous 

appropriation.  

Brief discussion was held on the contract NTE amount. 

It was indicated the slope armoring work and manhole 

work would be done soon, and paving would take 

place when weather permitted.  

MOTION made by Hall, seconded by Goebel to 

appropriate $100,000 from the General Fund Reserve 

to complete sanitary sewer work for emergency 

repairs. MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

Beatty advised that the public works crew has been 

doing an exceptional job with assistance on this 

project. 

LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD 
 
Possible Action as Local Contract Review Board 
 
 

 

Kaplan opened the LCRB at 5:21 PM.  

MOTION by Goebel seconded by Hall move to 
authorize an increase in contracted amount with 
Construction- Building- Road, LLC (CBR) for repairs to 
the storm sewer and sanitary sewer for the Oceanview 
Drive emergency repair project from an amount of 
$150,000 to a new not-to-exceed amount of  
$250,000, subject to review by the City Attorney 
MOTION carried in unanimous voice vote. 
 
Kaplan closed the LCRB at 5:23 P.M.  

ADJOURNMENT Meeting adjourned at 5:23 P.M.  

 
       

9



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 1 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

City of Newport  
City Council Minutes 

January 2, 2024 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 6:07 P.M.     Time End: 8:30 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

Councilor Emond Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 

Councilor Botello Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 

Councilor Goebel Jason Malloy, Police Chief  

Councilor Hall Steve Baugher, Finance Director  

Councilor Parker Rob Murphy, Fire Chief 

Councilor Jacobi David Allen, City Attorney (via Zoom)  

  

 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Roll Call 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 
 
Council, staff and the audience participated in the 
pledge of allegiance.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Trisha Geer 
 

 

Submitted written public comment which spoke to 
a parking related matter, a fee/fine that occurred 
with a privately owned/business parking area and 
the signage posted in the private businesses 
parking area.  

ELECTION OF COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

City Manager’s Report 

 
 

 
Nominations were held. 
 
MOTION was made by Emond, seconded by 
Botello to appoint Councilor Hall as Council 
President. MOTION carried unanimously in a 
voice vote.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Acknowledge Receipt of Links to Video/Audio Files 
for Minutes  
 
Approve Minutes of the Work Session and Regular 
Session of December 4, 2023. 
 
Approve Minutes of the Executive Session of 
December 4, 2023. 
 
Reappointments to Various Committees 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Bryn 
McCornack, Terrie Murphy, Ann Way, and Shelly 
Thompson to the 60+ Advisory Committee for 
Terms Expiring December 31, 2025. 

 
Glover read the consent calendar.  
MOTION made by Jacobi, seconded by Hall to 
approve the Consent Calendar.  MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 

10



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 2 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Jeff Bertuleit, 
Ralph Busby, and Mark Watkins to the Airport 
Committee for Terms Expiring December 31, 2025. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Michael Rioux 
to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
for Term Expiring December 31, 2025. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Arjen 
Sundman to the Budget Committee for Term 
Expiring December 31, 2026. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Ian Clayman, 
Camille Fournier, Janell Goplen, Eric Seil, and 
Joshua Conrad to the Destination Newport 
Committee for Terms Expiring December 31, 2024. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Karen Apland 
and Gianna Martella to the Library Board for Terms 
Expiring December 31, 2027. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Bill Branigan, 
Janell Goplan, and Doretta Smith to the Parking 
Advisory Committee for Terms Expiring December 
31, 2025. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Charles 
Brown, Eva Gonzalez-Muñoz, Charles Mitchell, 
Shelley Moore, and Nancy Steinberg to the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Committee for Terms 
Expiring December 31, 2025. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Gary East 
and Braulio Escobar to the Planning Commission 
for Terms Expiring December 31, 2026. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Esmeralda 
Hernandez to the Police Advisory Committee for 
Term Expiring December 31, 2025. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Anita 
Albrecht, Chasse Davidson, Mary Peterson, and 
Catherine Rickbone to the Public Arts Committee 
for Terms Expiring December 31, 2027. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Braulio 
Escobar to the Retirement Board of Trustees for 
Term Expiring December 31, 2027. 
 
Ratify the Mayor’s Reappointment of Paula 
Miranda to the Vision 2040 Advisory Committee for 
Term Expiring December 31, 2028. 
 
Receipt of Approved Committee Minutes 
Consisting of:  

11



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 3 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

Parking Advisory Committee Minutes of 11-15-23 
Planning Commission Work Session Minutes of 11-
13-23 
Planning Commission Minutes of 11-13-23 
   

PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Public Hearing an Ordinance Amending No. 2218, an 
Ordinance Amending Section 8.20.020 of the Newport 
Municipal Code Related to Prohibiting the Sale and Use 
of Fireworks in the City of Newport.  

 
a. CITY MANAGER REPORT – Spencer Nebel  

 
 
 

b. Public Hearing open 
 

c. Public Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager’s Report.   
 
Chief Murphy was present to speak. 
 
Kaplan opened the public hearing at 6:18pm. 
 
Michael Kohl, spoke reporting he works with TNT 
Fireworks and lives in Silverton.  He wanted to 
know if they plan to ban all fireworks or just the 
illegal ones.  He stated that they sell “safe and 
sane fireworks”.  This means they go up 15 feet 
and 12 feet in either direction, so a 24-foot radius.  
He questioned if fireworks are banned, how does 
the city plan to enforce it?  Advised he doesn’t 
think that enforcement is currently happening for 
illegal fireworks.  Also shared that tourists bring 
their own fireworks anyway. 
 
Jason Simpson, area manager for TNT Fireworks.  
He lives in Eugene, OR.  Shared he wanted to 
bring to the Council’s attention that there are 
unintended consequences when they ban 
fireworks.  He stated a metrics-based ban makes 
sense.  He stated that the Corvallis Fire Chief 
wrote a letter during the discussion of the same 
agenda item in Corvallis, and advised Eugene 
should be used as a lesson on bans.  Eugene did 
not write fines for possessing fireworks, less 
fireworks were turned in, there were more firework 
related fires, and more illegal fireworks were 
bought and discharged.  The ban in Eugene made 
things worse for people and they made law 
abiding citizens and families break the law if they 
chose to celebrate.  He stated he is thankful they 
the Council will look through the literature and 
handouts, there are some sane points.  Simpson 
also pointed out that folks who do fireworks 
illegally don’t dispose of them properly. 
 
Paul Marrs, Newport.  Spoke sharing he has 
listened to council’s previous discussions and he 
wonders if council knows the difference between 
legal and illegal fireworks.  Council has only 
discussed characteristics of illegal fireworks.  He 

12



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 4 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
d. Public Hearing closed 
 
e. Council Decision 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stated there has not been a fire from fireworks; 
and there has not been one complaint involving 
illegal fireworks by families in Newport; why is the 
council trying to stop families from having good, 
safe fun?  He pointed out that more than one or 
more of the Council have floated the idea of 
making possession of a firework a criminal 
activity.  If someone passing through was stopped 
by police, they would have to be cited for it. 
 
Glover noted a written comment from Gary 
Lahman which is attached to the packet. 
 
 
Kaplan closed hearing at 6:27pm. 
 
Hall questioned what percentage of funds from the 
501c3, stay in Newport?  Kohl stated in the last 10 
years Grace Wins Haven has sold in Walmart and 
Fred Meyer property; they get 20% of the gross 
profit to run it.  It all stayed within the community.  
Right now, things are on hold until they know if it 
will be shut down.  Simpson stated that 20-40% of 
the profit stays with the nonprofit, depending upon 
land ownership, etc. versus if TNT pay’s to lease a 
spot.   
 
Hall also inquired about the “Nail Em” app.  It was 
reported the app can be used by people to take 
the burden off of police and fire, but oftentimes 
folks obtain illegal fireworks if they cannot get 
local ones.  
 
Chief Murphy presented the staff report.   
 
Emond asked if there was any coordination 
between Newport and other cities/ Lincoln county 
on how to handle this?  Murphy stated that 
regional agencies have Mutual Aid Agreements; 
the intention is to augment response around July 
4th. 
 
Hall inquired if there was a way to get an example 
of what is an illegal vs. legal firework?  Murphy 
reported that the Fire Department could do a 
demonstration as the fire agency, also the State 
Fire Marshall has sheets on legal and illegal 
fireworks.  Simpson reported he can arrange legal 
or illegal examples for demonstration; 
tntfireworks.com also has examples. 
 
Jacobi inquired about the fire south of Waldport 
and an estimated cost to fight it.  Murphy stated 
that the fire started just before July 4th by illegal 
fireworks on the beach, which quickly spread to 
brush, then spread into thicker brush and 

13



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 5 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
. 
 
 
 
 
 

threatened to jump the highway into a dozen 
homes.  It required a multi-agency response, 
about ¾ of the county; PUD, ODF, Sherriff, USFS 
all responded.  About 50 personnel were on scene 
for 3-4 hours.  He estimated it cost in the low five 
figures to respond to it.  He stated he was not sure 
how much it cost ODF or USFS. 
 
Emond questioned who the largest supplier of 
illegal fireworks is?  It was reported many are 
bought over the border in Washington, where they 
are legal. 
 
Goebel stated he feels this ordinance takes away 
from people supporting the 4th of July.  He stated 
that banning fireworks won’t stop them, people 
can order them online.  Goebel also pointed out 
that the ordinance is not enforceable anyway due 
to lack of personnel. 
 
Kaplan reported that the Council is not taking 
action on approving the ordinance tonight, but he 
wanted to know if council wants the ordinance 
drawn up to discuss it? 
 
Nebel stated that Hall suggested a demonstration. 
We have a Work Session on January 8, maybe 
possible to do something before or after the Work 
Session if Council is interested. 
 
Allen, attending through Zoom, pointed out that 
the county had put together the 1st draft of the 
ordinance.  The county had in their ordinance to 
prohibit the possession of legal fireworks, and if 
the county confiscates them, they will charge the 
owner any costs on it.  He shared he didn’t hear 
the council wanting anything along those lines, 
just about the use and sale of fireworks.  Allen 
questioned if the council is considering any 
changes including those items?  
 
Council held discussion and expressed varied 
thoughts on the subject. 
 
MOTION made by Jacobi, seconded by Hall to 
move to direct staff to finalize an ordinance 
prohibiting the sale and use of fireworks in  
the City of Newport, and schedule a public hearing 
and possible adoption of that ordinance for the 
City Council meeting to be held on Tuesday, 
January 16, 2024.  MOTION carried, with Goebel 
opposing the motion. 
 
It was referenced draft would be available for 
January 16, 2024 Council meeting. 
 

14



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 6 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Ordinance No. 
2216, an Ordinance Amending Title XIV of the Newport 
Municipal Code to Implement Land Use Mandates from 
the 2023 Oregon Legislative Session 

 
a. CITY MANAGER REPORT – Spencer Nebel  
 
 
 
 
 
b. Public Hearing open 
 
c. Public Comment 
 
d. Public Hearing closed 

 

 
e. Council Decision 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Hearing and Possible Action to Consider a 
Purchase and Sale Agreement for Tideland Property to 
the Yakona Nature Preserve and Placed in 
Conservancy. 
a. CITY MANAGER REPORT – Spencer Nebel  
 

b. Public Hearing open 
 

 
c. Public Comment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager Report.   
 
Tokos summarized the changes.  Tokos reported 
the family definition has been curtailed over time 
regarding acceptable residential occupancy. 
 
Kaplan opened the Public Hearing 7:54pm. 
 
None was heard.  
 
Kaplan closed the Public Hearing at 7:55pm.   
 
 
MOTION made by Emond, seconded by Botello to 
place the final passage and read by title only, 
Ordinance No. 2216, An Ordinance Amending 
chapters: 14.01, 14.03, 14.09, 14.15, 14.44, 
14.48, and 14.52 of Title XIV if the Newport 
Municipal code to Implement Land Use Mandates 
from the 2023 Oregon Legislative Session. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
Glover read by title only, and conducted a roll call 
voice vote. MOTION carried, with all voting in 
favor.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nebel read the City Manager’s Report, advising 
this was the 2nd public hearing.  
 
Kaplan opened the Public Hearing at 7:13pm. 
 
 
William Barton, cofounder of Yakona Nature 
Preserve, spoke and he requested that this matter 
proceed. 
 
Bryan Arnold, spoke reporting he co-owns 
Tideland Property that is adjacent to the Yakona 
Preserve, he owns a small oyster farm next to the 
preserve.  Advised his father submitted written 
public comment.  It is only a partial draft 
agreement right now, he requests the decision be 
delayed until the deeds are publicly available and 
can be reviewed by the public.  The second 
recommendation deals with Exhibit C, he stated 
this is outside the scope of the hearing, so he 
would like it re-written so it applies to the sale, it 

15



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 7 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 

d. Public Hearing closed 
 

 
e. Council Decision 
 

currently has a lot of language which is not 
relevant to this. 
 
It was noted a written letter from Mark Arnold was 
received and attached to the agenda item.  
 
Kaplan closed the Public Hearing at 7:17pm. 
 
Parker inquired about property deeds.  Nebel 
explained the properties were transferred to City 
with warranty deed.  Tokos reported the City 
would transfer to Yakona via bargain and sale 
deed, thus not warrantying them.  
 
Goebel questioned if Barton owned all the 
property which abuts the property in 
consideration.  Barton responded that he thinks he 
does.  It was stated that Bonnie and Willy Emery 
own a lot of it.  Tokos stated that all 4 tidelands 
abut property of the Yakona Preserve. 
 
MOTION made by Parker, seconded by Goebel to 
move to approve the terms of the purchase and 
sale agreement to sell four tideland  
parcels which are collectively 9.23 acres 
described in a warranty deed recorded in Book  
311, Page 119 of the Lincoln County Book of 
Records for $5,870 to the Yakona Nature  
Preserve and placed into conservancy, subject to 
the review and approval of final  
documents by the City Attorney.  MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
Allen requested that Barton provide any addition 
changes to him and Tokos.  He added that any 
substantive changes would have to go back to 
Council. 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
From the Lincoln County Homeless Advisory Board - 
Resolution No. 4006 A Resolution Supporting the 
Recommendation for Addressing Homelessness in 
Lincoln County and Continuation of Lincoln County 
Homeless Response Advisory Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Glover introduced the topic and Nebel read the 
City Manager’s Report. 
 
Ernest Stephens, presented via Zoom. He 
reported he primarily was in attendance to answer 
questions. Stephens reported that this initiative 
has been coordinated very well between all 
Lincoln County cities. 
 
Kaplan stated he is a major proponent of this 
initiative.  
 
MOTION made by Jacobi, seconded by Emond to 
move to adopt Resolution No. 4006, a resolution 
supporting the strategy outlined in the  

16



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 8 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

From the Audit Committee - Acceptance of the 
Independent Auditors Report from Aldrich CPA's + 
Advisors, LLP of the Comprehensive Financial Report 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2023, and adoption of 
Resolution No. 4002, a Resolution Providing for a 
Corrective Action Plan From the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
Audit. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

From the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA) Announcing that the City of Newport has been 
Awarded the GFOA Certificate of Achievement Which is 
the Highest Form of Recognition in the Area of 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022. 

 
 
 

 
 

report from Morant McLeod including the 
continuation of the Lincoln County Homeless  
Response Advisory Board as a tool to implement 
the recommendations outlined in this  
plan.  MOTION carried unanimously in a voice 
vote. 
 
 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager Report.  
 
 He stated that this is the first time the audit has 
been done on time in several years now, which is 
quite good and is also due to the quick work of our 
auditors.  Nebel reported Newport is lucky to have 
great auditors, as many Oregon cities are 
struggling to get an auditor.  
 
Kaplan complimented Baugher for his great work 
to get this done given the staff shortages and it is 
appreciated. 
 
MOTION made by Goebel, seconded by Jacobi to 
move to accept the independent audit by Aldrich 
CPAs + Advisors, LLP, of the annual  
comprehensive financial report for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
MOTION made by Goebel, seconded by Emond 
move to approve Resolution No. 4002, a 
resolution adopting a corrective plan of action  
for the findings related to the audit of the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2023 and acceptance  
of the report and adoption of Resolution No. 4002, 
a resolution providing for a corrective  
action plan schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards report compliance of section  
Fiscal Year 2022 – 2023 audit. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 
 
Nebel reported that not many cities the size of 
Newport receive this, but thanks to Baugher’s 
efforts Newport has.  
 
Baugher shared that the auditors help staff 
develop financial statements, and that Mike 
Murzynsky also put a lot of effort into this initiative.  
 
 
 
 
 

17



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 9 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

From the Quality Review Team (Mayor and Council 
President) - Evaluation of the City Manager and City 
Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

From the Quality Review Team (Mayor and Council 
President) - Compensation for the City Manager and 
City Attorney. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Goebel and Kaplan advised they met with the 
whole council in two executive committee 
meetings to get everyone’s input.  Shared overall 
hey are very pleased and consider City Attorney 
and City Manager job performances above 
expectations.  
 
It was shared they established some goals for the 
City Attorney; tracking legal issues, timely review 
of contract and ordinances, assist council with 
City Manager search, update utility codes, 2022 
public contracting rules, updating telecom 
franchises, and organize reviews of previous 
attorney legal files.   
 
Kaplan stated it was a little reason to evaluate 
Nebel as he is at the end of his career here.  
Reported goals were set to guide new manager 
when they are hired come in. It was also reported 
that there are certain special projects which need 
to get done and Nebel having the opportunity prior 
to fully retiring to finish some catchup work would 
be great.  
 
Nebel stated it is hard to believe it has been 10 
years for him here.  He stated the hiring panel 
asked him when he was hired how long and he 
said 10 years, and that 10 years is over this 
coming July.  It has been a great opportunity, lots 
of different council members; he appreciates all 
the dedication and work they all put into working 
with him to move the community forward.  It will be 
an exciting time for the community. 
 
MOTION made by Emond, seconded by Parker to 
move to accept the report from the quality review 
team regarding the evaluation  
summaries for the City Manager and City 
Attorney.  MOTION carried unanimously by voice 
vote. 
 
 
 
Kaplan stated that Nebel is asking to be continued 
at his current compensation, which the Review 
Team thought was ok.  The Quality Review Team 
is recommending Nebel’s compensation be 
continued, and we agree to have Nebel continue 
on a contract basis, after we hire the next City 
Manager, for special projects for the city. 
 
The review team noted working with Allen.  He 
was hired four years ago.  He was new at being a 
City Attorney at that time and asked for less than 
the previous City Attorney was being paid.  It 
hasn’t been adjusted for four years.  There has 

18



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 10 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
From Spencer Nebel - Request to Carry Over 40 Hours 
of Vacation Time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

only been a 10% increase those four years.  The 
review team recommends adjusting Allen’s salary 
by 10% from $122,000 to $135,000. 
 
Brief discussion was held on compensations, it 
was reference Allen’s 10% increase was 
appropriate, but a performance increase was also 
necessary for Nebel as the City needs to be 
competitive to hire a new manager. It was 
reported this item would be brought forward for 
future Council consideration.  
 
MOTION made by Jacobi, seconded by Emond to 
move to adjust the annual compensation for the 
City Attorney from $122,514 to $135,000  
($11,250/month) effective January 1, 2024.  
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
Nebel reported that he was fine with his current 
$159,000 compensation. The advertised range for 
the new recruitment may be more than he 
currently receives, but he doesn’t care about that. 
He advised ensuring he receives compensation 
through September 2024 is his biggest concern. 
Hall reported it was important to compensate the 
manager, and to illustrate that the Council wants 
the qualified and competent manager.  
 
MOTION was made by Hall, seconded by Goebel  
move to request that the Mayor and Council 
President discuss a proposed contract with City 
Manager, Spencer Nebel, for Council review, and 
authorize to initiate professional services following 
his retirement as city manager through September 
30, 2024, to address various projects and to 
facilitate the transition of city managers. MOTION 
carried unanimously.  
 
 
Nebel explained the city policy allowing 
employees to carry over 240 hours, advising he 
can award 40 hours cash out or carryover for City 
staff Nebel is requesting this be carried over as he 
is taking a week off this month and next month. 
 
MOTION made by Goebel, seconded by Botello to 
move to authorize a carryover of an additional 40 
hours of vacation time over the 240  
annual cap for City Manager, Spencer Nebel, into 
the 2024 calendar year.  MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

2023 Annual Report 

 
 
Nebel summarized key items.  Kaplan 
encouraged everyone to read this ahead of goals. 

19



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 11 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 

 

Consideration and Potential Approval of an 

Intergovernmental Partnership Agreement with the 

Oregon Building Codes Division for use of the e-Permit 

System 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report on Referring to the Voters an Ordinance for a 

Street Improvement measure to Increase the Vehicle 

Fuel Tax to Five Cents per Gallon Year-Round. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report on the Status of Repairs for the Oceanview 

Drive Slide as Completed Under Limited Emergency 

2023 - 2. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Goebel questioned if City is going to full e-
permitting.  Tokos responded it is happening 
across the state, and it will all be logged online. 
But we can still accept hard copies.  Tokos 
reported that all jurisdictions in Oregon have to be 
on permitting by January 1, 2025. 
 
MOTION made by Hall, seconded by Emond to 
move to approve an intergovernmental 
partnership agreement with the State of Oregon  
through the Business of Consumer and Business 
Services Building Codes Division for  
use of the ePermit system and related services 
and authorize the Mayor to sign the  
document upon final review by the City Attorney.  
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
Nebel presented the City Manager Report.  He 
stated we would want to put together the 
information for general mailing, before we get 
hamstrung on regulations with stuff on the ballot. 
 
It was noted in discussion it was imperative to be 
transparent on this effort, and clarify this was 
replacing the existing gas tax, it would not be a 
new one 
.  
Further discussion clarified that Newport has the 
cheapest fuel of any regional City, despite having 
an existing gas tax.  It was noted the gas tax 
shares the burden of the solution to roads with 
anyone who comes into the community and uses 
the roads, not just taxpayers.  
 
 MOTION made by Jacobi, seconded by Parker to 
move forward in directing the administration and 
city attorney to finalize documents to place this 
item on the May 21 ballot.  MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
Beatty spoked indicating that portions of the 
project included a 24” storm line, 12” storm line 
continuing toward Walmart, 8” sanitary sewer on 
Oceanview, rock armoring on the slope, base rock 
for pavement.  Stated that there was an approved 
budget increase of $100,000 at the Special 
Meeting December 21, 2023 for an estimated 
$250,000 full budget total, of which $243,000 was 
estimated to be full estimated project cost.  

20



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 12 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report on the Annual Goals Process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
It was shared the only remaining task is to pave 
with 12” of rock which is placed with 6” asphalt 
section, and striping.  
 
Brief discussion was held by Council.  
 
Beatty reported that paving was contingent upon 
weather, and timeline for reopening of the road 
was an item for discussion. 
 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager Report.   
He advised that the current goals process is 
cumbersome, staff comes in with draft goals and 
the Council modifies it and adds additional, 
arriving at the current City goals of around 100 
different priorities. He reported that that it was 
important to focus on the key items for the 
upcoming year, perhaps 10-15 key goals and it 
was planned to have more department 
involvement/presentations and the goal was a 
more streamlined report.  
Council held discussion on the item.  It was noted 
receiving department and committee reports 
ahead of time is helpful, it further reduces the time 
for required and the process wouldn’t have to be 
rushed.  
 
Kaplan reported that it feels like Council need to 
set goals based upon the continuing/required 
operations we have to do as a City, instead of 
starting with what else is desired to be done. 
  
Nebel reported that departments would be 
working on a summary sheet of key functions, and 
legal obligations to attempt to clarify the 
availability of surplus time for new initiatives.  He 
added some departments feel a lack of connection 
with Council due to not being able to share what is 
important to their Department.  
 
Council held various discussion, it was noted it 
was important to not forget old goals, and it may 
be helpful to hear the #1 biggest goal for each 
department.  
 
Jacobi shared that the reports are long currently, 
perhaps a one pager would be appropriate.  She 
advised she doesn’t want to limit the goals to 10-
15 because she feels new City Manager would 
benefit from seeing the other things down the line 
a bit. Suggestion was to add a new category or 
number; like small things which don’t cost much.  
For example: hiring someone to trim weeds on all 
curbs in the city. 

21



 

Newport City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 13 of 13 
January 2, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of Council Committee/Liaison Assignments 

 

 

Kaplan reported that if everything is a priority, 
nothing is a priority.  Knowing what needs to be 
done, would likely allow the ability to prioritize the 
rest.  
Nebel stated that if he was the manager applying 
for the job, he’d feel there was too much being 
asked based upon the existing goals list.  A more 
focused goal list would likely help with the 
recruitment process.  
Botello reported getting reports with visuals would 
be helpful.  
Botello suggested reports with visuals. 
It was the general Council consensus to proceed. 
Nebel reported he would work towards that end 
and would work with the Mayor and Council 
President on it.  
 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager Report.  
 
Council held discussion and proposed various 
modifications/changes to assignments for 2024.  
 
It was noted the City Council 
Compensation/Stipend Workgroup was not on this 
list.  
 
 

REPORT FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL  
 

Mayor and Council Reports 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Parker requested to be excused from next 
Monday’s work session. 
 
MOTION made by Hall, seconded by Botello to 
approve the excusal of Councilor Parker from the 
January 08, 2024 work session.  MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT None was heard. 

ADJOURNMENT 9:35 P.M. 

 
       

22



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 1 of 3 
January 02, 2023 

City of Newport  
City Council Work Session Minutes 

January 2, 2024 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 4:06 P.M.     Time End: 5:15 P.M. 

MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

Councilor Botello Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder  

Councilor Goebel Jeff Pridgeon, Municipal Judge 

Councilor Emond Laura Kimberly, Library Director 

Councilor Hall  Steve Baugher, Finance Director 

Councilor Jacobi Chris Beatty, Acting City Engineer 

Councilor Parker (arrived at 4:54pm) Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 

 

AGENDA TITLE ACTIONS 

Work Session  

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL Mayor Kaplan called the meeting to order. 
 
Glover conducted roll call.  
 
MOTION was made by Hall and seconded by Jacobi to excuse 
Parker for the Work Session and the URA meeting of the 2nd of 
January 2024. MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  

DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
City Manager’s Report  

 
 

Update of Municipal Court Activities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Nebel presented the written City Manager Report.  
 
 
Jeff Pridgeon, Municipal Judge, was present to speak.  He 
reported that Wednesday morning is Muni Court, Traffic, and City 
Ordinance Violations.  He also reported that no criminal violations 
are done.  The budget is set for $60,000 for many years.  The 
budget was raised to $97,000 recently, but will exceed the 
$60,000.  The city pays the state system and county 
assessments.  Jeff Pridgeon, Municipal Judge, also reported on 
the yearly assessment by category.  Councilor Hall questioned if 
they state does any traffic violations demographically?  Pridgeon 
reported, no. Kaplan questioned why the numbers are down.  
Pridgeon reported that they aren’t down much, a lot of what is 
done are old state tickets.  The Judge feels that this will drop and 
stated that the governor has created amnesty for folks state wide 
which are to be forgiven to get people back on their feet and 
licensed and insured, this will also reduce revenue.  Another 
reason numbers fluctuate is the police department goes up and 
down on traffic enforcement.  The PD is short on staff so traffic 
and small items get less priority.   
Pridgeon also reported that court attendance has been down 
since Covid.  He also stated the city has a Spanish interpreter for 
court as well.  Botello questioned how things will work with 
parking tickets?  Pridgeon shared he thinks it will be done 
electronically.  Hall questioned the enforcement for over time 

23



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 2 of 3 
January 02, 2023 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Annual Report on the Newport Public 
Library Strategic Plan Accomplishments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Discussion on Driveway Widths 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Review of the Annual Audit for the City 
of Newport and Urban Renewal Agency 

 
 
 

parking tickets.  Nebel stated the 15-day timeframe is likely going 
to be the standard.  Nebel reported that those who appeal their 
ticket seem more likely. 
 
 
 
Library Director, Laura Kimberly, was present to speak.  She last 
presented in November 2022.  She stated that all goals have been 
completed in 3yr strategic plan, so they are starting the process 
over again.  Kimberly reported that library goal is to meet 
community needs.  Kimberly detailed the goals and progress 
throughout the year. Council had a variety of questions.  Council 
stated that they are proud of the library results and its staff.  
Kimberly also reported the food pantry fed over 1,000 people at 
the library in the first year. 
 
 
Nebel reported that Goebel had requested this be on the agenda.  
It was stated that over the past years there have been many 
issues with driveway widths.  Goebel feels the need to try and 
establish standards and design guidelines for developers and 
design engineers when they are laying out subdivisions or 
replacing a driveway.  Beatty, Acting City Engineer, spoke in 
regards to standards for driveway design.  He stated the minimum 
is 12’ for one driveway, 18’ max.  He also stated that it is 20-30 
feet for 2-way driveway max.  Beatty stated that it is consistent 
with the traffic transportation plan. Goebel stated that he has been 
getting some push back on allowing only 10 feet for driveway.  
This is why he asked for it to be on the agenda. He stated that 
many of the driveways are unlimited in Newport.  He wonders why 
we are doing it?  He feels something like a double car garage with 
a 10-foot driveway is not smart.  Tokos reported that under land 
use code, if you have a driveway which is single width approach, 
there is a 12-foot minimum which could go up to 18-feet; a 2-car 
could be 20-30 feet in width.  Tokos stated that the purpose is 
pedestrian safety.  He shared overly wide approaches put 
pedestrians at risk.  Further the driveways need to be spaced 
away from intersections and high demand areas.  They also need 
to be sensitive for on street parking. 
 
 
Nebel stated that Baugher will be giving a brief presentation.  
Nebel advised the audit is an unmodified opinion.  He stated that 
the city received an award for a transparent audit which meets all 
the standards.  Having a CAFR for a community our size is 
exceptional.  Nebel thanked Baugher who did this single 
handedly. 
 
Baugher stated that he would give out hard copy audits to those 
who want them.  He detailed a certificate of achievement from 
GFOA. Baugher presented his staff report and summarized the 
audit. He detailed single audit findings, there were 2 in total.  One 
of them was because he was the finance and assistant finance 
director and he approved and made journal entries which are an 
internal control flaw.  The second finding was in single audit 

24



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 3 of 3 
January 02, 2023 

where the City did not have policies or procedures in place to 
ensure checking federal debarred list before awarding contracts 
using federal funds.  
 
The URA Audit received unqualified opinion, which is a good. 
 
Nebel reported that under council processes, the council creates 
standing audit committee.  The auditors made a presentation to 
the committee and tonight the committee is presenting to council, 
thru Baugher.   
 
Goebel mentioned that Glenda Rhodes was the chair of this 
committee.  She was a CPA and her term expired on the 
committee and she did not reapply for another term.  He stated 
council will need to find someone for her place on the committee.  
Goebel also stated he would like to thank her for all of her work.  
Kaplan stated that drafting a letter to her would be great. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION None 

ADJOURNMENT 5:15 PM. 

 
  

25



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 1 of 5 
January 08, 2023 

City of Newport  
City Council Work Session Minutes 

January 08, 2024 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY 
NEWPORT 

Time Start: 12:02 P.M.     Time End: 2:05 P.M. 

MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Mayor Kaplan Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

Councilor Botello Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder  

Councilor Goebel  

Councilor Emond  

Councilor Hall   

Councilor Jacobi  

Councilor Parker (excused)  

 

AGENDA 
TITLE 

ACTIONS 

Work Session  

City Manager’s 
Memo 

Nebel presented a written City Manager Memo.    

Discussion and 
Review of Draft 
Candidate 
Profiles and 
Recruitment 
Hiring 
Procedures   

Erik Jensen, Principal with Jensen Strategies and Amelia Wallace, Associate with 
Jensen Strategies attended via Zoom teleconference.  
 
It was referenced that two documents were for review tonight, with the goal of 
having a final draft for Council discussion and adoption at the January 16, 2024 
meeting. They include a position profile which describes the desired attributes of 
the next City Manager and some policy directives for that position, including hiring 
procedures which would be approved/adopted at the next City Council meeting to 
meet public meeting law requirements to facilitate future work in Executive 
Sessions related to the City Manager recruitment.  
 
Wallace advised that the position profile was drafted following stakeholder 
engagement from City Council, the public, department heads and city staff.  It was 
reported 21 individual interviews with Council and staff took place, 4 people 
participated in the public input session, 16 Newport staff provided responses in 
the survey, and 40 members of the public provided commentary on the survey. It 
was noted survey and items were distributed in Spanish, but there were no 
responses received in Spanish.  
 
Brief discussion was held on the documents. Hall noted that this document lists a 
$100 million dollar Wastewater Treatment Plant Master plan estimate, and 
wondered if it was different from the Big Creek Dam project.  Nebel reported that 
was correct, the $100 million WWTP master plan project estimate was received 
recently.  
 

26



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 2 of 5 
January 08, 2023 

Council expressed various concerns about the cost, and noted it does not seem 
feasible to put $200 million in projects on the back of a new City Manager. Nebel 
reported that there was not much of a choice on that matter.  
 
Various corrections, modifications and additions were discussed. It was the 
general Council consensus to provide Urban Renewal Agency projects as its own 
header, leave existing choices, and add the South Beach 2027 agency closeout. 
In addition, it was noted to clarify the City Manager also serves as Executive 
Director of URA.   
 
It was noted that the recruitment profile was very complex, and was it customary 
of these recruitments to have that? Wallace reported that was correct, the City 
Manager job is complex it covers a lot of areas, a lot of technical skills, emotional 
and technical competencies. Jensen reported that the list is an ideal candidate, it 
is not likely to get an ideal candidate, but rather one who checks a few boxes, and 
not on some other others, but they have to check enough to be a 
viable/competent candidate.  
 
It was noted desired skills/attributes does not seem the best language. It was the 
general Council consensus to clarify the language to say desired skills/attributes 
in key areas.  
 
Emond inquired about how are selection criteria determined and weighted for final 
review. Jensen reported the rankings/priority are as added on the list, but the top 
attributes are management and Council relations as they are key to any City 
Manager position.  
 
Discussion about ICMA credentialing was heard.  
 
Jacobi shared that when Nebel was hired, two City Councilors went to the town 
Nebel was leaving in Michigan to talk to people, and wondered if the Council 
chose to do that, when would it work? Jensen advised the recruiting firm had not 
proposed that strategy, but would have to evaluate where that could fit in the 
program.  
 
Nebel reported that he received a job offer, contingent upon passing this item, 
and it did not seem to be a common occurrence in modern times by cities. Other 
background methods are used.  
 
Brief discussion of the community engagement was heard. Jensen spoke to the 
community reception design. Jensen advised that a reception was had, and there 
is a community interview panel to interview the candidates. Nebel reported that 
the Council would be picking who compromised the community interview panel.  
 
Hall inquired about what opportunities the Council has to conduct informal 
assessment of references/candidate research. Jensen reported that was strongly 
discouraged, the firm is fine with custom items in reference checks, but they do 
them and want to ensure a fair comparison.  
 
Nebel reported that relying on internet research is complicated, it may be true or 
not. He advised that internet research of candidates/applicants is strictly 

27



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 3 of 5 
January 08, 2023 

prohibited in staff level hiring process. In addition, background investigations are 
only done after a contingent job offer is made.  
 
It was reported that Jensen Strategies did background checks for candidates as 
they are short listed by Council, and previous to an offer.  It was inquired as to if 
background investigations of City Manager candidates are public record. Jensen 
reported that background results are very personal in information 
solicited/obtained, as such they are strictly confidential, but any concerns are 
shared by Jensen to the Council in Executive Session.  
 
Brief discussion on the hiring/offer process was held.  
 
Jensen noted that in terms of reference checking, the firm asks candidates for 4 
references, being a subordinate, an elected official, and two others who can 
speak to the candidate’s qualifications as a City Manager.  In addition, it was 
noted they have a large network of professionals around the United States they 
can ask for referencing.  
 
Brief discussion was held about the application period window, and possible 
modifications to the tier list of qualifications in rank order. Hall noted that it seems 
better to bump up DEI to be higher than page 2.  
 
Brief discussion by Council who determined that it was exceedingly difficult to 
rank the items, they are all important. It was the general Council consensus to 
add a statement about experience with DEI initiatives under the preferred section, 
adding competencies in DEI work under leadership/management and retain the 
existing DEI paragraph.   
 
Emond inquired about questions that are asked by interview panels, and in the 
executive session.  Jensen advised that the firm develops the questions, they 
need to be consistent with the profile.  
 
Hall advised that benefits package is something that was important to discuss. 
Jensen advised this is typically done in negotiations.  
 
Jensen advised the firm did salary research, using comparative cities to arrive at 
an offer range. He reported cost of living of Newport is a factor, and currently it is 
a candidate’s market who are being very selective on opportunities.  
 
Wallace spoke to the data in the salary survey, which contained Astoria, 
Brookings, Cottage Grove, Florence, Monmouth, North Bend, Seaside, St Helens, 
Tillamook, and Warrenton. It was noted in some of these instances it could be a 
new manager to the City, or it could be a long serving manager which may not be 
reflective of current competitive compensation.  
 
Brief discussion of the City retirement plan to employees was heard. It was noted 
by Nebel that Newport is a defined contribution City of 6%, and an additional 3% 
match into a 457, except for police and fire which are covered by Oregon PERS.  
 

28



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 4 of 5 
January 08, 2023 

Jensen noted that in many cases current Oregon PERS members like to stay in 
that retirement system, it would not however be a fatal flaw as retired people, or 
folks from other retirement systems could apply for the opportunity.  
 
Jacobi inquired as to when the City of Newport decided to get out from the 
Oregon PERS system for general employees, and could the City rejoin. Nebel 
advised the City closed its defined benefit program to new members in 2012 
before his hire, and it would be a major financial issue on order of the Big Creek 
Dam or Wastewater Master Plan to make such a change. 
 
Jensen recommended $140,000-$180,000 as a salary range. Nebel advised that 
bottom number may be a bit low from his perspective, and the complexity of 
Newport, as his current compensation is $159,000.  
 
Brief discussion by Council with some noted concerns about the current 
employee retirement contributions, not putting much into retirement accounts for 
future use. Nebel noted that the workplace culture initiative of the City actually did 
a report on the subject. Their analysis would be coming to Council soon at a 
regular meeting for discussion and possible adoption/implementation., The group 
made a recommendation to retain the existing 6% contribution in the Newport 
retirement fund, and match up to 6% of employee elective deferrals into the 457-
retirement plan, for a combined total of 12% by the City.  
 
Brief Council discussion about raising minimum salary for the position. It was 
general Council consensus to raise the lower salary scale number to $150,000. 
Jensen reported they would make the revisions, Nebel reported that this would be 
adopted by separate motion in the January 16, 2024 meeting.  
 
Brief discussion of merit/step, and COLA increases of the position. Nebel reported 
the average salary increase of a manager varies, some may be more aggressive 
on needing compensation.  
 
It was referenced that Council would like to see the recruitment brochure, and to 
see a list of the locations/publications where this recruitment is being advertised. 
Jensen reported that would be accommodated.  
 
Jensen reported during Covid recruitments were lucky to get 10 applicants, but 
under current conditions 20 candidates seems more likely.  
 
Brief discussion about moving expense was heard, and a question about if it is 
offered. Nebel reported typically it is negotiated between Mayor and Council.  
Brief discussion about requirement to have new manager reside in Newport was 
heard.  
 
Jensen reported that unless a candidate already resides in close proximity, in the 
firms’ experience they try to reside in the City.  Cost of living, however is an often-
cited reason someone cannot live in the City.   
 
Kaplan reported that it would appear cost of living is factored in with the salary 
increase being the upper end of average. Nebel inquired as to if a firm could 
inquire about a candidate’s interest in living in the city.  Jensen reported it could 

29



 

Newport City Council Work Session Minutes                        
Page 5 of 5 
January 08, 2023 

be asked, but needs to be carefully worded as in Newport’s case it is not required 
in the Charter.  
 
Nebel advised that in his opinion City Manager’s don’t necessarily live in their 
cities anymore, it may be best to leave it out to ensure a wide pool of candidates. 
Jensen another option would be to ask for a candidate to live within close 
proximity to the City.  
 
It was noted in Council discussion that many of the current Newport employees 
live outside of the City, and commute from Corvallis or other areas.  
 
Jacobi shared Glover is a relatively new employee of the City and asked Glover if 
he could share his opinion on any benefits the Council could offer under this 
recruitment to make it more competitive.  Glover advised that he may or may not 
be an applicant for this position/recruitment, and it would not be appropriate for 
him to comment with regards to those items.  Glover advised that it is very difficult 
to locate housing in Lincoln County, much of the staff lives outside of Newport 
itself, due to the cost of living, and the fact it is exceedingly difficult to locate 
housing within Newport. He advised it is far easier to locate housing within the 
bounds of Lincoln County.  
 
It was the general consensus of the Council they were pleased with the work to 
date, with the modifications, as specified in the meeting and looked forward to the 
final product at the January 16, 2024 meeting.   

  

  

 
     

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



 
BPAC Meeting Minutes                        Page 1 of 3 
 

City of Newport  
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee  

 
September 12, 2023 

 
LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 

Time Start: 5:30 p.m.    Time End: 7:10 p.m. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
Chair Michael Rioux x Member Leeann Bennett x 
Vice-Chair Herb Fredricksen x Alt Member Lisa Avery x 
Member Minda Stiles  absent Alt Member Matt Forney x 
Member Dick Keagle x City Council Liaison Ryan Parker  absent  
Member Duane (Alan) Cobb x Staff Liaison Beth Young AICP x 
Member Tomas Follet - absent 

AGENDA ITEM ACTION 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL Roll Taken  

B. AGENDA ADDITIONS 

Young added discussion of situation at Ossies Surf Shop under "other business" 

None 

C. COMMITTEE COMMENTS None 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Cobb motioned to approve the Draft June 2023 Minutes and Keagle seconded it . Motion 
unanimously passed. 

There was no July 2023 BPAC meeting. 

The Draft August 2023 meeting minutes required corrections. Young agreed to make suggested 
changes and present corrected draft minutes at the October 2023 meeting. 

Approval of 
June 2023 
Minutes 

F. CRASH REPORT  

No reported crashes involving active transportation in August 2023.  

Fredricksen had emailed all BPAC members, attached to minutes, about Safety Grants that can be 
issued to police departments to aid in traffic enforcement- the Oregon Enforcement Grant Program.  

None 

G. OTHER BUSINESS None 

38



 
BPAC Meeting Minutes                        Page 2 of 3 
 

Agenda 

Young said she would like to have a BPAC member work on the agenda with her every month. 
Discussion of possible scenarios, like a different member each month.  The next agenda was the joint 
meeting with Parks and Rec Advisory Committee, so the two staff liaisons and Chairs will meet. 
Forney volunteered to meet with Young for the November agenda. 

Rocky Way 

Young referred to her memo that included maps, included in agenda packet, regarding the Federal 
Lands Access Program (a federal grant program which Newport received for the Lighthouse area). 
This was in response to a question from Stiles at the previous BPAC meeting. Stiles was wondering if 
there was any plan to improve Rocky Way north of Lighthouse Drive for bicycle and pedestrian access 
since this could be a connection for both the Oregon Coast Bicycle Route and the Oregon Coast Trail, 
both of which go on Hwy 101 in that area. Young reported there are no plans to improve Rocky Way 
for bike/ped access. (Rocky Way is an "undeveloped" City right-of-way, and is indeed rocky, curvy and 
steep in parts). 

STRS 

Young referred to an email from Fredricksen to BPAC members, included in the agenda packet, 
regarding Safe Routes to Schools construction grants.  Included in the email, but too large for the 
agenda packet, was the Toledo SRTS Plan.  Also included in the packet was a sample letter form the 
2020 program. The new biennial funding cycle begins in early 2024. 

Hwy 101 at Ossie's 

Young reported that she had been cc'd on an email from staff at Ossie's Surf Shop to ODOT regarding 
an unsafe situation of surfers crossing 101 in front of Ossies rather than using the Lighthouse Way 
intersection.  Discussion of pros and cons of a rapid-flashing beacon crossing there because of one 
business. Consensus was to invite an Ossies representative to a future BPAC meeting.  

ODOT and ADA 

Young said she had attended a presentation by regional Active Transportation Coordinator Jenna 
Berman at the recent Oregon Active Transportation Summit in Portland and learned about ODOT's 
ADA program. Basically, if someone cannot access ODOT facilities (streets) because of barrier, ODOT 
is required to fix that intersection or street to meet ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) 
requirements. Any Oregonian can contact ODOT, and ODOT has to do it. Berman fields these calls 
and, at the presentation, beneficiaries—disabled folks—were on stage and online. It was a very 
moving presentation to see how these people's lives had been improved by simple construction.  The 
program is a result of a lawsuit that ODOT lost against a disability-rights organization. Young said that 
there are many such barriers in Newport and reminded BPAC members of this complaint-driven 
program. 

H. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS  

39



 
BPAC Meeting Minutes                        Page 3 of 3 
 

Fredricksen emailed BPAC members, included in Agenda packet, regarding Safe Routes to 
Schools construction grants. Packet included a sample Letter of Commitment from a school 
to initiate a Project Identification Program. Also included in email, but too large for the 
agenda packet, was a recent Toledo SRTS PIP report. Fredricksen reminded BPAC that the 
SRTS grants cycle is biennial and opens again in early 2024. 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment 

None 

J. CONFIRM NEXT MEETING DATE None 

K. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business Rioux adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m. 

Meeting 
adjourned at 
7:10 p.m. 

 

40



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
March 15, 2022 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

March 15, 2022 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:00 P.M.     Time End: 2:15 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit  Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Ken Brown  
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 

 

Meeting called to order by Sub-chair Busby. 
 
Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 

 
 None.  

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Lease for Hangar A4 for Lystra 

 

 

 

Lease for Hangar J for Seavers  

 
 

 
 
Item was introduced by city staff.  
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by Brown 
to recommend a lease for Lystra at sight A4. MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 
Item was introduced by City staff.  
 
MOTION made by Watkins seconded by McCrea, to 
recommend a lease for Seavers at sight J. MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report   

 
 
Nothing reported 
  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

  
None were heard. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
None were heard.  
 

ADJOURN 2:15 P.M. 

41



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
March 15, 2022 

  
AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

42



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
April 12, 2022 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

April 12, 2022 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:05 P.M.     Time End: 3:30 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Ken Brown (Via Zoom)  Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea (Via Zoom)  
Mark Watkins  
Susan Reese Painter  
Jim Shaw  
Dietmar Goebel, Council Liaison  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 
 

 
 
 Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
February 8, 2022 

 
MOTION made by Watkins, no one seconded to 
approve the February 8, 2022 minutes. MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

          Committee orientation training.  

 

          Lystra hangar design  

 

 

 

          Seavers Hangar site J design 

 

 

 

          North Development First Concept  

 
 
City Staff Peggy Hawker and City Attorney David 
Allen presented orientation training to the 
committee.   
 
 
City staff presented information to committee.  
 
MOTION made by Watkins, seconded by Painter 
to approve Lystra hangar design. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 
 
City staff presented information to committee.  
 
MOTION made by Watkins, seconded by Shaw to 
approve Seavers hangar design. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.   
 
 

43



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
April 12, 2022 

 

 

          Airport entrance sign concept 

 

          Final time line check list 

 
 

City staff presented information to committee. 
Discussion proceeds with the committee.   
 
 
 
 
TABLED by Watkins until next meeting.  Tabled  
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 
Request by Busby, recommended by Watkins to 
move this item on the agenda. No vote was 
requested from the committee.   
Discussion proceeds between City Attorney and 
Committee. 
 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

          Operations report   

 
 
Staff presented operations report for March and 
April 2022.  
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

 
None were heard.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
None were heard.  
 

ADJOURN 
 

  
3:30 P.M. 
 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. Pursue commercial and /or private for-hire 
airline service to facilitate regional travel to the 
Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of 
the Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional 
T-hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency 
preparedness operations at the airport. 

       

44



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 3 
July 12, 2022 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

July 12, 2022 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:12 P.M.     Time End: 3:40 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea   
Mark Watkins  
Jim Shaw  
Dietmar Goebel, Council Liaison  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 
 

 
 
 Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 June 2022 meeting was canceled due to a City staff 

scheduling conflict with the Lincoln County Cascadia 
Rising drill. No minutes were submitted from the June 
2022 meeting.   

MOTION made by Watkins, seconded by Shaw to 
accept the minutes from the June meeting without any 
additions or corrections. MOTION carried unanimously 
in a voice vote. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

EcoPhyte Consulting – Gavin Curtis 

 

 

 

Revisions to the hangar time line and checklist, 
along with corresponding edits to the hangar lease 
section 7 and 8. 

 

 

 

 
 
Staff introduced Gavin Curtis with EcoPhyte 
Consulting. Discussion proceeded with the committee 
about what EcoPhyte was offering the airport. 
Consensus was not to make a recommendation to 
move this forward to council. 
 
 
 
Staff presented revision from City Attorney. Discussion 
ensued between the committee members. 
 
MOTION made by Busby, seconded by Watkins to 
have the revision clauses removed from the leases.  
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
MOTION made by Busby, to buy future ground lease 
in areas open for development on the airport be looked 
at the total square footage of the property, rather than 
the building that is built on the property. Discussion 

45



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 3 
July 12, 2022 

 

Self-serve Fuel Station.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

was had between the committee members. MOTION 
was dropped by Busby. 
 
City staff provided information in the staff report. 
Discussion with the committee ensued. Busby made a 
recommendation to drop the current fuel policy. 
Discussion ensued, no second was made. Watkins 
made a recommendation to bring a plan to get the self-
service fixed. Discussion ensued with the committee. 
No second was made. 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations Report   
 

 
 
Staff presented operations report for June and July 
2022 meeting.  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Bertuleit commented at the beginning of the meeting 
that he had noticed the minutes from the last meeting 
talked about striping and advertising the airport bar-b-
que. Jeff noticed there were not many people flying in. 
Busby added that we still have the fuel farm NOTAM 
out of service and that should be talked about when 
staff is back. Watkins added about how many of our 
visitors know fuel is available. Watkins added the 
Sheriff’s department is doing their street training at the 
airport. Watkins added he was glad we can share our 
airport with local law enforcement.  
Shaw asked if the FBO was open to move the bar-b-
que back to the FBO. Watkins replied that would be a 
discussion for their private group if they want to move 
the bar-b-que back to the FBO, and did not see a 
reason why they could not move it back to the FBO if 
they wanted to. Watkins asked about hangars that are 
not being used on the airfield. Staff provided 
information about hangars. Watkins asked about 
letters that should have been sent out. Committee 
members confirmed letters were sent out. Bertuleit 
asked about the crew car and waiting on 
administration to approve the agreement. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  Chair Bertuleit moved public comments before item 4C 
on the agenda. Doug Lystra provided public testimony 
about the building permit timeline.  
 
MOTION made by Busby, seconded by Watkins to 
change the classification to non-commercial 
construction at the airport out of Class-A. MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Discussion about permitting review proceeded.  
 
MOTION made by Busby, seconded by Watkins that 
all planning reviews are a single review and no second 
or third round of reviews.  MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Committee discussion about having Nebel write Clair 
an official letter limiting Clair to one round of review. 
 

46



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 3 of 3 
July 12, 2022 

ADJOURN 
 

 4:00 P.M. 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

47



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 3 
May 10, 2022 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

May 10, 2022 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:03 P.M.     Time End: 3:40 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Ken Brown Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director  
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Susan Reese Painter  
Jim Shaw  
Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison   

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 
 

 
 
Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 None. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Time line checklist discussion with Derrick Tokos.  

 

Notice of Decision for the City Council's Affirmation 
of the Planning Commission's Approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit for the Animal Shelter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ecophyte Consulting Gavin Curtis, President.  

 
 

 
 
Vanderbeck and Tokos presented information to the 
committee, regarding development timeline checklist. 
Discussion held by the committee.   
 
City staff provided information to committee. 
Committee proceeded with discussion.  
 
MOTION made by Busby, seconded by Painter to 
rescind the committee’s prior recommendation of 
having the animal shelter on airport property.  
MOTION carried, with Shaw and Bertuleit opposed 
and Watkins abstaining due to conflict of interest.  
 
Watkins declared a conflict and recused himself from 
voting. Committee members McCrea, Busby, Painter, 
and Shaw voted aye, Bertuleit voted nay, MOTION 
passed.   
 
 
 
City staff provided information to the committee. 
Consensus from the committee was to invite EcoPhyte 
to present during the June 2022 meeting. 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

 
 

48



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 3 
May 10, 2022 

Operations Report   
 

Staff presented operations report for May meeting 
2022.  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Chair Bertuleit added on Saturday they talked about 
having a work committee to work out ideas for the 
north end and present it to the committee. City Staff 
replied to Bertuleit’s comment that the committee could 
set up a work committee. Bertuleit asked about having 
the FBO open until 7 pm. Staff responded we would 
need to talk with administration. Bertuleit felt it would 
be advisable to talk with waiting list to find out the price 
range to charge for a t-hangar. Bertuleit, then 
committed on the sign and did not want a metal sign 
but a same style of sign advertising the City of 
Newport. Busby asked about the grass area between 
jet parking and box hangars. City staff replied that one 
40 x 42-foot hangar could be built in that location. 
Busby asked about letters that were sent out to the 
hangar owners and some did not get a letter. City staff 
asked who did not receive the letters. Busby replied 
with Steven Wormley a t-hangar tenant. Watkins, 
requested to review all the leases of the airport. City 
staff asked if the committee would like annual hangar 
inspections to start.  
Busby replied for all hangar owners. City staff asked 
about further clarification and what the committee 
wants for a standard. Busby replied whatever the FAA 
current standards are. Shaw asked if the city has an 
up-to-date contact list of current tenants and requested 
to receive a copy. Shaw commented about the city 
airport budget and requested a copy. Bertuleit asked 
about AIP funds and where they go and what we are 
working on. City staff replied about sending out a CIP 
update to the committee. Bertuleit brought up solar 
power at the airport and combining electrical meters. 
Also, that Bertuleit would not want to use city funds for 
a solar feasibility study. Busby asked about survey of 
the electricity meters at the airport. City Staff 
responded to Busby’s questions about electrical meter 
survey that was done a few years back. Councilor 
Jacobi asked Bertuleit about the feasibility study 
question form earlier.  Discussion ensued and Busby 
suggested to have the solar study city wide.    

PUBLIC COMMENTS  None were heard.  
 

ADJOURN 
 

 3:40 P.M 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. Pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 

49



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 3 of 3 
May 10, 2022 

7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

 

50



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
August 9, 2022 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

August 9, 2022 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:03 P.M.     Time End: 2:21 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit – by phone Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Susan Reese Painter  
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Jim Shaw  
Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 
 

 
 
Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
None.  

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Communication for Community Development 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Airport staff presented the staff report for permitting of 
hangars. Busby made a statement that communication 
between the City, Clair, and Lystra could have been 
better. Busby asked about residential code covering 
buildings other residents including aircraft hangars 
8,000 square feet or less. Further discussion ensued 
with the committee.  Staff will check with community 
development and bring back more information. 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report   
 

 
 
Staff presented operations report for August 2022 
meeting.  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Bertuleit made a comment about a location for electric 
plane charging station. Watkins asked about demand 
for APU. Staff advised there was very little demand at 
this time.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS   None were heard. 
ADJOURN  2:21 P.M 
AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 

51



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
August 9, 2022 

4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

52



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 5 
September 13, 2022 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

September 13, 2022 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:04 P.M.     Time End: 2:48 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

 Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Susan Reese Painter  
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Jim Shaw  
Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 
 

 
 
 Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 Vanderbeck advised that draft minutes for the 

meetings of March 15, 2022, April 12, 2022, May 10, 
2022, July 12, 2022 and August 9, 2022 were in the 
packets. Minutes were not final for approval at this 
time.  

Brief discussion was held on the process for running a 
meeting with an absent chair, and what the Committee 
member running the meeting should be called. It was 
general committee consensus to call them acting chair 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Response from Community Development 
Department  

 
 
 
 

 
 
Busby reported that a response from Community 
Development Department came in pertaining to 
residential hanger permitting. Busby advised the 
Committee had read the response; the Committee 
proposal was not doable as stated.    
   

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report   
 
 

 
 
Staff presented operations report for September 2022 
meeting.  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Shaw inquired if the fuel reports every month were 
necessary, or would quarterly reporting suffice? Busby 
and Watkins indicated it would.  

53



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 5 
September 13, 2022 

Watkins inquired when 100 low lead fuel would move 
down in pricing? Vanderbeck reported he would have 
a better idea the next week, but current price list went 
up fifty cents, and was hoping it is a fluke with inflation, 
but had lowered prices once. Busby advised he 
thought pricing was lowered about a month ago. 
 
Busby reported he flew halfway across the United 
States, average price was $6.70 a gallon while 
stopping at major airports across the country on the 
route. Vanderbeck advised average local price is $7.36 
for 100 low lead, airport price at $7.30 with pre-paid 
fuel card discount to $6.57.   
 
Brief committee discussion on a recent German fighter 
plane visit. Vanderbeck reported he thought it may 
have been a dog fighting plane for the Canadian Royal 
Airforce at first, but the plane was owned by a general 
aviation pilot.   
 
Busby advised that weed control at the airport is an 
issue, and could the weeds be sprayed, or would the 
airport have an issue with local residents taking control 
over that effort?  Busby shared the biggest areas of 
issue were Taxiway echo, and around hangars with tall 
grass. Vanderbeck reported the curve along apron was 
sprayed, but Staff hadn’t gotten by taxiways. 
Vanderbeck advised he did not foresee an issue with 
spraying at hangar sites, but not elsewhere. At present 
the city is working on an Integrated Pest Management 
plan detailing the use of herbicides. Busby inquired 
how long it would take for that to be finalized? 
Vanderbeck advised he did not have a firm deadline, 
and Jacobi reported Parks and Recreation Director 
Cavanaugh would be the best point of contact for that 
effort.  
 
Busby requested information on issues filling cracks 
on taxiway? Vanderbeck reported he would have to 
ask the state, who has switched to a round robin style 
for maintenance. Busby shared he spoke to a state 
worker three or four years ago, who indicated he was 
unsure if they did around hangars, or just main 
taxiways and runways. Vanderbeck reported 
movement, and non-movement areas would need to 
be defined and had sent an email into City 
Administration asking who is responsible for the apron 
from hangar to taxi lane, and has not heard back from 
legal.  
 
Jacobi inquired as to if the airport has historically used 
part-time maintenance workers in summer to assist 
with mowing operations? Vanderbeck reported that 
has never happened, just airport staff, but the airport 
had inmate work crew there before to assist. Watkins 
shared the issue is the removal method of weeds, 

54



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 3 of 5 
September 13, 2022 

there was lots of interest from volunteers in helping, 
but those volunteers didn’t want to do anything to 
jeopardize themselves or the City.   
 
McCrea reported questions on the north end hangar 
layout design project, on a rough draft, and what can 
be done to move it along and if there was federal 
funding to help with taxiways etc. Vanderbeck reported 
a pen and ink change on an ALP could result in federal 
funding, if there is federal funding for taxiways, it would 
be considered a taxi lane, not a taxiway though. 
McCrea shared it would appear there would be no way 
to get a lane to the hangar, Vanderbeck advised that 
was correct. McCrea shared that it may be worth 
asking the FAA, as in his view, it did not seem feasible 
for the city to install the taxiway. Vanderbeck advised it 
is a taxi-lane which goes into a building, taxiway gets 
to end of runway, FAA put in taxi-lane when box 
hangar and T hangars were built with federal money, 
but since those were built, nothing had been installed 
like that. Vanderbeck reported that AIP is feasible, and 
is working to see if he can get T-hangars built, goal 
would be to place them at the north end, since that 
project would install taxiway.  
 
McCrea shared that water flow at the property is a 
concern, he didn’t believe it was possible to do 
commercial in those hangars, since we have barely 
enough flow to classify Airport as storage, which is not 
repair or maintenance. The only building that is 
grandfathered is existing FBO. Vanderbeck reported 
that commercial use could be installed if it had a 
suitable fire suppression system, as well as following 
any other new regulations by the state for that size of 
commercial building. Watkins explained that he felt it 
was important to get City water down to Airport, it 
would alleviate these concerns. Lance reported the 
pump station would have to be used.  
Watkins reported that the current situation inhibits 
commercial business development. McCrea shared it 
was currently overgoing initial review, but think it is 
only storage, not hazardous work which is 
maintenance on an airplane or whatever they deem is 
hazardous due to lack of water flow. Jacobi inquired as 
to if Committee could get answers from the Community 
Development Department? Vanderbeck reported those 
answers have been received before, and fire 
suppression is required for commercial structures 
depending on what class the facility is. McCrea 
reported the trigger for fire suppression, is not square 
footage, the airport doesn't meet water flow 
requirements for hazardous operations.  
Jacobi requested clarification from Fire Chief Rob 
Murphy and Community Development Derrick Tokos. 
Busby reported commercial operations, would likely 
put the airport in a new water flow requirement 

55



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 4 of 5 
September 13, 2022 

category. Jacobi advised it may be a good project to 
move forward with, given infrastructure grants and 
looking for places to put it. Vanderbeck advised he 
would look into the requirements, for McCrea to build a 
private FBO. Watkins shared the major goal of 
founding the Airport Committee was to develop the 
commercial side of the airport for revenue, we 
understand it is $300,000 plus to get it going, 
Committee has been tasked with trying to reduce that 
burden on city funds, noting it is difficult to alleviate 
financial burden to city without having adequate flows.  
Jacobi advised that she is on housing analysis 
committee, it has been an education to see how little 
buildable lands actually exist in Newport. Jacobi 
shared if no infrastructure is available, it would cost 
about $3-million for one water pump station, funding is 
critical, if a plan is available then funding can be 
applied for. Busby reported wastewater is another 
issue, not just for the airport, but the entire section of 
Newport.  
 
McCrea reported he had an item of personal interest to 
discuss with the Committee and procedurally 
wondered how to handle it? Glover requested he step 
down to the public podium area from the Committee 
dais, to address them as a public member.  McCrea 
stepped down from dais and reported that it pertained 
to a sewer holding tank for his personal hangar, he 
knows a hangar out there with a holding tank for a 
restroom, and if there would there be an issue putting 
a tank behind his hangar and having it pumped? 
Vanderbeck advised that he thought as long as it 
doesn’t restrict access there likely wouldn’t be an 
issue, permitting for septic is done through Lincoln 
County, and would want to double check with 
permitting. McCrea advised he would fact check with 
Lincoln County, and undergo permitting with the 
County sanitarian if required. Jacobi shared that Tokos 
talked about a smaller sewage system for the entire 
airport before. Watkins advised it was a community 
septic system. Busby reported he knew community 
septic was likely a long while away for potential 
construction.  It was the general consensus of 
Committee that McCrea was ok to proceed with a 
pumped holding tank if approved by County. 
 
McCrea reported there was currently vacant land, east 
of his hangar and would like to look at adding extra 
land to his current lease. McCrea advised he had 
aircraft recovery trailers, would like to lease additional 
ground to park trailers adjacent to his hangar. McCrea 
reported that construction of the hangar was short 
sighted when built, because when the door opens and 
the hangar is exited it leads onto movement area, a 
lease would allow moving around the side of the 
hangar, and not into the movement area. Vanderbeck 

56



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 5 of 5 
September 13, 2022 

advised that Committee has said several times trailers 
need to be in long term parking, may need to go to 
long term parking, by the box hangars/fence. Busby 
reported he had no issue with the proposal if the land 
was leased, and the trailers were aviation related. 
Watkins reported that a rough draft map/plan would be 
appreciated in the next meeting. McCrea advised that 
he understands there are other trailers located there, 
has several acres at home to leave them if it doesn’t 
work out, but it is more convenient to store at the 
Airport. Busby requested to put in a formal question 
related to accessory storage. Glover advised that it 
would be most appropriate to request a formal 
discussion of this on the next agenda. McCrea 
reported he would pave the property if he was able to 
lease it. Watkins shared he felt the land was too small 
to build a hangar, and doesn’t know why the group 
wouldn't lean towards approval.   
 
Shaw reported hangar site leases were reviewed in the 
July meeting, #9 in the lease says, use of lease 
premises is limited to aeronautical use and has it been 
changed? Busby reported he didn’t think so, but hasn’t 
received a final version back. Vanderbeck advised he 
had sent an email to City Attorney and has not heard 
back. David Allen was going to be here for the 
meeting, but was not able to attend due to other 
obligations. Busby requested that staff add the revised 
lease version to next agenda for discussion. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 None was heard.  
 

ADJOURN 
 

 2:48 P.M. 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

57



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
November 8, 2022 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

November 8, 2022 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:02  P.M.     Time End: 3:00 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

 David Allen City Attorney 
Susan Reese Painter Peggy Hawker City Recorder 
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Jim Shaw  
Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 

 

 
 
 Hawker conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 None. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Hangar lease template- David Allen, City Attorney  

 

 

 

 

Fire systems for commercial buildings 

 

Lease maintenance responsibility – water 

 

World Fuel update.  

 

 
 
David Allen presented information about clarification of 
the new lease template and Check list. Talked about 
Rules and Regulations at the airport. Talked about 
insurance change to lease.   
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by McCrea 
to accept the draft lease as amended. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
    
 
Discussion was had about what is needed for a fire 
system in the hangar.  
 
 
None was heard.  
 
 
Discussion was had about potential new fuel 
replacement and how that will affect the current fuel. 
Will the new lease cover the switch to new fuel? 
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by McCrea 
to make recommendation to Council to transfer lease 

58



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
November 8, 2022 

Transfer of Lease Hangar D3 to Scott Isaak from 
Ken Williams.  

Transfer of Lease for hangar C-N from OSU to Jim 
Seavers.  

 

 

Lease east of hangar McCrea 

 

FAA Bipartisan Infrastructure 2022 

 
 

from Ken Williams to Scott Isaak. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.   
 
MOTION was made by Shaw, second by Watkins, to 
recommend to council to approve transfer of lease 
from OSU to Jim Seavers. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 
 
Item was added and then postponed till future meeting.  
 
 
 
Discussion was postponed to a future meeting.  

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

September 2022 Operations report.    
 
October 2022 Operations report.  
 

 
 
Operations report for October 2022 meeting.  
 
Operations report for November 2022 meeting.  
 
Discussion was had about the replacement of the crew 
car.  
 
AWOS discussion about data being broadcast to 
national centers.  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

None was heard. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 None was heard. 
  

ADJOURN 
 

3:00 P.M. 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

59



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 3 
January 10, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

January 10, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:10 P.M.     Time End: 3:10 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Susan Reese Painter  
Ralph Busby arrived later during 
meeting. 

 

Daniel McCrea – by phone   
Mark Watkins  
Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison  
  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 

 

 
 
 Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
Minutes None. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

T-hangar 10 lease for JFT Holdings, LLC, C/o 
Parker Johnstone   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ground lease for Daniel B. McCrea east of hangar 
D4 

 

 

 
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by Painter 
to recommend to Council to approve lease for hangar 
T-10 to JFT Holdings, LLC c/o Parker Johnstone. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Discussion ensued about T-hangar’s needing to 
approve T-hangar lease.  Staff will provide information 
about the waiting list and aircraft.  
 
Committee discussed building T-hangars to fill need of 
waiting list. Committee felt the City should not be in the 
T-hangar development business.  
 
 
 
Staff provided lease options for commercial and non-
commercial ground lease for hangar D4. McCrea 
asked to table the item for future meeting. Committee 
concurred and moved item.  
 
 
 

60



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 3 
January 10, 2023 

Filling open airport committee member seat 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Airport Committee Goals  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

World Fuel update   

FAA Bipartisan Infrastructure 2022  

 

Staff provided information about reposting committee 
vacancies. Staff reported Mayor Sawyer would like to 
see more depth in the committee; people who don’t 
have financial interest in the airport.  
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by McCrea, 
to recommend to Mayor Sawyer to approve 
appointment of Doug Lystra to the airport committee. 
No vote was made. 
 
Committee interviewed applicant after motion was 
made.    
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by Busby 
to recommend to Mayor Sawyer to approve 
appointment of Doug Lystra to the Airport committee. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 
 
Staff provide information on current seven goals.  
Discussion ensued on each goal individually.   
1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
**Recording cut short due to technical issues.** 
 
 
 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

5.A. Operations report for January 2023 meeting. 
Operations report for December 2022 meeting.  

 
 
Staff presented operations report for meeting.  
 
Staff presented operations report for meeting.  
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

 
None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  None. 
ADJOURN 3:10 P.M. recording cut short due to technical issues. 

61



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 3 of 3 
January 10, 2023 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

62



 

 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
May 23, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

May 23, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:02 P.M.     Time End:  3:00 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Doug Lystra  
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Susan Reese Painter – arrived later in the meeting.   
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 
 

 
 
Vanderbeck conducted roll call. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 No minutes were presented.  

Discussion about minutes and reminder of 
administration decision to decline action minutes.  

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

FAA BIL $875,000 funding 

 

 

 

 

Hangar CN & CS for Anderson Building & Land 
LLC 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Staff provided information on BIL funding and 
construction of T-hangars. Committee discussion 
ensued about cost saving. 
 
MOTION was made by Busby, seconded by McCrea to 
move forward with the FAA BIL funding for 
construction of T-hangars. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 
Staff provided information on hangar CN & CS.  
 
MOTION was made by Busby, seconded by McCrea to 
recommend to City Council to approve new lease for 
hangar site CN & CS with Anderson Building and 
Land, LLC; and terminate hangar lease 3414 with 
James “Jim” Seavers and hangar lease 2921 with 
Bruce Mate with finalization of sales. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Committee had further discussion for David Allen to 
clarify the lease terms and use of the new lease. Staff 
provided further information about further lease review 
with David Allen.   

63



 

 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
May 23, 2023 

  

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report for May 2023 meeting.  

 
 
Staff presented operations report for meeting.  
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Committee comment about self-serve tank and World 
Fuel agreement. Staff provided information about 
Eagle Tank and World Fuel update.  
 
MOTION was made by Busby, product provided by 
Mascot was not adequate and to terminate contract 
with Mascot. MOTION RESCINDED  
 
Further committee discussion ensued.  
 
MOTION was made by Bertuleit, seconded by Painter 
to request City Attorney look into the Mascot 
agreement and advise or take action on tank painting. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Discussion ensued about the land the animal shelter 
was going to be placed on. 
 
MOTION was made by Bertuleit, seconded by McCrea 
to take action on relisting the outside properties.  
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
Discussion about FEMA ensued, and moving the 
National Guard Armory to the airport. Airport staff 
provided information about FEMA, MOU, and City 
EOP coordinator.  
 
Committee asked about parking lot striping. Staff 
provided information about restriping the parking lot. 
Area for additional parking lot was leased out.      

PUBLIC COMMENTS  None.  
ADJOURN 3:00 P.M. 
AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

  

64



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
June 13, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

June 13, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start:  2:10 P.M.     Time End:  2:47 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Doug Lystra Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Susan Reese Painter  
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison  
  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 
 

 
 
Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 None. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Update in ground lease language section 11 

 

 

 

Airport Committee Applicant interview 

 

 
 
City Attorney, David Allen presented information to 
committee for further clarification on lease language.  
 
MOTION was made by Painter, seconded by Watkins 
to approve the changes as suggested.  MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 
Committee interview James “Jim” Seavers. Staff 
provided information on Mr. Seavers application.  
Committee asked a few questions of Mr. Seavers 
about the airport. Mr. Seavers responded to questions.  
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by Lystra to 
recommend to the Mayor to ratify appointment of Mr. 
Seavers to the airport committee. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report for June 2023 meeting.  

 
 
Staff presented operations report for meeting. 
Discussion ensued about the hit and wish list from the 
Budget committee.  
 
 

65



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
June 13, 2023 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Committee asked David Allen on any more information 
on insurance requirements for lease agreements. 
Meeting will be set up in the future.  
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 None was heard. 
  

ADJOURN 
 

  
2:47 P.M. 
 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

66



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
March 14, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

March 14, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 2:05 P.M.     Time End:  3:00P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

 Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Susan Reese Painter  
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Doug Lystra  
  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 
 Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
None 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Letter of support for Solar Farm to City Council   

Land lease for hangar site C1 to Daniel B McCrea 

Rule and Regulations section 6.6 Storage of 
Equipment / Materials  

Land lease for parking south of hangar A4 Doug 
Lystra 

Land lease for parking east & south of hangar D4 
Dan McCrea 

 

Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 Fees 

 

 

 

Change to FAA AIP Funding for the upcoming 
years.   

 
 
First half of meeting missing due to technical errors.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MOTION was made by Watkins, seconded by Lystra, 
to have city staff draft a lease for land east of Dan 
McCrea’s hangar. MOTION carried unanimously in a 
voice vote.   
 
 
Staff provided information about current fees and 
where Newport lands compared to state wide fees 
from ODAV. Committee made recommendation to 
adjust new T-hangar fee to $250 per month. No other 
recommendation was made from committee to adjust 
fees.  
 
 
 

67



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
March 14, 2023 

 
 

Staff provided information on the FAA reclassification 
airport and how it affected BIL funding made available 
for the airport. Committee consensus was to move 
forward with T-hangar construction.  

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report for March 2023 meeting.  

 
 
Staff presented operations report for meeting.  
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS None. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  Rick Beasley asked a question about the airport 

budget and funding. Staff provided information. Asked 
about FAA AIP grant funding. Staff provided 
information. Beasley asked about AUR service 
funding. Staff provided information.  

ADJOURN  3:00 P.M 
AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

68



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
July 11, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

July 11, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start:  2:00 P.M.     Time End: 3:01 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Susan Reese Painter – arrived later 
during the meeting.  

 

Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Doug Lystra   
Councilor Goebel- arrived later 
during the meeting.  

 

Jim Seavers in the Audience.   
 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 
REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 

 

 
 
 Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 None. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Rental lease for T-hangar 3 with Dwight Shanefelt 

 

 

 
 
Staff presented information about the rental lease.  
 
MOTION was made by Busby, seconded by Watkins 
to recommend approval to City Council for rental lease 
of T-hangar 3 to Dwight Shanfelt and Nancy Moore. 
MOTION carried unanimously in a voice vote.   
 
 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report for July 2023 meeting.  

 
 
Staff provided information from the operations report.  
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

MOTION was made by McCrea, seconded by Busby to 
set a limit on the T-hangar time you can lease a T-
hangar after an aircraft has been sold or wrecked to 
allow a six-month grace period without ownership of 
aircraft. Time frame will stop once a bill of sale has 
been provided for aircraft.  MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

69



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
July 11, 2023 

MOTION was made by Busby, seconded by McCrea to 
provide 30-day notice to T-hangar 5 renter. MOTION 
carried unanimously in a voice vote.   
 
Committee discussed putting down payment for 
putting them on the hangar waiting list. Staff provided 
information on the t-hangar waiting list and price 
adjustment of $300 per month.  
 
Committee had discussion on the Solar Feasibility 
study with Councilor Goebel. Committee had further 
discussion on solar projects.  
 
Committee had discussions on BIL FAA funding for T-
hangar funding.  
 
Committee had discussions on lack of pilot services on 
the field and future airport development.  
 
Committee had conversation about building hangar for 
commercial use because of fire flow.  
 
Committee had a conversation on Fuel tanks.  
 
Committee had a discussion about insurance 
requirements for lessee.   
 
Committee had a conversation about ratification of 
appointment of James Seavers.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS   None.  
ADJOURN  3:01 P.M. 
AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

70



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
August 8, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

August 8, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start:  2:05 P.M.     Time End: 2:55 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 
Susan Reese Painter   
Ralph Busby  
Daniel McCrea  
Mark Watkins  
Doug Lystra  
Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 

 

 
 
 Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 None. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 
 

None. 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report for August 2023 meeting.  

 
 
Staff presented operations report for meeting.  
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Committee had discussion on World Fuel.  
 
Committee had discussion on Self-Serve tanks.  
 
Staff provide information on the Septic system and 
funding.  
 
Committee asked about lease insurance. Staff 
provided information needs to go to Spencer for 
review.  
 
Committee asked questions about a few acronyms that 
were stated in the operations report. Staff provided 
information.  
 
Committee asked about BIL funding numbers and 
value engineering. Staff provided information.  
 

71



 
Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
August 8, 2023 

Committee asked about the lights at the T-hangars 
and the lights on the driveway to the T-hangar gate.  
 
Committee requested profit and loss statement for fuel 
sales.  
 
Committee asked about the FMU at the self-service.  
 
Committee asked about T-hangar 5. Staff stated the 
email was sent out. The lease will need to be amended 
with the time limit. Staff needs to check with 
administration.  
 
Committee asked about the fire flow requirements for 
business in the hangar. 
 
Committee asked about the north area for building 
hangars.  
 
Committee discussed the Runway 2-20 project on the 
Master Plan. Discussion ensued about changing the 
runway; making it shorter.  This was a requirement of 
the FAA. 
 
Committee asked about the air service group. Staff 
provided information about survey being put together.    
  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 None was heard. 

ADJOURN 
 

 
 2:55 P.M. 
 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

72



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 2 
September 12, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

September 12, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start:  2:02P.M.     Time End: 3:06 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director 

  

Ralph Busby  

Daniel McCrea  

Mark Watkins  

Doug Lystra   

  

Councilor Goebel  

 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
2.A. Roll Call 

 
 

 

 
 
 Members present listed above.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
3.A minutes No minutes presented. Committee asked to have 

motions at least written. Councilor Goebel addressed 
the issue with the committee. Discussion ensued about 
how meetings minutes are taken.  

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

4.A. Fiscal Year 22/23 revenue  

 

 

 

 

 

4.B Aircraft maintenance allowed in hangars: 

NFPA 410 Standard on Aircraft Maintenance  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Staff provided report information to the committee. 
Discussion on revenues ensued with the committee on 
the revenue report. Committee discussed master plan 
and future apron layout.  
 
Discussion on how to attract more Jets and where to 
park them.  
 
 
 
 
Staff provided information form Fire Chief Murphy per 
the lease agreement section 9.4. Staff provided 
information about the NFPA 409-410. Chief Murphy 
wanted a list of aviation related operations being done 
in the hangar to be more specific on the fire code.   
 

73



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 2 
September 12, 2023 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

5.A. Operations report for September 2023 
meeting.  

 
 
Staff presented operations report for meeting.  
 
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 

Councilor Goebel provided and update on McWatkins 
LLC Lease at request of committee.  
 
Committee asked about local catchment area pricing 
for AV-gas. Staff provided information.  
 
Committee asked about when Jim Seavers will be 
appointed. Councilor Goebel said he would talk to the 
mayor about the item.  
 
Airport staff and committee would like to see a private 
company provide FBO services on the field. 
 
Staff provided information on next steps for the T-
hangars. Further discussion about T-hangar 
construction was had.     
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 No public comments.  

ADJOURN 
 

 3:06 pm 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

74



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 3 
November 14, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

November 14, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start:  2:01 P.M.     Time End: 3:35 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/ City Recorder. 

Susan Reese Painter (Arrived later) Jeanne Tejada, Deputy City Recorder.  

Ralph Busby Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director.  

Doug Lystra  

Jim Seavers  

  

Councilor Emond  

Councilor Jacobi  

 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 

 

 
Bertuleit called the meeting to order at 2:01 P.M and 
Vanderbeck conducted roll call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
None. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Termination of hangar 3 lease 3252 with Mr. 

Monsanto, and approval of new lease for 

Hangar 3 with Mr. Barbour  

 

 

 

Oregon Government Ethics Commission 

Regarding House Bill 2805 

 

Goals for FY 24-25  

 

 

 

 
 
Mr. Busby questioned why the presented lease for 30 
years not 15. Vanderbeck responded it was clerical error 
and will get it corrected. Glover advised leases of the 
standard template including term/length would be used.  
 
MOTION was made by Bertuleit, seconded by Seavers to 
recommend to City Council approval with the current 
standard lease for 15 years. MOTION carried, with Busby 
abstaining.    
 
 
Staff read report to committee. Further training will be 
held with City Attorney David Allen at future date.  
 
 
Staff presented. to Committee. Councilor Jacobi talked 
about the goals being specifics.   
 
Bertuleit had further discussion on the goals with the 
committee. City Councilor Jacobi had conversation about 
talking with Port, County, and EDLC regarding air service 
for Newport. To establish timelines in the object.  Glover - 

75



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 3 
November 14, 2023 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

talked about EDALC and goals for the committee and a 
partnership in the goal.   
 
1. Pursue commercial and /or private airline service to the 
coast. Within a year time establishing the cost of an air 
service to operate at Newport. Organizing local 
government and business participation. Including 
reaching out airlines to see what they may need form 
Newport.       
 
2. Develop a commercial lease for the Airport Operations 
Area (AOA), identify area for business, work with 
community development to determine aviation business 
allowed in the AOA. Objective looking to assign a leasing 
agent once the other items are established by the end of 
Fiscal year 24/25.  
 
3. Requirement for commercial business to build and/or 
operate on the airfield. Including permits requirements 
and Fire approval.   
 
4. Constructing additional T-hangars using FAA BIL grant 
funding. Objective to identify who will supply hangars. 
Proceed with prep land, pouring foundations in current FY 
24/25. T-hangars to be constructed within 24 months.  
 
5. Installation solar panels at airport by 2025, unless 
feasibility study says otherwise.  
 
6. Develop Parking Plan- Identify where potential level 2 
charging posts might be located. Identify grants to 
facilitate the install of electrical power charging stations.  
All within a year, City initiated.  
 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at airport. -Identify parties and responsibility 
and contact information. 
  
8. Develop a plan to evaluate Airport budget, for items are 
of general benefit of community, and those that benefit 
private users/business aspect. To determine how much of 
airport benefits the general public, and how much 
benefits private users to breakdown the funding and 
income. 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 

Operations report for November and October 
2023 meeting.  

 
 
Committee elected to skip presenting of this item.  
 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
 

Busby commentary on General Fund subsidy, of Airport. 

Brief discussion of public versus private benefit  and cost 

structure of Airport.  

Painter commentary on general intangible benefit of 

Airport, suggested to read master plan for airport. 

76



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 3 of 3 
November 14, 2023 

Jacobi presented a summary of OAMA conference which 

took place in Newport. Saying Vanderbeck did a great job 

and was very proud of him.   

Discussed smart grants, and flight schools multi modal 

charging stations, discussion of utilizing electric airplanes 

in the future.  

Jacobi advised City has hired a grant writer who is full 

time now.  

Jacobi referenced a discussion at OAMA regarding a 

need for more aviation workers. 

Group wanted to have discussion about partnership with 

School District regarding aviation maintenance training. 

Bertuleit referenced it would be good to have a summer 

event to have a seafood or other food cart at Airport, and 

folks to do a fly in event.  Chamber luncheon at airport 

suggested. Suggested to have kids’ event at airport with 

Coast Guard helicopter landing.   

Bertuleit referenced 3 members ending in December, 

Bertuleit, Busby and Watkins.  

Bertuleit advised he would be interested in 

reappointment. 

Busby reported he was interested in reappointment. 

It was noted, Watkins needed to be contacted and his 

interest confirmed.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 None were heard.  

ADJOURN 
 

3:35 P.M. 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. Pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       
 

77



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 1 of 3 
December 12, 2023 

City of Newport  
Airport Committee Minutes 

December 12, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start:  2:02 P.M.     Time End: 4:30 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 

COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER STAFF  

Jeff Bertuleit Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director. 

Susan Reese Painter   

Ralph Busby  

Dan McCrea - Zoom  

Jim Seavers – Zoom (joined later)  

Cynthia Jacobi, Council Liaison  

  

 

AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Roll Call 

 
 

 

 
Vanderbeck conducted roll call. 
 
Painter called the meeting to order and asked for a 
moment to honor late member Jim Shaw’s 89th 
birthday.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
 

MOTION was made by Painter, seconded by McCrea 
to approve the minutes after final grammar editing. 
MOTION Carried unanimously in a voice vote.   

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

Approval of Goals for Fiscal Year 2024-2025  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Discussion ensued to further refine committee goals 
for fiscal year 24/25.  
 
MOTION was made by Painter, seconded by McCrea 
to approve the goals as amended. MOTION carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
1. Pursue commercial airline service to the coast.  

• By December 1, 2024 time establishing the 
cost of an air service to operate at Newport. 

• Form a local government and business 
participation group to support the goal of 
getting air service. Including reaching out to 
airlines to see what they may need form 
Newport. Group of support by July 1, 2024.  

 
2. Develop a commercial lease for the Airport 
Operations Area (AOA).  

• Identify areas for businesses to build and/or 
operate on the airfield. 

• Identify requirements, work with community 
development, to determine aviation businesses 

78



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 2 of 3 
December 12, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

allowed and permit requirements in the AOA. 
Fire approval requirement for commercial 
business.  

• Objective looking to assign a leasing agent 
once the other items are established by the end 
of Fiscal year 24/25.  

 
3. Constructing additional T-hangars using FAA BIL 
grant funding.  

• Objective to identify who will supply hangars. 

• Proceed with site prep and contractor in current 
Fiscal Year 24/25. 

•  T-hangars to be constructed within 24 months.  
 
4. To obtain grant funding for solar energy for airport 
by 2025. Unless feasibility study says otherwise.  
 
5. Develop automobile parking plan.  

• Identify where potential level 2 charging posts 
might be located.  

• Identify grants to facilitate the installation of 
electrical power charging stations. 

• Identify future parking area. 

• All within a year, City initiated.  
 
6. Partner with Federal, State, and Local agencies for 
emergency preparedness operations at airport.   

• Identify parties, Federal, State, and Local. 

• Responsibility and contact information. 

• Update the Emergency Plan for the airport. By 
September 2024.  

• Obtain funding from FEMA for large EOP 
building.   

  
7. Identify the benefits airport provides to private and 
public. Airport is a benefit for the people of Newport. 
Rents and leases provide offset in operational cost for 
the city.   

• General benefits of airport to local community. 

• General benefits to leases, aviation 
users/business aspect.  

• Breakdown of airport funding from city general 
fund and airport users. 

 
8. Establish Information package about the airport.  

• Develop brochure to hand to citizens about the 
benefit of the airport. By May 2024. 

• Identify a public event at the airport. 
  

9. Complete trail from Airport to SW 40th street. 

• Work with Community Development identify 
property need, easements, and rights of ways.  

 
 
 

79



 

Newport Airport Committee Meeting Minutes                       Page 3 of 3 
December 12, 2023 

City Manager Recruitment 

 

September 5, 2023 Council Work Session Report.  

 

 

 

Fees for Fiscal Year 24-25  

 

Staff provided information on City Manager 
recruitment.  
 
 
Committee members provided information on item. 
Discussion with staff proceeded. Frustrations on both 
sides were identified. Further conversation about staff 
report provided to City Council on landing fees was 
provided.    
 
 
 
Committee consensus was not to increase any fees for 
Fiscal Year 24/25 

OPERATIONS REPORT   
 
Operations report for December 2023 meeting.  

 
 
 Staff provided report information.  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
 

 None were heard.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
None were heard.  

ADJOURN 
 

4:30 pm 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE GOALS 
  

1. pursue commercial and /or private for-hire airline 
service to facilitate regional travel to the Central Coast. 
2. Explore commercial/industrial development of the 
Airport Operations Area, (AOA) property. 
3. Expansion of water and sewer services to the 
airport. 
4. Explore the possibility of constructing additional T-
hangars. 
5. Install solar panels at airport. 
6. Develop a parking plan. 
7. Partner with FEMA for emergency preparedness 
operations at the airport. 

       

80



 
Approved Newport Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes       Page 1 of 2 
December 11, 2023 

City of Newport  
Draft Planning Commission Regular Session Minutes 

December 11, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY NEWPORT 
Time Start: 7:23 P.M.     Time End: 7:51 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COMMISSIONER/ ADVISORY MEMBER STAFF  

Chair Bill Branigan (by video) Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 
Commissioner Bob Berman Sherri Marineau, Community Development Dept. 
Commissioner Jim Hanselman  
Commissioner Gary East  
Commissioner Braulio Escobar  
Commissioner John Updike  
Commissioner Marjorie Blom  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
a. Roll Call 

 
 
None. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 

a. Meeting minutes of Work Session Meeting 
on November 13, 2023 
 

 

b. Meeting minutes of Regular Session 
Meeting on November 13, 2023 

 
 
Motion by Commissioner Updike, seconded by 
Commissioner East to approve the work session 
meeting minutes of November 13, 2023 with minor 
corrections. Motion carried in a voice vote. 
Commissioner Blom abstained.   
 
Motion by Commissioner Updike, seconded by 
Commissioner East to approve the regular session 
meeting minutes of November 13, 2023 with minor 
corrections. Motion carried in a voice vote. 
Commissioner Blom abstained.   
 

CITIZEN/PUBLIC COMMENT None.  

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
File 1-Z-23: Land Use Amendments to 
Implement 2023 State of Oregon Legislative 
Mandates. 
 

a. PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 

b. STAFF REPORT – DERRICK TOKOS  
 
 

c. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

d. PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
7:26 pm 
 
Tokos presented the written staff report and reviewed 
code amendments to implement the 2023 State of 
Oregon legislative mandates.  
 
None. 
 
7:38 pm 

81



 
Approved Newport Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes       Page 2 of 2 
December 11, 2023 

 
e. COMMISSION DECISION 

 
Motion was made by Commissioner Escobar, 
seconded by Commissioner East, to forward a 
favorable recommendation to the City Council for the 
land use amendments to implement 2023 State of 
Oregon legislative mandates. Motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.  
 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Tokos reported on the delay of the funding agreement 
with ODOT for the start of the City Center Project 
committee work; outreach for parking meters on the 
Bayfront; January 2024 City Council review of the 
redevelopment agreement for the South Beach 
property; and status of the Public Works Engineering 
Department staffing. 
 

 
 
Submitted by:                                                          
 

  Sherri Marineau, Executive Assistant      

82



 
Approved Newport Planning Commission Work Session Meeting Minutes       Page 1 of 2 
December 11, 2023 

City of Newport  
Draft Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 

December 11, 2023 
 

LOCATION:  CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, NEWPORT CITY HALL, 169 SW COAST HIGHWAY, NEWPORT 
Time Start: 6:00 P.M.     Time End: 7:19 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG/ROLLCALL 
COMMISSIONER/ ADVISORY MEMBER STAFF  

Chair Bill Branigan (by video) Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 
Commissioner Bob Berman Sherri Marineau, Community Development Dept. 
Commissioner Jim Hanselman   
Commissioner Gary East  
Commissioner Braulio Escobar  
Commissioner John Updike  
Commissioner Marjorie Blom  
Citizen Advisory Member Dustin Capri  
Citizen Advisory Member Greg Sutton (absent)  

 
AGENDA ITEM ACTIONS 

WORK SESSION MEETING 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
a. Roll Call 

 
 
None. 
 

DRAFT AMENDMENTS TO FACILITATE 
NEEDED HOUSING (AN HPS 
RECOMMENDATION). 

 

a. Staff report 
 

 
b. Discussion on amendments 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
c. Commission feedback on amendments  

 

 

Mr. Tokos provided an overview of the draft code 
amendments to NMC Chapter 14, Facilitating 
Construction of Needed Housing. 

Commission held discussions on restrictions on 
shelters in residential areas; garage setbacks within 
underdeveloped rights-of-way; density limitations for 
building heights and roof pitch minimums; on-street 
parking credits; on-street parking credits for dwellings; 
changes to adjustments and variances in residential 
zones; approval standards for ministerial decisions for 
deviations up to 10%; and ministerial actions 
necessary to implement Title XIV of the Newport 
Municipal Code. 

Tokos received input from the Commission on edits to 
the document.  

 
DISCUSS HOLTE HOMEBUYER INCENTIVE 
PROGRAM (IMPLEMENTING HPS). 

 
Discussion deferred to the January 8, 2024 Planning 
Commission work session meeting.  
 

 
CITY MANAGER RECRUITMENT. 

 
None.  
 

83



 
Approved Newport Planning Commission Work Session Meeting Minutes       Page 2 of 2 
December 11, 2023 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION WORK PROGRAM 
UPDATE. 

 
None. 
 
 

 
 
Submitted by:                                                          
 

  Sherri Marineau, Executive Assistant        

84



 

 

        

         
 
                          
                                                                    Meeting Date: January 16, 2024  
      

 
 
Title: Ratify the Mayor’s Appointment of James Seavers to the Airport Committee for a 
Term Expiring December 31, 2025 
 
Prepared by: Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
  
Recommended Motion: I recommend, as part of the Consent Calendar, that the City 
Council ratify the Mayor’s appointment of James Seavers to the Airport Committee for a 
term expiring December 31, 2025. 
 
Background Information:  
During the annual appointment process, the reappointment of James Seavers was 
overlooked in the preparation of the report on the bulk Council appointment to 
committees.  
 
Fiscal Notes: None 
 
Alternatives: Reject the Mayor’s appointment, or as suggested by the City Council. 
 
Attachments:  
 
 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

85



 

 

        

         
 
                          
                                                                    Meeting Date: January 16, 2024  
      

 
 
Title: Ratify the Mayor’s Appointment of Dietmar Goebel and Cynthia Jacobi to the Audit 
Committee for a Term Expiring December 31, 2025 
 
Prepared by: Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
  
Recommended Motion: I recommend, as part of the Consent Calendar, that the City 
Council ratify the Mayor’s appointment of Dietmar Goebel and Cynthia Jacobi to the Audit 
Committee for a term expiring December 31, 2025. 
 
Background Information:  
During the annual appointment process, the reappointment of Dietmar Goebel and 
Cynthia Jacobi was overlooked in the preparation of the report on the bulk Council 
appointment to committees.  
 
Fiscal Notes: None 
 
Alternatives: Reject the Mayor’s appointment, or as suggested by the City Council. 
 
Attachments:  
 
 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

86



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   
Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Ordinance No. 2218, an Ordinance Banning the 
Sale or Use of Fireworks in the City of Newport.  
 
Background: 
On January 2, the City Council held a public hearing on an ordinance which would prohibit 
the sale and use of fireworks within the City of Newport. The Council heard from several 
retailers of legal fireworks and one citizen who all expressed opposition to banning legal 
fireworks within the City of Newport. The Council received a written comment support of 
the ban. In January 2022, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 2190 which allowed the 
City Council to determine by resolution, in any given year, a restriction on the use of all 
fireworks. That created some confusion and conflicts in 2023 since we were allowing the 
legal sale of fireworks at the same time as Council prohibiting their use. Following the 
2023 Fourth of July weekend, due to fire dangers.  Council had several discussions on 
moving forward with further restrictions on the sale and use of fireworks. If Council is going 
to make a change in regulations, it is important to act soon in order to address the permits 
that will be coming in for review for allowing fireworks sales to occur in the City of Newport 
in the 2024 summer season. 
 
On January 3, the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners approved Ordinance No. 532 
which prohibits the possession and/or use of consumer fireworks within the 
unincorporated limits of Lincoln County. In addition, it prohibits the sale of consumer 
fireworks within the unincorporated limits of Lincoln County. The primary difference 
between the County ordinance and the proposed City ordinance is that the City is not 
proposing to restrict possession of consumer fireworks. At the January 2 Council meeting, 
Council directed staff to finalize an ordinance prohibiting the sale and use of fireworks and 
schedule a public hearing and potential adoption of that ordinance for the Council meeting 
to be held on Tuesday, January 16, 2024. 
 

Recommendation: 
I recommend that the Mayor conduct a public hearing on Ordinance No. 2218, an 
ordinance amending section 8.20.020 of the Newport Municipal Code related to fireworks, 
prohibiting the sale and use of consumer fireworks within the city limits of Newport.   
 
 The Mayor will then ask for a voice vote on whether to adopt the ordinance. If the motion 
passes, the City Recorder will read the ordinance by title only.  
 

87



A roll call vote on the final passage of the ordinance will then be requested by the Mayor 
and taken by the City Recorder. 
 
I further recommend after considering any comments made at the public hearing, that the 
Newport City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to place for final passage and read by title only Ordinance No. 2218, an  ordinance 
amending section 8.20.020 of the Newport Municipal Code related to fireworks, 
prohibiting the sale and use of consumer fireworks within the city limits of Newport.   
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
Do not approve the motion, refer back to City administration for further refinement, or as 
suggested by City Council. Section 16 – Ordinance Adoption of the City Charter provides 
that “at the request of any Council member, the roll call vote shall be at a separate Council 
meeting. Any amendments from the printed version circulated at the Council meeting shall 
be read in full at the time of the reading of the ordinance by title, unless Council by 
unanimous vote waives reading of the amendments.” 
   
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

88



                Agenda Item #  6E_____ 
 
                Meeting Date   1-16-24__ 

 
 

C ITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City Of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title         Ordinance banning sale or use of Fireworks_________________ 
Prepared By: RMM_____ Dept Head Approval:  RM  City Mgr Approval:  _____________ 
 
 
Issue Before the Council:    
SHOULD THE COUNCIL, AFTER A PUBLIC HEARING, ADOPT ORDINANCE XXX, AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING NMC 8.20.020 ON FIREWORKS RESTRICTIONS? 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
STAFF RECOMMENDS HOLDING A PUBLIC HEARING THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE AND POSSIBLE 

ADOPTION. 
 
 
Proposed Motion: 
I move to adopt Ordinance Number XXXX, an ordinance amending NMC 8.20.020 
restricting the use and sale of fireworks in the City of Newport. 
 
 
Key Facts and Information Summary:    
On January 3, 2022 the City Council passed Ordinance 2190. This ordinance created 
Newport Municipal Code (NMC) 8.20.020 which authorized the City Council to restrict 
the use of consumer fireworks on a year by year basis “for a specified duration based on 
certain weather or weather-related conditions.” 
 
Earlier this year, the Council indicated a desire to revisit the ordinance and consider 
broadening the restrictions set forth in NMC 8.20.020. In revisiting this ordinance, the 
Council has two main things to consider. First, whether to regulate fireworks year-round 
or only during times of high fire danger. Second, whether to ban sales along with use. 
While regulating only during certain conditions is appealing, and gives greater flexibility, 
there is a problem with doing it this way. Retail sales Firework permits are processed by 
OSFM in February through April of each year. Typically, we do not know what fire 
conditions are going to be on July 4th till late till mid to late June. There would be 
understandable frustration from applicants who have obtained a permit, and ordered 
their product, only to be told later they cannot sell it. Remember some of the 
organizations who sell fireworks in our community are non-profit and do this as a 
fundraiser. With current NMC language we have to inform applicants of the potential of 

89



not being able to sell if Council, through resolution, bans fireworks for the season. Staff 
has done this by sending a letter to the permit holders in January. 
 
At the November 6th Regular Council meeting, Council indicated they wanted to view a 
draft ordinance that would prohibit sales and use of retail fireworks. A draft ordinance 
has been attached.  
 
The Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, is currently considering an ordinance 
prohibiting the sales and use of fireworks in all unincorporated areas of Lincoln County. 
This draft ordinance (#532) had its first reading at a Board of Commissioners Meeting in 
late December of 2023. The second reading was on January 3, 2024. At the time of this 
report I do not have the results of that meeting. I have included their draft ordinance 
along with a chart showing the cities in Lincoln County and whether they have any 
restrictions on fireworks.  
 
 
Other Alternatives Considered: 
The Council could keep the current Ordinance as written. The Council could also 
choose to restrict only sales or use year-round. The Council could also restrict both 
sales and use but keep the provision “for a specified duration based on certain weather 
or weather related conditions”.  
 
City Council Goals: 
 
 
Attachment List: 
Draft Ordinance 
Ordinance 8.20.020 
Draft Lincoln County Ordinance 532 
Fireworks Sales and Use by City in Lincoln County 
 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
There are no financial impacts to the City with this ordinance.  

90



Fireworks Sale & Use – by Jurisdiction – 12.22.23 

 

Jurisdiction Ordinance Sales Use 
    
Unincorporated Lincoln County #532 (First reading 12.20.22) Sales, *possession, & use prohibited Sales, possession, & use prohibited 
* “Lincoln County may confiscate, destroy, remove, or have removed at the owner’s expense all fireworks in violation of this section, when necessary for the preservation of 
public safety.” 
Lincoln City #2022-21* Sales permanently prohibited Use permanently prohibited on public 

property 
* Ordinance #2022-21 “Considering all of the above, the Lincoln City Council finds that the prohibiting the use and sale of fireworks has benefits to the 
community, including through less risk of fire in an increasingly dry environment, and less disruption to humans and animals. The Council also finds that 
allowing for permitted public displays can serve to recognize and continue the traditions associated with fireworks, especially around holidays such as the 
Fourth of July. The Council finds that, on balance, this approach is the best way to reconcile both the current concerns and the historical traditions around 
fireworks. 
 
Depoe Bay #331-21 Allowed permanently prohibited* 
*” The city acknowledges that the use of consumer fireworks during particular weather or weather-related conditions can increase the risk of wildfire and potentially create 
traumatizing and harmful situations for children, adults, and animals. 
Newport #2190 Allowed Resolution required to prohibit – *weather 

related events 
*Resolution #3981 – “Forecasts for moisture and temperature levels for the 2023 summer season are extreme heat and dry conditions; dangerous conditions for 
the use of fireworks; and significant likelihood of fire damage from the use of fireworks.” 
Toledo No ordinance Allowed  Allowed  
Siletz No ordinance Allowed Allowed 
Waldport #781 Allowed No public property – resolution for private 
 
Yachats*  No ordinance Allowed Allowed 
#185 (1996) – Prohibits wholesale/manufacturing of fireworks 

 

 

91



 PAGE 1 - ORDINANCE # 352 
  

  
Office of Lincoln County Legal Counsel 

225 West Olive Street, Room 110 

Newport, Oregon  97365 

(541) 265-4108 

 
 

 

  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FOR LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON 

ORDINANCE # 532 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 1 

Amendments relating to FIREWORKS in unincorporated Lincoln County and declaring an 2 

emergency. 3 

______________________________________________________________________________4 

    5 

 The Lincoln County Board of Commissioners ordains as follows: 6 

 7 

 8 

SECTION 1.  9 

Section 2 of this Ordinance are added to and made a part of LCC Chapter 2, as indicated. 10 

SECTION 2. 11 

FIREWORKS 12 

 13 

2.6000  Purpose 14 

(1) LCC 2.6000 through 2.6010 shall be known as the “Lincoln County Fireworks 15 

Ordinance,” and is adopted pursuant to the authority provided the county in ORS chapter 480 16 

and ORS 203.035.   17 

(2) The purpose of the Lincoln County Fireworks Ordinance is to: 18 

Establish a procedure for prohibiting the possession, sale and/or use of consumer fireworks 19 

to ensure the safety of the public from the danger of fire hazards. 20 

 21 

 2.6005  Definitions  22 

 (1) The words and phrases in LCC 2.6000 to 2.6010 shall have the meaning provided in 23 

ORS chapter 480. 24 

 25 

 2.6010 Fireworks Prohibition 26 

(1) The possession and/or use of consumer fireworks, as defined at ORS 480.111 27 

(Definitions for ORS 480.111 to 480.165), which shall include using, discharging, or exploding 28 

consumer fireworks, is prohibited within the unincorporated limits of Lincoln County. 29 

(2) The sale of consumer fireworks, as authorized by ORS 480.160, is prohibited within 30 

the unincorporated limits of Lincoln County.  31 

(3) Subsection 1 or 2 does not apply to a fireworks display that is issued a public display 32 

permit under ORS 480.130 to 480.150.  33 

92



 PAGE 2 - ORDINANCE # 352 
  

  
Office of Lincoln County Legal Counsel 

225 West Olive Street, Room 110 

Newport, Oregon  97365 

(541) 265-4108 

 
 

 

  

(4) Lincoln County may confiscate, destroy, remove, or have removed at the owner’s 1 

expense all fireworks in violation of this section, when necessary for the preservation of public 2 

safety. 3 

 4 

2.6015 Penalties 5 

(1) Violation of any provision of LCC 2.6000 to 2.6010 is punishable pursuant to LCC 6 

Chapter 10. 7 

 8 

 SECTION 3. 9 

 10 

This Ordinance being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 11 

health and safety, an emergency is declared to exist and this Ordinance shall take effect 12 

upon its passage. 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

  18 

 

Dated this 3rd day of January, 2024. 

 

_______________________________________ 

Casey Miller, Chair 

 

________________________________________ 

Claire Hall, Commissioner 

 

________________________________________ 

Kaety Jacobson, Commissioner 

 

 

ATTESTED TO:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

____________________________    ______________________________ 

Kathleen Kellay, Recorder     Kristin H. Yuille, County Counsel 

 

93



 

  Ord. No. 2190 2218 – Amending NMC ChapterSection 8.20.020 OffensesFireworks 1 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2190 2218 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERSECTION 8.20.020 
OF THE NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING 

NEW SECTION 8.20.020RELATED TO FIREWORKS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Newport is committed to protecting life and property from the 
dangers of wildfire; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined the use of consumer fireworks during certain 
weather or weather-related conditions can increase the risk of wildfire, and adopted 
Ordinance No. 2190 on January 3, 2022, adding a new section 8.20.020 to the Newport 
Municipal Code related to fireworks.; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined prohibiting both the use and sale of consumer 
fireworks year-round would further reduce the risk of wildfire. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The above findings are adopted in support of adding newamending Section 
8.20.020 to Chapter 8.20 (Offenses) of the Newport Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2. Section 8.20.020 will readis amended as followsset forth below (deleted 
language shown in strikethrough and language to be added is depicted with underline): 

 
 8.20.020  FIREWORKS 
 
A. By resolution of the City Council, tThe use and sale of consumer fireworks, as 
defined at ORS 480.111 (Definitions for ORS 480.111 to 480.165), which shall 
include using, discharging, or exploding, or selling consumer fireworks, may beis 
prohibited within the city limits of Newport for a specified duration based on certain 
weather or weather-related conditions. 
 
B. Subsection A. does not apply to a fireworks display that is issued a public display 
permit under ORS 480.130 to 480.150. 
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect 30 days from the date of adoption by the 
City Council. 
 
Date aAdopted by the Newport City Council: on ________, 20224. 
 
Signed by the Mayor on ________, 20224. 
 
___________________________________ 
Dean H. SawyerJan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Margaret M. HawkerErik Glover, City Recorder 

94



 

  Ord. No. 2218 – Amending NMC Section 8.20.020 Fireworks 1 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2218 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 8.20.020 OF THE 
NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO FIREWORKS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Newport is committed to protecting life and property from the 

dangers of wildfire; and 
WHEREAS, the City determined the use of consumer fireworks during certain 

weather or weather-related conditions can increase the risk of wildfire, and adopted 
Ordinance No. 2190 on January 3, 2022, adding a new section 8.20.020 to the Newport 
Municipal Code related to fireworks; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined prohibiting both the use and sale of consumer 
fireworks year-round would further reduce the risk of wildfire. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The above findings are adopted in support of amending Section 8.20.020 of 
the Newport Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2. Section 8.20.020 is amended as set forth below (deleted language shown in 
strikethrough and language to be added is depicted with underline): 

 
 8.20.020  FIREWORKS 
 
A. By resolution of the City Council, tThe use and sale of consumer fireworks, as 
defined at ORS 480.111 (Definitions for ORS 480.111 to 480.165), which shall 
include using, discharging, or exploding, or selling consumer fireworks, may be is 
prohibited within the city limits of Newport for a specified duration based on certain 
weather or weather-related conditions. 
 
B. Subsection A. does not apply to a fireworks display that is issued a public display 
permit under ORS 480.130 to 480.150. 
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect 30 days from the date of adoption by the 
City Council. 
 
Adopted by the Newport City Council on ________, 2024. 
 
Signed by the Mayor on ________, 2024. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Erik Glover, City Recorder 

95



Mayor and City Council,  
Taking away the sales of Oregon Legal fireworks will not eliminate or stem your problem of illegal fireworks and 

fires, but in fact make it worse. The majority of incidents occurring in Newport occur from fireworks that are already 
illegal in the state. The fireworks sold in Oregon do not go in the air, have loud booms, or cause fires. Banning a safe 
alternative will force patriotic celebrators to seek out more illegal fireworks. Several municipalities in our region have 
banned Oregon safe fireworks only to regret the ban. In Eugene, OR “in the first year of the ban, the city of Eugene saw a 
measurable increase in fires from previous years. Conversely, the city of Springfield, (which doesn’t have a ban) did not 
see an increase in the fires over the 4th of July. Therefore, the ban of fireworks did not demonstrate a decrease in 
potential fire activity.” The city of Bend, Oregon which banned fireworks two years ago has seen a 10 fold increase in 
calls about illegal fireworks since the Oregon legal option was eliminated. The city of Portland, Oregon had more fires 
due to fireworks this past year than any other year that Oregon legal fireworks were legal. The banning of fireworks 
drives customers to purchase illegal items.  
                I am willing to help the city with ideas of how to limit illegal fireworks and promote the use of Oregon legal 
fireworks. TNT FIREWORKS has worked with many municipalities in Oregon to determine thresholds for drought or safe 
use of fireworks as well as educating the consumers on safe use of legal fireworks. The city of Newport is a destination 
for the 4th of July much like every other city on the coast. The biggest issue is enforcement. Education is the key. 
Banning Oregon safe fireworks gives no legal alternative to people that want to celebrate the freedom that the 4th of 
July stands for as well as just driving them to the next municipality for purchase. If the city believes that conditions are 
too dry, the ability to ban the use is already in the statutes. Please reconsider putting a law on the books in Newport that 
will do nothing to quell illegal fireworks and will only hurt people that want to celebrate safely. Please do not put a law 
on the books that cannot be enforced. Let’s try and work together before banning Oregon legal fireworks. Increase and 
fine people that are disobeying the law rather than punishing the legal safe use of celebrating what our nation is 
founded on, Freedom.  

Finally, having a public hearing on an evening where travel is treacherous and prevents people from testifying in 
person seems disingenuous at the least even more so if public testimony cannot be submitted online. Knowing there will 
be opposition to the ban and no one has spoken out publicly at a meeting in favor of a ban is extremely concerning but 
seems as if eliminating freedom of people wanting to celebrate freedom safely is the goal.    
 
It ought to be commemorated, as the Day of Deliverance by solemn Acts of Devotion to God Almighty. It ought to be 
solemnized with Pomp and Parade, with Shews, Games, Sports, Guns, Bells, Bonfires and Illuminations from one End of 
this Continent to the other from this Time forward forever more. – John Adams on how July 4th should be celebrated 
 
 

Jason Trout 
Regional Manager 
American Promotional Events Inc 
dba TNT FIREWORKS 
O:503-653-9655 
O:253-922-0800 
C:503-545-7948 

 
TNTFIREWORKS.COM                          CELEBRATESAFELY.ORG 
 

96



From: Kate Kelly <kellykat777@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2024 1:59 PM 
To: Public comment <publiccomment@newportoregon.gov> 
Cc: Kate Kelly <kellykat777@gmail.com> 
Subject: Fierework Ban 
 

[WARNING] This message comes from an external organization. Be careful of embedded links.  

 
 

The City Council is considering whether to follow the lead of the county in banning 

fireworks.   

  For consideration: 

1)  Who doesn't love the amazing, beautiful 4th of July displays almost everywhere? 

 2)  We all deserve to feel safe and respected in our communities. 

 Some scenarios to consider in support of a ban 

  1) Imagine you are a new parent of a fussy infant that you are exhausted from caring 

for.  Finally the baby goes to sleep...until there is a loud boom that wakes the infant 

up.  You are ready to pull out your hair at the very least if not something more dramatic 

 2) Perhaps you or someone you know is a veteran with PTSD.  The very sound of fireworks 

sends you heading for cover as you shake remembering the horrific circumstances of war 

 3) The Eagle Creek Fire in the Columbia Gorge is a huge example of carelessness with 

fireworks.  It was started by a kid who thought it would be cool to toss one into the 

forest.  4800 burned acres, untold hours by responders and many $$$ were the result of 

this careless act. 

4)Then there are the multitide of pets that cower in fear after each boom.   

They just don't understand that they are not in danger.  Try and convince them of 

that.  Also many small children are traumitized by them. 

5)  Negative environmental impacts. 

   .They contribute to air pollution 

   . Folks leave trash everywhere 

   .They smell 

   . Their packaging enforces racial sterotypes 

   . Personal property damage 

6) Physical and psychological injuries 

    There are reported incidents of folks losing fingers and even hands from handling 

fireworks.  Is it really worth the risk? 

   

    These are reasons to ban them for sure.  However there are some risk/benefit issues to 

address: 

  Will a ban spawn a black market of illegal fireworks that are more dangerous.? 

97



   How will a ban be enforced?  There is already an Oregon law that fines those who use 

illegal fireworks and endanger physical and personal property. 

How often is this enforced? Will the City have the resources to enforce this? 

  However, even considering those caveats, I support a ban following in the County 

footsteps.  We all deserve to feel safe.  And we can still enjoy the fabulous displays on the 

4th with experienced handlers within a known time frame for folks to decide if they want 

to participate or not.   

   Thanks for your consideration 

     Kate Kelly 

     211 NE San Bay O Circle 

      Newport, Or 97365 
 

98



[WARNING] This message comes from an external organization. Be careful of embedded links. 
 
________________________________ 
 
City of Newport, OR :: Contact Us - Web Form 
 
The following information was submitted on 1/16/2024 at 1:46:09 PM 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
To: Public Comment 
Name: Lynn Walser-Clark 
Email: pdxwordsmith1776@gmail.com 
Phone: 5038915323 
Subject: Fireworks regulation 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Message: Please read this into the City Council meeting minutes for tonight's meeting: 
 
Comment on regulating fireworks in the City of Newport 
 
I grew up in the Rocky Mountains of Montana. Rodeos and fireworks went hand-in-hand there in the 
1950s. We put firecrackers inside tin cans and watched them shoot into the sky. We built roads for our 
Matchbox cars by "denotating" dynamite (firecrackers) in dirt "mountains" to clear the way. Hours every 
day were spent in our fun fantasy world around 4th of July each year. That was then. This is now. 
 
The size and strength of fireworks and firecrackers has increased enormously since those early days. An 
M-80 firecracker has 3.5 grams of flash powder (which is more powerful than the old black powder 
firecrackers). It not only is louder; it is much more dangerous. 
 
As an adult now, I'm very aware of the trauma and damage firecrackers and fireworks cause. My sister is 
a Viet Nam Air Force vet. She and many of our service members and veterans experience extreme PTSD 
from fireworks. Many of our animals become traumatized by these explosions and need to be 
medicated to reduce their extreme terror. 
 
These are only part of the issues with fireworks and firecrackers. A further impact is to our environment 
and community. House fires and wildfires caused by these devices account for millions of dollars in 
damages each year. In 2021 alone, the National Fire Prevention association estimated damage to 
property alone exceeded $59 million. 
 
Newport's proposed regulation points our city in the right direction. However, I believe banning the sale 
and possession of fireworks is not enough without making it ILLEGAL to possess them. We are a vacation 
destination. Without making possession illegal, we'll just have tourists (and locals so inclined) purchase 
them out of the area, transport them to Newport, and continue the cycle of disruption. Such a statute, 
with appropriate penalties, is the only way to effectively enforce such a ban. 

99



100



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   
Public Hearing and Consideration of Changes to Chapter 4.15 Vehicles for Hire, to 
Incorporate Provisions for Temporary Taxi Drivers for the Seafood and Wine Festival.  
 
Background: 
In May of 2023, the City Council passed Ordinance 2201 which incorporated rideshare 
services for the City of Newport, and eliminated a number of previous requirements for 
taxi companies to operate in the City of Newport. The provisions for temporary taxis was 
removed with the thought that rideshare companies like Uber or Lyft would be operating 
in Newport by the time the 2024 Seafood and Wine Festival  took place. At this point, Lyft  
has not applied for a business license to operate in the city. Uber’s license is currently 
being processed. Assistant City Manager/City Recorder, Erik Glover, is contacting Uber 
to determine what the process would be for individuals to participate in rideshare services 
through Uber for this year’s Seafood and Wine Festival. Because of the tight timetable, 
we are suggesting that the City Council permit provisions for temporary taxis for this 
upcoming event. We have received a number of concerns from people who have 
historically provided these services. As of this point, we are unsure of the feasibility of 
adequate services through Uber in time for the event.  
 
Draft language has been developed which would permit provisions to be utilized by the 
City for these services. The temporary permits would require a police background check. 
As you may recall, our liability insurer recommended against relying on background 
checks conducted by the City for taxicab drivers. This provision was  dropped from the 
Newport Municipal Code at the time the ordinance was approved. In this particular case, 
if temporary taxi drivers are going to be authorized, then there is no other good alternative 
than to have the people that are obtaining the temporary permits request a background 
check prior to the Police Department issuing a temporary permit for the Festival. 
 
We are not recommending adoption of this ordinance tonight, but wanted to give the public 
an opportunity to comment on this matter and get direction from Council as to whether 
Council would like this ordinance ready for the February 5 City Council meeting for 
potential adoption. In this particular case, we would include an emergency provision so 
that the ordinance would take effect immediately in order to be effective for the 2024 
Festival.  
 

  

101



Recommendation: 
I recommend that the Mayor conduct public hearing on changes to chapter 4.15 Vehicles 
for Hire that would provide temporary taxicab driver permits for the 2024 Seafood and 
Wine Festival  which takes place February 22 through the February 25, 2024.  
 
Following the public hearing, and considering any comments, made, I further recommend 
the City Council consider the following  motion: 
 
I move to direct the City Manager and City Attorney to draft an ordinance amending 
chapter 4.15 Vehicles for Hire to provide temporary taxicab driver permits through the 
Newport Police Department for the 2024 Seafood and Wine Festival .  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
  
Alternatives:  
Do not proceed with amending the ordinance which would require temporary taxi drivers 
to go through a transportation network companies such as Uber, modify the provisions 
regarding temporary taxicab drivers, or as suggested by the City Council.   
   
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

102



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 134 

 

 

 
CHAPTER 4.15 VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

 
4.15.005 Purpose 

 
The purpose of this chapter is to provide for and promote 
the safety and welfare of the general public by regulating 
vehicles for hire within the City of Newport, as authorized 
by ORS 221.485 and ORS 221.495. Nothing contained 
in this chapter is intended or shall be construed to create 
any liability on the part of the City or its employees for 
any injury or damage related to any provisions of this 
chapter, or by reason or in consequence of any act or 
omission in connection with the implementation or 
enforcement of this chapter on the part of the City or its 
employees. 

 
4.15.010 Definitions 

As used in this chapter: 

A. "City" means the City of Newport, Oregon. 
 

B. "Driver" means any individual natural person who 
operates a vehicle for hire within the City. 

 
C. "License" means the business license with 

endorsement issued by the City to a Taxi Company 
or TNC authorizing the company to engage in vehicle 
for hire services within the City. 

 
D. "Person" means and includes any individual natural 

person, partnership, corporation, unincorporated 
association, or other entity. 

 
E. "Taxi Company" means any person or entity 

operating one or more vehicles for hire, other than as 
a driver, regardless of the legal form of the entity and 
regardless of whether the taxis so operated are 
owned by the company, or leased, or owned by 
individual members of an entity. Taxi Companies do 
not include TNCs. 

 
F. "Transportation Network Company" or "TNC" means 

a company or other entity that exclusively uses an 

103



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 135 

 

 

Internet-enabled platform or application to connect 
passengers with vehicles for hire and/or TNC drivers. 

 
G. "Vehicle for hire" means any vehicle used for the 

ground transportation of passengers for 
compensation within the City, including taxis and 
Transportation Network Company (''TNC") vehicles, 
as well as animal-drawn vehicles and vehicles 
powered by humans, including but not limited to 
vehicles such as pedicabs. The following motor 
vehicles are excluded from the definition of vehicle for 
hire and are exempt from this chapter: 

1. School buses operated to transport students; 
 
2. Vehicles used by nonprofit transportation 

providers solely for elderly or handicapped 
persons; 

 
3. Vehicles used to provide courtesy transportation 

at no charge to and from parking lots, hotels, 
rental offices, retirement homes, and the like; 

 
4. Vehicles used to provide Ambulance Service. 

 
4.15.020 License, Application, and Fees 

A. The City may issue a License to a Taxi Company or 
TNC if the company certifies on a form acceptable to 
the City that it is in compliance with all requirements 
of this chapter, including but not limited to driver and 
insurance requirements, operating standards, and 
any other requirements of this chapter or the City, and 
actually meets all applicable standards and 
requirements. 

 
B. The City may include conditions, restrictions, or 

special provisions in the License related to routes, 
times of operation, or lighting if necessitated by the 
vehicles or operations of the Taxi Company or TNC. 
The City may waive or lessen the requirements of this 
chapter if the type of vehicles or operations of a Taxi 
Company or TNC render the requirements 

104



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 136 

 

 

unreasonable or unnecessary, in the sole discretion 
of the City. 

 
C. The License issued under this chapter is valid for one 

year, and will expire on June 30 of each calendar 
year, and may be renewed from year to year. Any 
renewal must be approved by the City prior to the 
expiration date in order for the Taxi Company or TNC 
to continue providing vehicle for hire services within 
the City. 

D. The application fee shall be based on the number of 
drivers operating for the Taxi Company or TNC at the 
time of the application, and shall be intended to 
account for the City's costs in administering the 
requirements of this chapter. The fee amounts shall 
be set by City Council resolution as part of the City's 
fee schedule. 

E. The application fee shall be paid to the City at the time 
of submitting both initial and renewal License 
applications. 

 
F. All Taxi Companies and TNCs must comply with the 

City's business registration requirements. 
 
4.15.030 Driver Requirements 

A. All drivers shall be at least 21 years of age and shall 
possess a valid driver's license, proof of motor 
vehicle registration, and proof of current automobile 
liability insurance that meets the requirements of this 
chapter and state law. 

 
B. Every Taxi Company or TNC shall maintain accurate, 

current records for all drivers employed by, 
contracting with, or affiliated with the company, 
including all drivers accessing a company's digital 
network to operate in the City. The records shall 
include the driver's name, date of birth, address, 
social security number, criminal background check 
results, driver's license information, motor vehicle 
registration, and automobile insurance. These 
records will be made available to the City promptly on 
request. 

 
C. Prior to permitting a person to operate as a driver, and 

105



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 137 

 

 

annually thereafter, the Taxi Company or TNC shall 
conduct, or have a qualified third party conduct, a 
criminal background check. The criminal background 
check shall include a search of no less than seven 
years of database history, unless prohibited by law, 
in which case the duration of the search shall be the 
maximum number of years permitted by law. The 
criminal background check shall include local, state, 
and national criminal history databases and all 
accessible sex offender registries. Any person who is 
on a sex offender registry or has a record of a felony 
conviction within the previous seven years may not 
act as a driver. A record of a conviction of any of the 
following within the previous seven years will also 
disqualify a person from acting as a driver: crimes 
involving driving under the influence of alcohol or 
controlled substances, sexual offenses, or crimes 
involving physical harm or attempted physical harm 
to a person. The company or its agent shall maintain 
records of a criminal background check for a period 
of at least two years. For purposes of this section, the 
term "conviction" includes convictions, bail 
forfeitures, and other final adverse findings. 

 
D.  A Taxi Company or TNC must revoke a driver's 

authority to operate as a driver for their company and 
inform the City if it finds at any time that the standards 
set forth in this section are no longer being met by the 
driver. The company shall only reinstate a driver upon 
a finding by the company that all standards are again 
being met by the driver. 

 
4.15.040 Insurance Requirements 

A. For all required insurance, Taxi Companies and 
TNCs shall provide certificates of insurance naming 
the City, its officers, agents, and employees as 
additional insured parties and give at least 30 
calendar days' notice to the City before a policy is 
canceled, expires, or has any reduction in coverage. 

B. Insurance requirements of this section shall be 
satisfied by insurance issued by a licensed insurer or 
an eligible surplus lines insurer in the State of 
Oregon. 

 
C. The insurance limits for both TNCs and Taxi 

106



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 138 

 

 

Companies are subject to statutory changes as to 
maximum limits of liability imposed on municipalities 
of the State of Oregon during the permit's term, other 
statutory changes, or other changes deemed 
necessary by the City. 

 
D. The adequacy of insurance coverage is subject to the 

review and approval of the City. 
 

E. Every Taxi Company and TNC shall maintain 
continuous, uninterrupted coverage for the duration 
of the License and any operations in the City. Any 
lapse in insurance coverage, even if it is later 
backdated by the insurance company, is a violation of 
this chapter. 

 
F. Both Taxi Companies and TNCs shall secure and 

maintain commercial general liability insurance with 
limits of not less than $1 million per occurrence and 
$2 million aggregate for claims arising out of, but not 
limited to, bodily injury and property damage incurred 
in the course of operating in the City. 

 
G. Taxi Companies operating any motor vehicles shall 

secure and maintain commercial automobile liability 
insurance covering those vehicles, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1 million per occurrence 
for claims arising out of, but not limited to, bodily 
injury and property damage incurred in the course of 
operating in the City. 

 
H. TNC Service Periods Defined: 

1. Period 1: The TNC Driver has logged into the App 
or is otherwise connected to the TNC's digital 
network, but has not yet accepted a request for a 
ride from a passenger. For example, the App is 
open and the driver is waiting for a match. 

 
2. Period 2: A passenger match has been accepted, 

but the passenger is not yet picked up (for 
example, the driver is on the way to pick up the 
passenger). 

 
3. Period 3: The passenger is in the vehicle. 

107



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 139 

 

 

I. Upon City request or as part of an application, TNCs 
shall provide proof of current, valid insurance for City 
approval covering all affiliated TNC Drivers and 
vehicles for hire operating for such company and 
satisfying the minimum requirements of Periods 1, 2, 
and 3. 

J. All TNCs shall maintain and provide the City with 
proof of the following automobile liability coverages: 

 
1. Primary insurance coverage during Period 1 with 

minimum liability limits of $50,000 per person for 
death and injury, $100,000 per incident for death 
and injury, and $25,000 for property damage, plus 
any other state compulsory coverage. 

 
2. Primary insurance coverage during Periods 2 and 

3 with minimum liability limits of $1 million in 
combined single limit coverage for death, 
personal injury and property damage per incident; 
and $1 million in combined single limit 
under/uninsured motorist coverage for death, 
personal injury and property damage per incident. 

3. The required automobile liability insurance shall 
specifically recognize the driver's provision of 
TNC and vehicle for hire services and shall 
comply with the laws of the State of Oregon and/or 
other applicable governing bodies. 

 
K. TNC drivers shall be responsible for maintaining 

all personal automobile liability insurance 
required by State law. 

 
4.15.050 Operational Requirements 

A. TNCs shall maintain records of all trips made by all 
drivers for at least one year from the date of the trip. 
The data may be aggregated and/or anonymized, 
and shall include, at minimum, the locations by ZIP 
code of trip origination and destination, vehicle miles 
traveled, trip origination and completion times, trip 
duration, and passenger wait times from a driver's 
acceptance of a request to passenger pick-up. The 
City may require a TNC to enter a data sharing 
agreement in order to receive a License. 

108



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 140 

 

 

B. All vehicles operating for Taxi Companies shall be 
clearly marked as such and shall include the Taxi 
Company name, phone number, and a vehicle 
identification number in plain sight. Vehicles operated 
solely for TNC services shall be marked with a 
customary "trade dress" type of identification, such as 
a sticker or placard. The TNC's software application 
or website shall display for the passenger the make, 
model, and license plate number of the TNC vehicle. 

 
DC. TNCs may not accept street hails, and may only 

accept rides arranged through a TNC's digital 
network. 

 
ED. Taxi Companies and TNCs shall implement and 

maintain at all times a zero-tolerance policy on the 
use of drugs or alcohol applicable to all drivers 
employed by or affiliated with the company while 
providing vehicle for hire services. Companies shall 
provide notice of the zero-tolerance policy on their 
website and/or have it clearly displayed in each 
vehicle. The notice must include contact information 
to report a complaint about a driver for possible 
violation of policy. A company shall immediately 
suspend a driver upon receipt of a passenger 
complaint alleging a violation of the zero-tolerance 
policy, for at least the duration of the investigation of 
the complaint. 

E. Taxi Companies and TNCs must provide reasonable 
accommodations to passengers with disabilities, 
including passengers accompanied by a service 
animal, passengers with hearing and visual 
impairments, and passengers with mobility devices, 
and must comply with all applicable requirements of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
4.15.060 Audit 

A. The City may audit Taxi Company and TNC records 
up to twice per calendar year to review compliance 
with this chapter. An audit shall occur at a time and 
location designated by the City. In addition to an 
audit, the City may require a company to produce 
records related to an investigation of a specific 
allegation of a violation of this chapter or other 
applicable law, or to evaluate a complaint. Production 

109



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 141 

 

 

of records for an investigation or to evaluate a 
complaint does not count toward the twice-per-year 
auditing limit. 

 
4.15.065  Temporary Taxicab Driver Permit 
 

A. “Temporary Taxicab Driver Permit” means a permit 
issued to an operator for a special community event, 
such as the annual Seafood and Wine Festival. A 
temporary permit will be effective only for the special 
event for the particular year of the permit application 
from 12:01 A.M. on the first day of the event and 
ending at 11:59 P.M. the last day of the event. 
 

B. It is unlawful for any person to operate a temporary 
taxicab within the City without a temporary taxicab 
driver permit issued by the Police Chief upon receipt 
of a completed permit application and in accordance 
with the applicable driver, insurance, and operational 
requirements of this chapter, as set forth and adopted 
by the City Manager pursuant to the administrative 
authority provided in section 4.15.080(B) of this 
chapter. A temporary taxicab driver permit may be 
issued only if the applicable requirements are 
adopted and in effect. 

 
4.15.070 Revocation and Suspension 

 
A. In addition to any other enforcement options provided 

by this chapter, the City may suspend, revoke, or 
refuse to issue a License if the Taxi Company or TNC 
has violated or not met any of the provisions of this 
chapter. A violation includes any failure to meet or 
maintain any of the requirements or qualifications set 
forth in this chapter, including the procedures and 
requirements for obtaining and maintaining a 
License, as well as the making of any materially false 
statement or representation. A decision by the City 
Manager to suspend, revoke, or refuse to issue a 
License may be appealed to the City Council as 
provided in NMC 4.05.075. 

 
4.15.080 Violation - Enforcement 

A. Violation of any provision of this chapter is a civil 
infraction and is subject to a civil penalty as provided 
in NMC 1.50.010. 

 

110



Newport Municipal Code 

Index Page 142 

 

 

B. The City has the administrative authority to 
implement and enforce this chapter, including 
adoption of rules, regulations, or policies. This 
provision shall not be construed to abrogate or limit 
the jurisdiction or authority of the Newport Police 
Department or any law enforcement agency. 

(Chapter 4.15 adopted by Ordinance No. 1935 on September 4, 2007; 
effective October 4, 2007) 

(Chapter 4.15 repealed and re-enacted by Ordinance No. 2058; adopted on 
January 20, 2015; effective February 19, 2015) 

(Chapter 4.15 repealed and replaced by Ordinance No. 2201; adopted on 
May 01, 2023; effective July 01, 2023) 

111



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   
Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Resolution No. 4007, a  Resolution Establishing 
Fees for Payment in Lieu of Providing Off-Street Parking Spaces for New Developments 
in Metered Areas. 
 
Background: 
City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2215 on October 16, 2023, to reduce the minimum 
off-street parking requirements for new development or redevelopment in special parking 
areas where public parking is managed with meters or combination of meters and permits. 
There are three special parking areas in the city which include Nye Beach, City Center, 
and the Bayfront. These are locations where businesses and residents rely upon public 
parking to meet their  needs. The Code provision provides that off-street parking 
requirements for new development or redevelopment are reduced in areas where public 
parking is managed with meters or a combination of parking meters and permits. At this 
point, the only area that meets these criteria is the Bayfront. 
 
A fee schedule has been developed and reviewed by both the Parking Committee and 
the Planning Commission for development in special areas where parking meters are 
utilized, a development may pay a one-time fee in lieu of providing off-street parking 
required in an NMC chapter 14.14, if the development elects not to develop parking. They 
would pay a fee of zero dollars for required parking spaces 1 to 5. If the development was 
required to provide 6 to 10 spaces, then those spaces would require payment of $5,000, 
if the developer chose not to provide those spaces. The scale goes up to $7,500 a space 
for 11 to 15 spaces, and $10,000 a space for 16 through 20 spaces.  
 
For example, if a development required the creation of 20 spaces, the developer could 
opt to pay the in-lieu fees instead of developing parking spaces, which would amount to 
the following:  
 

Additional Demand The Fee The Cost 
1-5 spaces $0 $0 

6-10 spaces $5,000 each space $25,000 
11-15 spaces $7,500 each space $37,500 

16-20 spaces $10,000 each space $50,000 
TOTAL Cost for 20 spaces               $112,500 

  
  

112



Recommendation: 
I recommend that the Mayor conduct a public hearing on Resolution No. 4007, a 
resolution setting fees for payment in lieu of providing off-street parking spaces with new 
development in metered areas.  
 
Following the public hearing, and considering any comments made, I recommend the 
following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 4007, a resolution setting fees for payment in lieu of 
providing off-street parking spaces with new development in metered areas. 
  
Fiscal Effects: 
The fees collected by developers opting not to develop parking spaces in community 
areas will be used by the City's Parking Fund to support parking enforcement and to 
improve parking options in special areas.  
 
Alternatives:  
Modify the resolution or as suggested by the City Council.   
   
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

113



Page 1 of 1 

       
       
   
 
             
   

                Date: January 16, 2024 
 

 
Title: Public Hearing and Possible Adoption of Resolution No. 4007, a Resolution Establishing 
Fees for Payment in Lieu of Providing Off-Street Parking Spaces for Development in Metered Areas 
 
Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director 
 
Recommended Motion:  I move adoption of Resolution No. 4007, a resolution establishing fees for 
payment in lieu of providing off-street parking spaces for development in metered areas. 
 
Background Information:  Ordinance No. 2215, adopted October 16, 2023, amended Title XIV of 
the Newport Municipal Code to reduce minimum off-street parking requirements for new 
development or redevelopment in special parking areas where public parking is managed with 
meters or a combination of parking meters and permits. 
 
The term “special areas” includes portions of Nye Beach, City Center, and the Bayfront where 
businesses and residents rely upon public parking to meet their needs.  The geographic boundary 
of each “special area” is defined under NMC Section 14.14.100.  Ordinance No. 2215 provides 
that uses in special areas where parking meters are deployed may pay a fee in lieu of providing 
the off-street parking otherwise required, provided the parking demand does not exceed 20 
spaces, with such fee being set by Council resolution.  A sample fee structure has been vetted 
with the City of Newport Parking Advisory Committee and Planning Commission and was included 
with the supporting materials for Ordinance No. 2215.  Meters will be installed within the bayfront 
special area on or after January 20, 2024, creating conditions where an in lieu fee option will exist 
for persons developing property; therefore, it is timely for the fee structure to be established. 
 
Revenue generated by payment of in lieu parking fees will be directed to the City’s Parking Fund 
where it may be used to support parking enforcement and to improve public parking options in 
special areas.  New Section 14.14.100(D) established with Ordinance No. 2215 provides that 
“parking district business license annual fees” will phase out in special areas where payment for 
the use of public parking is required.  This means that bayfront businesses will no longer be paying 
an annual business license surcharge for parking.  With that surcharge, businesses that 
redeveloped or expanded could generate a demand for up to 5 additional parking spaces without 
having to provide them off-street.  That same principal is built into the proposed in-lieu fee 
structure. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  There are no fiscal impacts associated with this amendment. 
 
Alternatives:  Request revisions to the resolution, forgo adoption of the resolution, or as  
suggested by Council. 
 
Attachments:   
Draft Resolution No. 4007 
Ordinance No. 2215 
Special Area Map 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

114



 

 

 Res. No. 4007 – Fees for Payment In-Lieu of Providing Off-Street Parking Spaces 1 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4007 
 

A RESOLUTION SETTING FEES FOR PAYMENT 
IN LIEU OF PROVIDING OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES 

WITH NEW DEVELOPMENT IN METERED AREAS 
 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2023, the Newport City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2215, 
which amended Title XIV of the Newport Municipal Code to reduce minimum off-street parking 
requirements for new development in special areas where public parking is managed with meters 
or a combination of parking meters and permits; and 

 
WHEREAS, the term “special areas” includes portions of Nye Beach, City Center, and the 

Bayfront where businesses and residents rely upon public parking to meet their needs, the 
geographic boundaries of which are defined in NMC Section 14.14.100; and  

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2215 provides that uses in special areas where parking meters 

are deployed may pay a fee in lieu of providing the off-street parking otherwise required, provided 
the parking demand does not exceed 20 spaces, with such fee being set by Council resolution; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, a sample fee structure has been vetted with the City of Newport Parking 

Advisory Committee and Planning Commission and was included with the supporting materials 
for Ordinance No. 2215; and 

 
WHEREAS, meters will be installed within the bayfront special area in February of 2024, 

creating conditions where an in lieu fee option will exist for persons developing property; 
therefore, it is timely for an in lieu fee structure to be established with this resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, revenues generated by payment of in lieu parking fees will be directed to the 

City’s Parking Fund where they may be used to support parking enforcement and to improve 
public parking options in special areas. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. In Lieu Fees.  New development in special areas where public parking meters are 

utilized, in all or part of the special area, may pay a one-time fee in lieu of providing off-street 

parking required in NMC Chapter 14.14.  Such fee shall be assessed on a per stall basis as 

follows: 

 

Additional Demand   Fee 

 

1 to 5 spaces     $0 ea. 

6 to 10 spaces    $5,000 ea. 

11 to 15 spaces    $7,500 ea. 

16 to 20 spaces    $10,000 ea. 

115



 

 

 Res. No. 4007 – Fees for Payment In-Lieu of Providing Off-Street Parking Spaces 2 

 

Section 2.  Periodic Fee Adjustments.  The fees set forth herein are to be evaluated and may be 

adjusted on an annual basis.  Inflationary adjustments to the fees shall be made at least once 

every five years using the Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for Urban 

Consumers (CPI-U). 

 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Newport this 29th day of January, 2024. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Erik Glover, City Recorder 

116



11
7



118



11
9



120



12
1



122



12
3



124



12
5



126



12
7



128



12
9



130



13
1



132



13
3



134



P-1

P-1

R-2

R-4

R-3 R-4

P-1

C-2
R-2

P-1

P-1

R-2

R-2

C-1

R-3

P-1

R-2

C-3

C-1

R-4

P-1
P-1

P-1
C-1

P-1
P-1

C-2

R-1

R-2

R-1
P-3

R-4

R-4
W-1W-1

W-2

P-2 W-1
W-1

R-4

C-2

C-2

R-4

P-3

P-1
P-1

P-1

P-1

C-3

P-1

R-1

W-2

P-1

R-3

P-1

R-4

P-1
C-1 W-2

P-1

W-2

R-4

W-1

W-2

P-1SW BAYLEY ST

NW
 O

CE
AN

VIE
W 

DR

NW 8TH ST

SW ABBEY ST

SW 2ND ST

SW COAST HW

NW
 C

OA
ST

 S
T

W OLIVE ST

SW
 7T

H S
T

SE MOORE DR

NW 6TH ST

SW HARBOR DR

NW 3RD ST

SW HURBERT ST

NE
 EA

DS
 S

T

NE
 C

OO
S S

T

NE 7TH STNE
 BE

NT
ON

 S
T

SE 2ND ST

NE 3RD ST

NW
 N

YE
 ST

SW BAY BV

N 
CO

AS
T H

W

NW 11TH ST

NW 15TH ST

NW
 S

PR
IN

G 
ST

NE 1ST ST
E OLIVE ST

SW
 9T

H S
T

NE 6TH ST

NE 11TH ST

NE 12TH ST

SE BAY BV

SE 10
TH ST

SW NATERLIN DR

SW
 E

LIZ
AB

ET
H 

ST SW
 N

EF
F W

Y

SE 4TH ST

SW
 C

OA
ST

 S
T

SW
 N

YE
 ST

SE
 M

AR
IN

E
SC

IEN
CE

 D
R

NE
 H

AR
NE

Y S
T

SW
 C

AN
YO

N 
WY

SW HATFIELD DR

NE YAQUINA
HEIGHTS DR

HIGHWAY 20

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet ¯This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It

includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its compilation or use and users of this
information are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department.

City of  Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway              Phone:1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365                    Fax:1.541.574.0644

Image Taken July 2018
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos

Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR 

Zoning Map with Bayfront, City Center, & Nye Beach
Districts Shown With White Cross-Hatch (NMC 14.14.100)

135



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   
Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Resolution No. 4004, a  Resolution Providing 
for a Supplemental Budget and Making Appropriations/Total Requirement Changes for 
Fiscal Year  2023 – 2024. 
 
Background: 
Periodically through the course of the year, the City Council considers and adopts 
supplemental budgets to adjust various budget line items based on changes that have 
occurred since the initial budget was adopted in June 2003. The City Council has made 
various adjustments by previous Council actions that are reflected in this resolution, as 
well. The changes not previously approved by Council that are included in the 
supplemental budget are outlined in the attached report from Finance Director, Steve 
Baugher. This includes the beginning balance adjustment and closure of the Betty 
Wheeler Field Light project with $21,864 reverting back to the General Fund. The 
supplemental budget  includes recognition of three small grants received by the Library 
to cover program costs. The changes include an increase in Community Development 
appropriations for unanticipated geological professional fees in the amount of $2500, 
cubicles for staff in City Hall at a cost of $16,768, and an appropriation of $6,000 for 
nonmotorized boat launch signs in South Beach with General and Room Tax Funds to 
the Parks project. The amount of $438 is being transferred from the Street Repair and 
Improvement project to the SE Harney Street and Sidewalk and SE Moore Drive projects. 
The amount of $39,886 been appropriated for the inflow pump station PLC replacement 
that was started in Fiscal Year 2022-2023 from the Wastewater Fund. The appropriation 
for this wastewater centrifuge re-build was increased by $54,300 to reflect higher 
equipment costs, and the wastewater crane truck budget which was carried over from the 
2022-2023 budget year is appropriated at $156,000. 
 
One significant change is the creation of an additional full-time equivalent position as an 
accounting technician in Finance. This position is critical to address a number of the 
concerns that have been expressed by the Budget Committee and City Council in the 
collection of revenues for the City. It is anticipated that a portion of these additional costs 
will be recovered by increased collection, by having a position dedicated for this purpose. 
The amount of $50,995 is being added to the Finance Department budget to fund this 
position. The other specific changes can be found in the attached report provided by 
Finance Director, Steve Baugher.  
 
  

136



Recommendation: 
I recommend that the Mayor conduct a public hearing on Resolution No. 4004, a 
resolution providing for a supplemental budget and making appropriation/total 
requirement changes for Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024.  
 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 4004, a resolution providing for a supplemental budget 
and making appropriation/total requirement changes for Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
As outlined in the attached reports. 
 
Alternatives:  
Modify the supplemental budget or as suggested by the City Council.  
   
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

137



 

 

       
       

   
 
         Meeting Date: 01/29/24 
       

 
 

 
 
Title:  Resolution No. 4004 providing for a supplemental budget and making 
appropriation/total requirement changes for the 2023-24 Fiscal Year. 
 
Prepared by:  Steve Baugher 
  
Recommended Motion: I move to adopt Resolution No. 4004, a resolution adopting a 
supplemental budget for fiscal year 2023-24 and making appropriation increases and 
changes for fiscal year 2023-24, incorporating Attachment "A" as part of the resolution. 
 
Background Information: The supplemental budget presented to the City Council this 
evening contains adjustments to various funds as recommended by City staff based on 
their review of their budgets for the current fiscal year 2023-24.  Other budget 
adjustments are noted as each fund is detailed.  As noted below, some of these 
adjustments have been approved by the City Council.  The details are as follows: 
 
Items in Supplemental not approved by Council in previous meetings: 
 
The beginning fund balances have been adjusted for all funds to the 06/30/23 audited 
balances, which includes a beginning balance adjustment to the Betty Wheeler Park 
field light replacement project (21012).  Transfer $21,864 of unused portion of project 
21012 to the General fund and close project.  Record three small grants and 
reimbursements received by various sources to cover additional Library program costs.  
Create one FTE accounting technician for the Finance Department.  Increase 
Community Development appropriations for unanticipated geologic professional fees 
($2,500) and cubicles for staff ($16,768).  Appropriate $6,000 for installation of non-
motorized boat launch signs in South Beach with General fund and Room Tax funds.  
Transfer $438 from street repair and improvement program (project 25-23010) to SE 
Harney St Sidewalk from SE Moore Dr to Yaquina View Elementary (project 21019).  
Appropriate $39,886 for influent pump station PLC replacement that was started in the 
2022-23 budget year in the Wastewater fund.  Increase appropriation by $54,300 for the 
Wastewater centrifuge rebuild due to higher equipment cost.  Appropriate $156,000 for 
the Wastewater crane truck budgeted in the 2022-23 budget year, which includes an 
increase in the cost of the crane truck. 
 
General Fund (101): 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

138



 

 

Transfer $176,231 from contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 
06/30/23 audit balance.  Received $2,000 from Oregon Community Foundation, $1,762 
from Envision Ware, and $120 from Library Advisory Boards to cover additional Library 
program costs.  Transfer $21,864 of unused portion of Betty Wheeler Park field light 
replacement project (21012) to contingency and close project.  Create one FTE 
accounting technician to process business licenses, parking permits, room tax, accounts 
receivable, and property liens/collections for half a budget year.  Increase Community 
Development appropriations for unanticipated geologic professional fees ($2,500) and 
cubicles for staff ($16,768) from contingency.  Transfer $100,000 from reserve to 
Oceanview Drive slide and storm emergency repair (project 25-23070), which was 
approved by Council on 12/21/23.  Transfer $3,000 for installation of non-motorized boat 
launch signs in South Beach from contingency.  Transfer an additional $21,000 for 
repair of Frank Wade Park Tennis/Pickleball Court repair (project #22024) from 
contingency, which was approved by Council on 10/02/23. 
 
Recreation Fund (201): 
 
Transfer $95,581 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Public Parking Fund (211): 
 
Transfer $1,096 from contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Housing Fund (212): 
 
Transfer $120,933 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Airport Fund (220): 
 
Transfer $89,470 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Room Tax Fund (230): 
 
Transfer $56,386 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance.  Appropriate an additional $242,240 to the Discover Newport program 
from reserve, which was approved by Council on 11/06/23.  Transfer $3,000 for 
installation of non-motorized boat launch signs in South Beach from contingency.  
Transfer an additional $21,000 for repair of Frank Wade Park Tennis/Pickleball Court 
repair (project #22024) from contingency, which was approved by Council on 10/02/23. 
 
Building Inspection Fund (240): 
 

139



 

 

Transfer $12,373 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Street Fund (251): 
 
Transfer $13,393 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Line Undergrounding Fund (252): 
 
Transfer $15,035 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
SDC Fund (253): 
 
Transfer $167,783 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Agate Beach Closure Fund (254): 
 
Transfer $17,478 from contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Debt Service – Water Fund (301): 
 
Transfer $527 to reserve to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 audit 
balance. 
 
Debt Service – Wastewater Fund (302): 
 
Transfer $17,149 to reserve to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 audit 
balance. 
 
Debt Service – Governmental Fund (303): 
 
Transfer $1,534 to reserve to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 audit 
balance. 
 
Debt Service – Stormwater Fund (305): 
 
Transfer $1,826 to reserve to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 audit 
balance. 
 
GO Debt Service – Proprietary Fund (351): 
 
Transfer $157,461 to reserve to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 audit 
balance. 

140



 

 

 
GO Debt Service – Governmental Fund (352): 
 
Transfer $43,635 to reserve to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 audit 
balance. 
 
Capital Projects – Governmental Fund (402): 
 
Transfer $100,000 from General fund to Oceanview Drive slide and storm emergency 
repair (project 25-23070), which was approved by Council on 12/21/23.  Transfer 
$147,000 from Big Creek bridge abutment repair (project 17009) to Oceanview Drive 
slide and storm emergency repair (project 25-23070), which was approved by Council 
on 12/04/23.  Transfer $158,000 from street repair and improvement program (project 
25-23010) to Oceanview Drive slide and storm emergency repair (project 25-23070), 
which was approved by Council on 12/04/23.  Transfer $438 from street repair and 
improvement program (project 25-23010) to Capital Projects – Proprietary fund. 
 
Capital Projects – Proprietary Fund (403): 
 
Appropriate $30,000 from the Oregon Business Development Department grant to the 
drinking water protection plan (project 28-23069), which was approved by Council on 
10/16/23.  Transfer $438 from Capital Projects – Governmental fund to SE Harney St 
Sidewalk from SE Moore Dr to Yaquina View Elementary (project 21019). 
 
Reserve Fund (404): 
 
Transfer $33,748 to reserve to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 audit 
balance. 
 
Capital Improvement Fund (405): 
 
$21,864 beginning balance adjustment to the Betty Wheeler Park field light replacement 
project (21012) to the 06/30/23 audited balance.  Transfer $21,864 of unused portion of 
project 21012 to the General fund and close project.  Appropriate $390,000 from the 
Oregon Parks and Recreation Department grant to the Agate Beach neighborhood and 
dog park improvements (project 22-22022), which was approved by Council on 
11/06/23.  Transfer an additional $42,000 from City’s Facility fund for repair of Frank 
Wade Park Tennis/Pickleball Court repair (project #22024), which was approved by 
Council on 10/02/23.  Transfer $425,000 from the PAC chiller/cooling unit (project 21-
23062) to the PAC remodel (project 20018), which was approved by Council on 
08/03/23. 
 
Water Fund (601): 
 
Transfer $70,251 from contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 

141



 

 

Wastewater Fund (602): 
 
Transfer $381,690 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance.  Appropriate $39,886 for influent pump station PLC replacement that was 
started in the 2022-23 budget year from contingency.  Increase appropriation by 
$54,300 for the Wastewater centrifuge rebuild from contingency due to higher 
equipment cost.  Appropriate $156,000 for the Wastewater crane truck budgeted in the 
2022-23 budget year from contingency, which includes an increase in the cost of the 
crane truck. 
 
Stormwater Fund (603): 
 
Transfer $27,060 from contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
Public Works Fund (701): 
 
Transfer $156,903 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance. 
 
City’s Facility Fund (711): 
 
Transfer $101,259 to contingency to adjust the beginning fund balance to the 06/30/23 
audit balance.  Appropriate $6,000 for installation of non-motorized boat launch signs in 
South Beach with General fund and Room Tax fund transfers.  Transfer an additional 
$42,000 for repair of Frank Wade Park Tennis/Pickleball Court repair (project #22024) 
with transfers from the General fund and Room Tax fund, which was approved by 
Council on 10/02/23. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 

The total City budget has increased by $1,832,618 with a new appropriation balance of 
$119,322,174, which represents an 4.28% increase over the total adopted budget of 
$114,423,353. 
 
Alternatives: 
 
None 
 
Attachments: 
 
Resolution 4004 
Attachment A – Original budget with adjustments 
 

142



CITY OF NEWPORT 

RESOLUTION NO. 4004 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-24, 
MAKING APPROPRIATION CHANGES FOR A SPECIFIC FUND 

 

  WHEREAS, the City of Newport’s 2023-2024 Fiscal Year budget requires changes of 
appropriation for the General, Recreation, Public Parking, Housing, Airport, Room Tax, Building 
Inspection, Street, Line Undergrounding, SDC, Agate Beach Closure, Debt Service – Water, Debt 
Service – Wastewater, Debt Service – Governmental, Debt Service – Stormwater, GO Debt Service 
– Proprietary, GO Debt Service – Governmental, Capital Projects – Governmental, Capital Projects 
– Proprietary, Reserve, Capital Improvement, Water, Wastewater, Stormwater, Public Works, and 
City’s Facility funds due to unplanned circumstances and have complied with the provisions of 
ORS 294. 
 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Oregon Local Budget Law, fund accounts are required 
to reflect sufficient authorized appropriations consistent with available resources; and 
 

WHEREAS, ORS 294. 473 requires a supplemental budget with a public hearing when the 
estimated expenditures differ by 10 percent or more from the most recent amended budget prior 
to the supplemental budget, the governing body may adopt the supplemental budget with a public 
hearing at a regular meeting; and 
 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: that this supplemental budget is 
hereby adopted and hereby provides for: 
 

1) Adjustment to the beginning fund balances of all funds to the June 30, 2023, audited 
balances, 

2) General Fund: Record three small grants and reimbursements received by various 
sources to cover additional Library program costs.  Transfer unused portion of Betty 
Wheeler Park field light replacement project.  Create one FTE accounting technician for 
the Finance Department.  Increase Community Development appropriations for 
unanticipated geologic professional fees and cubicles for staff, 

3) Capital Projects - Governmental Fund:  Appropriation for Oceanview Drive slide and storm 
emergency repair, 

4) Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund: Appropriate from the Oregon Business Development 
Department grant to the drinking water protection plan, Increase appropriation for SE 
Harney St Sidewalk from SE Moore Dr to Yaquina View Elementary project, 

5) Capital Improvement Fund:  Appropriate from the Oregon Parks and Recreation 
Department grant to the Agate Beach neighborhood and dog park improvements.  
Increase appropriation for repair of Frank Wade Tennis/Pickleball court.  Transfer 
appropriation of PAC chiller/cooling unit to PAC remodel, 

6) Wastewater Fund:  Increase/add appropriation for influent pump PLC replacement, 
centrifuge rebuild, and crane truck, 
 

 Attachment A sets forth the budget adjustment listed here and such Attachment A is 
 incorporated herein.   
  

 This resolution will become effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 
 
 

143



 

      Adopted by the Newport City Council on January 29, 2024. 
 
 

 _________________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 

 

Attest: 
 
 

 _____________________________________ 
 Erik Glover, City Recorder 

144



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

101-General Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 7,374,019            (176,231)            7,197,788                  

Revenues 16,549,385          12,460               3,882                 16,565,727                

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 221,717               221,717                     

Transfer from Reserve Fund 4,406                    4,406                          

Transfer from Capital Improvement Fund -                        21,864               21,864                       

Total Revenues:  24,149,527          12,460               -                      (150,485)            -                -                24,011,502                

101-General Fund

City Administration 4,538,422            50,995               4,589,417                  

Police 5,957,721            380                     5,958,101                  

Fire 2,986,021            76,230               3,062,251                  

Emergency Coordinator 125,241               125,241                     

Library 1,358,110            60                       3,882                 1,362,052                  

Community Development 605,192               19,268               624,460                     

Administrative Programs 1,026,268            2,515                 1,028,783                  

Interfund Loan -                        584,000             584,000                     

Transfer to Recreation Fund 1,237,116            375                     1,237,491                  

Transfer to Airport Fund 103,000               103,000                     

Transfer to Building Inspection Fund 3,000                    3,000                          

Transfer to Debt Service - Governmental Fund 9,321                    9,321                          

Transfer to Capital Projects - Governmental Fund 25,000                  100,000             125,000                     

Transfer to Reserve Fund 275,401               12,400               287,801                     

Transfer to City Facilities Fund 1,853,215            24,000               1,877,215                  

Contingency Account 655,786               (79,500)              (248,630)         327,656                     

Total Appropriations: 20,758,814          12,460               584,000             (50,485)              -                -                21,304,789                

Reserve for Future Expenditures 1,751,084            (584,000)            (100,000)            1,067,084                  

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 1,639,629            1,639,629                  

Total General Fund 24,149,527          12,460               -                      (150,485)            -                -                24,011,502                

GENERAL FUND - 101 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

201 - Recreation Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 504,785               95,581               600,366                     

Revenues 733,030               733,030                     

Transfer from General Fund 1,237,116            375                     1,237,491                  

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 655,519               125                     655,644                     

Transfer from Reserve Fund 7,500                    7,500                          

Total Revenues:  3,137,950            500                     -                      95,581               -                -                3,234,031                  

201 - Recreation Fund

Recreation Administration 288,331               288,331                     

60+ Center 249,448               249,448                     

Swimming Pool 788,277               788,277                     

Recreation Center 692,199               692,199                     

Recreation Programs 281,012               281,012                     

Sports Programs 232,090               232,090                     

Attachment A Page 1 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM145



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Interfund Loan Repayment 27,500                  27,500                       

Transfer to Reserve Fund 10,000                  10,000                       

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 108,220               500                     108,720                     

Contingency Account 256,164               95,581               351,745                     

Total Appropriations: 2,933,241            500                     -                      95,581               -                -                3,029,322                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 204,709               204,709                     

Total Recreation Fund 3,137,950            500                     -                      95,581               -                -                3,234,031                  

RECREATION FUND - 201 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

211 - Public Parking

Beginning Fund Balance 130                       (1,096)                (966)                           

Revenues 381,800               225,000             (225,000)            381,800                     

Interfund Loan -                        225,000             225,000                     

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  381,930               225,000             -                      (1,096)                -                -                605,834                     

211 - Public Parking

Public Parking - Citywide 103,272               103,272                     

Transfer to Capital Projects - Governmental Fund 50,000                  225,000             275,000                     

Contingency Account 228,658               (1,096)                227,562                     

Total Appropriations: 381,930               225,000             -                      (1,096)                -                -                605,834                     

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Public Parking Fund 381,930               225,000             -                      (1,096)                -                -                605,834                     

PUBLIC PARKING FUND - 211 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

212 - Housing Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 605,567               120,933             726,500                     

Revenues 68,637                  68,637                       

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  674,204               -                      -                      120,933             -                -                795,137                     

212 - Housing Fund

Affordable Housing General 956                       956                             

Oregon Housing & Community Services 9,242                    9,242                          

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account 664,006               120,933             784,939                     

Total Appropriations: 674,204               -                      -                      120,933             -                -                795,137                     

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Housing Fund 674,204               -                      -                      120,933             -                -                795,137                     

HOUSING FUND = 212 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

Attachment A Page 2 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM146



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

220 - Airport Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 269,520               89,470               358,990                     

Revenues 727,235               727,235                     

Transfer from General Fund 103,000               103,000                     

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 359,465               359,465                     

Total Revenues:  1,459,220            -                      -                      89,470               -                -                1,548,690                  

220 - Airport Fund

Airport Operations 1,198,215            1,198,215                  

Transfer to Debt Service - Governmental Fund 29,099                  29,099                       

Transfer to Capital Projects - Governmental Fund 16,000                  16,000                       

Contingency Account 120,049               89,470               209,519                     

Total Appropriations: 1,363,363            -                      -                      89,470               -                -                1,452,833                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 95,857                  95,857                       

Total Airport Fund 1,459,220            -                      -                      89,470               -                -                1,548,690                  

AIRPORT FUND - 220 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

230 - Room Tax Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 3,031,300            56,386               3,087,686                  

Revenues 3,652,454            3,652,454                  

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  6,683,754            -                      -                      56,386               -                -                6,740,140                  

230 - Room Tax Fund

Room Tax - General 254,051               254,051                     

Room Tax - Programs 899,500               242,240             1,141,740                  

Transfer to General Fund 221,717               221,717                     

Transfer to Recreation Fund 655,519               125                     655,644                     

Transfer to Airport Fund 359,465               359,465                     

Transfer to Debt Service - Governmental Fund 7,807                    7,807                          

Transfer to Capital Projects - Governmental Fund 132,000               132,000                     

Transfer to City Facilities Fund 1,852,439            24,000               1,876,439                  

Contingency Account 115,355               (125)                   32,386               147,616                     

Total Appropriations: 4,497,853            -                      -                      298,626             -                -                4,796,479                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures 2,028,870            (242,240)            1,786,630                  

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 157,031               157,031                     

Total Room Tax Fund 6,683,754            -                      -                      56,386               -                -                6,740,140                  

ROOM TAX FUND - 230 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

240 - Building Inspection Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 428,708               12,373               441,081                     

Revenues 465,737               465,737                     

Transfer from General Fund 3,000                    3,000                          

Attachment A Page 3 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM147



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Total Revenues:  897,445               -                      -                      12,373               -                -                909,818                     

240 - Building Inspection Fund

Building Inspection 560,656               560,656                     

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account 269,510               12,373               281,883                     

Total Appropriations: 830,166               -                      -                      12,373               -                -                842,539                     

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 67,279                  67,279                       

Buillding Inspection Fund 897,445               -                      -                      12,373               -                -                909,818                     

BUILDING INSPECTION FUND - 240 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

251 - Street Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 688,321               13,393               701,714                     

Revenues 1,190,592            1,190,592                  

Transfer from Water Fund 70,000                  70,000                       

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 70,000                  70,000                       

Total Revenues:  2,018,913            -                      -                      13,393               -                -                2,032,306                  

251 - Street Fund

Street Maintenance 1,158,990            1,158,990                  

Transfer to Capital Projects - Governmental Fund 554,945               554,945                     

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 50,000                  50,000                       

Contingency Account 115,899               13,393               129,292                     

Total Appropriations: 1,879,834            -                      -                      13,393               -                -                1,893,227                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 139,079               139,079                     

Total Street Fund 2,018,913            -                      -                      13,393               -                -                2,032,306                  

STREET FUND - 251 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              
 

252  - Line Undergrounding Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 899,056               15,035               914,091                     

Revenues 216,440               216,440                     

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  1,115,496            -                      -                      15,035               -                -                1,130,531                  

252  - Line Undergrounding Fund

Line Undergrounding 1,547                    1,547                          

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account 1,113,949            15,035               1,128,984                  

Total Appropriations: 1,115,496            -                      -                      15,035               -                -                1,130,531                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Line Undergrounding Fund 1,115,496            -                      -                      15,035               -                -                1,130,531                  

Attachment A Page 4 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM148



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

LINE UNDERGROUNDING FUND - 252 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

253 - SDC Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 2,889,451            167,783             3,057,234                  

Revenues 297,701               297,701                     

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  3,187,152            -                      -                      167,783             -                -                3,354,935                  

253 - SDC Fund

SDC Administration 624                       624                             

Transfer to Debt Service - Governmental Fund 3,506                    3,506                          

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund -                        88,433               88,433                       

Transfer to City Facilities Fund 25,000                  25,000                       

Contingency Account 3,158,022            (88,433)              167,783             3,237,372                  

Total Appropriations: 3,187,152            -                      -                      167,783             -                -                3,354,935                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total SDC Fund 3,187,152            -                      -                      167,783             -                -                3,354,935                  

SDC FUND - 253 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

254 - Agate Beach Closure Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 961,174               (17,478)              943,696                     

Revenues 27,500                  27,500                       

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  988,674               -                      -                      (17,478)              -                -                971,196                     

254 - Agate Beach Closure Fund

Agate Beach Closure 61,709                  61,709                       

Interfund Loan -                        225,000             -                      225,000                     

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account 926,965               (225,000)            (17,478)              684,487                     

Total Appropriations: 988,674               -                      -                      (17,478)              -                -                971,196                     

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Agate Beach Closure Fund 988,674               -                      -                      (17,478)              -                -                971,196                     

AGATE BEACH CLOSURE FUND - 254 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

301 - Debt Service - Water Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 6,068                    527                     6,595                          

Revenues 55                         55                               

Transfer from Water Fund 880,874               880,874                     

Total Revenues:  886,997               -                      -                      527                     -                -                887,524                     

301 - Debt Service - Water Fund

General Debt 70,622                  70,622                       

Attachment A Page 5 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM149



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Revenue Bonds Debt 810,358               810,358                     

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account -                        -                              

Total Appropriations: 880,980               -                      -                      -                      -                -                880,980                     

Reserve for Future Expenditures 6,017                    527                     6,544                          

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Debt Service - Water Fund 886,997               -                      -                      527                     -                -                887,524                     

DEBT SERVICE - WATER FUND - 301 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

302 - Debt Service - Wastewater Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 1,386,826            17,149               1,403,975                  

Revenues 11,176                  11,176                       

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 611,251               611,251                     

Total Revenues:  2,009,253            -                      -                      17,149               -                -                2,026,402                  

302 - Debt Service - Wastewater Fund

DEQ Debt 1,503,743            1,503,743                  

Transfer to Wastewater Fund 11,444                  11,444                       

Contingency Account -                        -                              

Total Appropriations: 1,515,187            -                      -                      -                      -                -                1,515,187                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures 494,066               17,149               511,215                     

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Debt Service - Wastewater Fund 2,009,253            -                      -                      17,149               -                -                2,026,402                  

DEBT SERVICE - WASTEWATER FUND - 302 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

303 - Debt Service - Governmental Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 29,309                  1,534                 30,843                       

Revenues 600                       600                             

Transfer from General Fund 9,321                    9,321                          

Transfer from Airport Fund 29,099                  29,099                       

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 7,807                    7,807                          

Transfer from SDC Fund 3,506                    3,506                          

Transfer from Water Fund 5,826                    5,826                          

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 1,166                    1,166                          

Total Revenues:  86,634                  -                      -                      1,534                 -                -                88,168                       

303 - Debt Service - Governmental Fund

General Debt 56,724                  56,724                       

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account -                        -                              

Total Appropriations: 56,724                  -                      -                      -                      -                -                56,724                       

Reserve for Future Expenditures 29,910                  1,534                 31,444                       

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Attachment A Page 6 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM150



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Total Debt Service - Governmental Fund 86,634                  -                      -                      1,534                 -                -                88,168                       

DEBT SERVICE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND - 303 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

305 - Debt Service - Stormwater Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 120,335               1,826                 122,161                     

Revenues 2,021                    2,021                          

Transfer from Stormwater Fund 628,461               628,461                     

Total Revenues:  750,817               -                      -                      1,826                 -                -                752,643                     

305 - Debt Service - Stormwater Fund

2018 Stormwater Debt 381,200               381,200                     

DEQ Debt 252,278               252,278                     

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account -                        -                              

Total Appropriations: 633,478               -                      -                      -                      -                -                633,478                     

Reserve for Future Expenditures 117,339               1,826                 119,165                     

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Debt Service - Stormwater Fund 750,817               -                      -                      1,826                 -                -                752,643                     

DEBT SERVICE - STORMWATER FUND - 305 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

351 - GO Debt Service - Proprietary Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 42,990                  157,461             200,451                     

Revenues 2,302,600            2,302,600                  

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  2,345,590            -                      -                      157,461             -                -                2,503,051                  

351 - GO Debt Service - Proprietary Fund

Water GO Debt 2,266,000            2,266,000                  

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account -                        -                              

Total Appropriations: 2,266,000            -                      -                      -                      -                -                2,266,000                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures 79,590                  157,461             237,051                     

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total GO Debt Service - Proprietary  Fund 2,345,590            -                      -                      157,461             -                -                2,503,051                  

GO DEBT SERVICE - PROPRIETARY FUND - 351 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

352 - GO Debt Service - Governmental Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 55,442                  43,635               99,077                       

Revenues 627,569               627,569                     

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  683,011               -                      -                      43,635               -                -                726,646                     

352 - GO Debt Service - Governmental Fund

Swimming Pool GO Debt 617,669               617,669                     

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Attachment A Page 7 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM151



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Contingency Account -                        -                              

Total Appropriations: 617,669               -                      -                      -                      -                -                617,669                     

Reserve for Future Expenditures 65,342                  43,635               108,977                     

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total GO Debt Service - Governmental Fund 683,011               -                      -                      43,635               -                -                726,646                     

GO DEBT SERVICE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND - 352 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

402 - Capital Projects - Governmental Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 5,290,398            714,678             6,005,076                  

Revenues 2,731,052            2,731,052                  

Transfer from General Fund 25,000                  100,000             125,000                     

Transfer from Public Parking Fund 50,000                  225,000             275,000                     

Transfer from Airport Fund 16,000                  16,000                       

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 132,000               132,000                     

Transfer from  Street Fund 554,945               -                      554,945                     

Transfer from URA - South Beach Fund 274,150               274,150                     

Transfer from URA - North Side Fund 1,032,100            100,000             1,132,100                  

Transfer from City Facilities Fund 35,000                  35,000                       

Total Revenues:  10,140,645          1,039,678          -                      100,000             -                -                11,280,323                

402 - Capital Projects - Governmental Fund

6110 - General

Wayfinding Sign Project - Phase 3 (12018) 12018 -                        4,825                 4,825                          

SE 35th & HWY 101 Signalization Improvement (13018) 13018 -                        31,986               31,986                       

SB Utility Undergrounding (AKA Ferry Slip Utility Undergrounding) Phase 2 & 3 (15017) 15017 598,139               49,458               647,597                     

Sharrows Bay Blvd Fr Naterlin East to John Moore (15019) 15019 -                        10,000               10,000                       

South Beach Right-of-Way Acquisition (17004) 17004 149,777               149,777                     

Chestnut Street Trail Project (17005) 17005 50,000                  50,000                       

Building Demolition Reserve -NE Corner 35th and US 101 (17008) 17008 371,226               371,226                     

Big Creek Bridge Abutment Repair (17009) 17009 350,000               (147,000)            203,000                     

Northside TSP Update/Downtown Revitalization Plan (17014) 17014 -                        -                      -                              

SW 9th Angle to Hurbert Street and Sidewalk Improvements (19002) 19002 -                        21,450               21,450                       

US 101 NW 25th to NW 36th Street Sidewalk Project (19009) 19009 205,200               205,200                     

Preliminary Design - Infill of Sidewalk on Elizabeth Street (21020) 21020 50,000                  50,000                       

Downtown Revitalization Plan - Land Use and Business Façade Loan/Grant Component (21023) 21023 50,000                  100,000             150,000                     

Parking Study Implementation (Phase 1) (21045) 21045 200,000               336,357             536,357                     

Conduct Intersection Control Eval. & Signal Warrant Analysis NE 36th and SE 40th and 101 (21049) 21049 25,000                  25,000                       

Pedestrian Activated Rapid Flashing Beacon at US 20 & Eads St Crosswalk (21050) 21050 272,731               19,070               291,801                     

Windows/Siding at the Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce Building (21-23041) 21-23041 107,000               107,000                     

SE Marine Drive Streetlights (21-23049) 21-23049 35,000                  35,000                       

Access Improvements to Yaquina Head ONA (Lighthouse to Lighthouse Trail) (21-23059) 21-23059 250,000               250,000                     

Yaquina Bay Estuary Management Plan Update (24-22001) 24-22001 10,000                  10,000                       

Annexation of Unincorporated Pockets in South Beach (24-22002) 24-22002 500,000               500,000                     

Update City Emergency Operations Plan (24-22027) 24-22027 15,000                  5,000                 20,000                       

Project Management Support - URA Projects (24-23054) 24-23054 250,000               250,000                     

Parking Study Implementation (Phase 2) (24-23060) 24-23060 50,000                  50,000                       

Attachment A Page 8 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM152



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Vision 2040 Update (24-23061) 24-23061 50,000                  50,000                       

North URA Property Acquisition (24-23062) 24-23062 -                        26,649               26,649                       

Traffic Studies and Warrant Analysis - Multiple Locations (25-22029) 25-22029 150,000               38,295               188,295                     

Enhanced Pedestrian Crossing at NW 60th and US 101 (25-22030) 25-22030 200,000               200,000                     

South Beach Loop Path Improvements (25-22031) 25-22031 335,000               335,000                     

South Beach Placemaking Improvement Package (25-22032) 25-22032 250,000               250,000                     

NW/NE 11th Street Bicycle Lane Project (25-22033) 25-22033 50,000                  50,000                       

Moore/Harney/US 20 Intersection and Street Improvements (25-22034) 25-22034 2,182,920            2,182,920                  

Feasibility Study for sidewalk Infill (25-22035) 25-22035 25,000                  25,000               50,000                       

Improve intersection at US 101 and 57th (Movie Theater driveway) (25-22036) 25-22036 300,000               300,000                     

Street Repair and Improvement Program (25-23010) 25-23010 446,397               (158,438)            287,959                     

Sidewalk and Bicycle Improvements (25-23011) 25-23011 20,000                  20,000                       

Slurry/Crack Seal Pilot (25-23014) 25-23014 30,000                  30,000                       

Oceanview Drive Slide and Storm Emergency Repair (25-23070) 25-23070 -                        405,000             405,000                     

Total General Appropriations 7,578,390            668,090             -                      99,562               -                -                8,346,042                  

6130 - Airport

AIP32 Obstruction Removal Phase I - Design & Bidding Services (17023) 17023 101,722               (8,340)                93,382                       

AIP27 Airport Storm Drainage Pipe Rehab.-Design and Construction (21026) 21026 1,363,789            (10,181)              1,353,608                  

Large Septic Installation at Newport Municipal Airport (23-22003) 23-22003 640,000               640,000                     

Storm Pipe Flex Seal Installation (23-22006) 23-22006 94,444                  94,444                       

Automate City of Newport-Seal Rock Water District Intertie to Improve Airport Fire Flows (23-22007) 23-22007 150,000               150,000                     

BIL Projects such as Addition of Hangers (23-23040) 23-23040 166,000               166,000                     

Total Airport Appropriations 2,515,955            (18,521)              -                      -                      -                -                2,497,434                  

Transfers Out

Transfer to URA - North Side Fund -                        37,554               37,554                       

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund -                        438                     438                             

Total Transfer Appropriations -                        37,554               -                      438                     -                -                37,992                       

Total Appropriations: 10,094,345          687,123             -                      100,000             -                -                10,881,468               

Reserve for Future Expenditures 46,300                  352,555             398,855                     

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Capital Projects - Governmental Fund 10,140,645          1,039,678          -                      100,000             -                -                11,280,323                

CAPITAL PROJECTS - GOVERNMENTAL FUND - 402 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

403 - Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 4,580,976            1,387,603          5,968,579                  

Revenues 14,251,559          30,000               14,281,559                

Transfer from General Fund -                              

Transfer from  Street Fund 50,000                  50,000                       

Transfer from SDC Fund -                        88,433               88,433                       

Transfer from URA - South Beach Fund 325,000               325,000                     

Transfer from Capital Projects - Governmental Fund -                        438                     438                             

Transfer from Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 128,500               128,500                     

Transfer from Capital Improvement Fund 59,838                  10,000               69,838                       

Transfer from Water Fund 302,136               302,136                     

Attachment A Page 9 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM153



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Transfer from Wastewater Fund 235,000               235,000                     

Transfer from Stormwater Fund 80,000                  80,000                       

Total Revenues:  20,013,009          1,486,036          -                      30,438               -                -                21,529,483                

403 - Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund

6210 - Water Capital Projects

Big Creek Dam Preliminary Design (11025) 11025 625,000               (37,586)              587,414                     

Golf Course Drive Water System Improvement Phase 2 (15035) 15035 103,070               (2,316)                100,754                     

Main Tanks Replacement (16013) 16013 1,205,922            199,962             1,405,884                  

Siletz Water Quality Study (16015) 16015 48,044                  (8,452)                39,592                       

Water System Master Plan (19022) 19022 450,000               50,000               500,000                     

Fiber Installation at NE 71ST Street PS and Tank (20016) 20016 -                        4,206                 4,206                          

Big Creek Dam Early Warning System (21005) 21005 25,000                  50,000               75,000                       

WTP Excess Recirculation (XR) Upgrade/Storage Building (21006) 21006 1,000,000            143,360             1,143,360                  

Underbay Waterline Crossing (21014) 21014 332,857               88,314               421,171                     

SE Harney St Sidewalk from SE Moore Dr to Yaquina View Elementary (21019) 21019 -                        9,267                 438                     9,705                          

Big Creek Dam #2 Spillway Hazard Mitigation/Valve & Drain Pipe Repair (21053) 21053 194,336               75,000               269,336                     

Mid Coast Water Conservation Partnership (24-23001) 24-23001 20,000                  20,000                       

Strategic Grant Consulting Services - Dig Deep Research (24-23002) 24-23002 540,000               540,000                     

Cathodic Protection - Engineering & Construction (28-22037) 28-22037 50,000                  40,225               90,225                       

Big Creek Dam (Detailed Design & Construction (28-22040) 28-22040 12,429,584          12,429,584                

Main Water Storage Tank Roof Inspection & Repair (28-23043) 28-23043 100,000               100,000                     

Drinking Water Protection Plan (28-23069) 28-23069 -                        30,000               30,000                       

Total Water Appropriations 17,123,813          611,980             -                      30,438               -                -                17,766,231                

6220 - Wastewater Capital Projects

WWTP Master Plan (16016) 16016 -                        248,444             248,444                     

Northside Pump Station Dechlorination Project (NDP) & Facility Improvements (18016) 18016 800,000               800,000                     

Easement Acquisitions - Utilities (20002) 20002 58,500                  58,500                       

Replacement of Fire Panels at WWTP (21054) 21054 125,000               125,000                     

Clarifier #1 Refurbishment (26-22038) 26-22038 270,000               270,000                     

Schooner Sewer Bypass (26-22039) 26-22039 48,766                  187,429             236,195                     

Influent Pump Station (IPS) Repairs (26-22043) 26-22043 -                        4,650                 4,650                          

Lift Station Security (26-23048) 26-23048 54,838                  19,222               74,060                       

WWTP Centrifuge Project (26-23050) 26-23050 800,000               40,000               840,000                     

Total Wastewater Appropriations 2,157,104            499,745             -                      -                      -                -                2,656,849                  

6230 - Stormwater Capital Projects

Land Purchase on High Street  by Sam Moore Park (17011) 17011 35,000                  35,000                       

Storm Sewer Realignment NE Avery Between NE 3rd and 4th (21008) 21008 -                        5,000                 5,000                          

Storm Drain Replacement on NW Spring Street (21009) 21009 10,000                  12,075               22,075                       

Sinkhole and Catch Basin at NE Douglas St (25-23016) 25-23016 50,000                  50,000                       

Stormwater Master Plan Update (27-23007) 27-23007 181,921               10,000               191,921                     

Total Stormwater Appropriations 276,921               27,075               -                      -                      -                -                303,996                     

Transfers

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 128,500               128,500                     

Transfer to Stormwater Fund 150,000               150,000                     

Total Transfer Appropriations 278,500               -                      -                      -                      -                -                278,500                     

Attachment A Page 10 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM154



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Total Appropriations: 19,836,338          1,138,800          -                      30,438               -                -                21,005,576                

Reserve for Future Expenditures 176,671               347,236             523,907                     

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 20,013,009          1,486,036          -                      30,438               -                -                21,529,483                

CAPITAL PROJECTS - PROPRIETARY FUND - 403 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

404 - Reserve Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 2,514,459            33,748               2,548,207                  

Revenues 29,195                  29,195                       

Transfer from General Fund 275,401               12,400               287,801                     

Transfer from Recreation Fund 10,000                  10,000                       

Transfer from Reserve Fund 50,000                  50,000                       

Total Revenues:  2,879,055            12,400               -                      33,748               -                -                2,925,203                  

404 - Reserve Fund

Fire 685,000               22,000               707,000                     

Emergency Coordinator 44,800                  44,800                       

Library 10,000                  10,000                       

Transfer to General Fund 4,406                    4,406                          

Transfer to Recreation Fund 7,500                    7,500                          

Transfer to Reserve Fund 50,000                  50,000                       

Transfer to City Facilities Fund 620,440               620,440                     

Contingency Account -                        -                              

Total Appropriations: 1,422,146            22,000               -                      -                      -                -                1,444,146                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures 1,456,909            (9,600)                33,748               1,481,057                  

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Reserve Fund 2,879,055            12,400               -                      33,748               -                -                2,925,203                  

RESERVE FUND - 404 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

405 - Capital Improvement Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 2,764,184            278,629             21,864               3,064,677                  

Revenues 39,000                  390,000             429,000                     

Transfer from Recreation Fund 108,220               500                     108,720                     

Transfer from City Facilities Fund 3,550,859            42,000               3,592,859                  

Total Revenues:  6,462,263            279,129             -                      453,864             -                -                7,195,256                  

405 - Capital Improvement Fund

6310 - City Hall Improvements

City Hall Fire Panel Replacement (19025) 19025 34,995                  (10,000)              24,995                       

City Campus Electrical Backup Power Phase 2 (21002) 21002 137,257               137,257                     

City Hall Roof and Seismic Evaluation (21030) 21030 175,000               175,000                     

City Hall Parking Vehicle Charging Stations (21042) 21042 -                        45,942               45,942                       

IT Room Cooling Unit Replacement (21-22013) 21-22013 -                        9,661                 9,661                          

City Hall Lighted Parking Bollards (21-23027) 21-23027 18,600                  18,600                       

City Hall Council Chambers Carpet (21-23047) 21-23047 13,750                  13,750                       

Attachment A Page 11 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM155



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

City Hall Landscape Renovation (22-22023) 22-22023 149,000               149,000                     

Total City Hall Improvements Appropriations 528,602               45,603               -                      -                      -                -                574,205                     

6311 - City Hall Police Improvements

Impound Yard Secure Storage Building (21-22015) 21-22015 24,000                  24,000                       

Police Office Carpet (21-23034) 21-23034 12,000                  12,000                       

Total City Hall Police Improvements Appropriations 36,000                  -                      -                      -                      -                -                36,000                       

6312 - Library Improvements

Library Heater Replacement (21-22014) 21-22014 20,000                  (10,854)              9,146                          

Total Library Improvements Appropriations 20,000                  (10,854)              -                      -                      -                -                9,146                          

6320 - Fire Improvements

Main Fire Station Diesel Exhaust Extraction System (21028) 21028 56,300                  20,000               76,300                       

Remodeling Upstairs of Main Fire Station (21-22016) 21-22016 30,000                  30,000                       

Joint Fire Facility with ODF at Agate Beach (21-22021) 21-22021 50,000                  50,000                       

Retrofit Upstairs HVAC System at Main Fire Station (21-23030) 21-23030 30,000                  30,000                       

Fire Department Training Facility Relocation (26-23055) 26-23055 100,000               100,000                     

Total Fire Improvements Appropriations 266,300               20,000               -                      -                      -                -                286,300                     

6325 - PAC Improvements

PAC Remodel (20018) 20018 2,090,084            49,197               425,000             2,564,281                  

PAC HVAC Control System (21029) 21029 359,000               (400)                   358,600                     

PAC Signage (21-22020) 21-22020 20,000                  20,000                       

PAC Chiller/Cooling Unit (21-23062) 21-23062 425,000               (425,000)            -                              

Shelter for Art Bus (21-23064) 21-23064 7,500                    7,500                          

Performing Arts Center (PAC) Landscape - East (22-23052) 22-23052 12,000                  12,000                       

Total Fire Improvements Appropriations 2,913,584            48,797               -                      -                      -                -                2,962,381                  

6326 - VAC Improvements

VAC Fire Panel Replacement (19026) 19026 8,595                    (4,000)                4,595                          

VAC Upper Roof (21-22012) 21-22012 -                        85,192               85,192                       

VAC LED Lighting Upgrade (21-23042) 21-23042 30,000                  30,000                       

VAC Two Moveable Walls (21-23065) 21-23065 4,500                    4,500                          

Total VAC Improvements Appropriations 43,095                  81,192               -                      -                      -                -                124,287                     

6330 - 60+ Center Improvements

60+ Center Reception Area Remodel (18015) 18015 96,611                  96,611                       

60+ Activity Center Wallpaper Removal and Painting (21-23033) 21-23033 20,000                  20,000                       

60+ Activity Center Landscape (22-23035) 22-23035 14,500                  14,500                       

Total 60+ Center Improvements Appropriations 131,111               -                      -                      -                      -                -                131,111                     

6331 - Recreation Center Improvements

Modify & Enlarge Outside Play Area for Child Center (20008) 20008 120,000               8,954                 128,954                     

Pool Repair and Investigation (21004) 21004 170,127               9,400                 179,527                     

Replace Double Doors in Small Gym (21039) 21039 6,615                    (6,615)                -                              

HVAC Control System for Recreation Center (21056) 21056 160,000               20,000               180,000                     

Replacement of Rec Center Roof (21-22009) 21-22009 377,904               377,904                     

Purchase and Installation of New Overhead Light Fixtures at Aquatic Center (21-22017) 21-22017 23,000                  23,000                       

UV System for the Aquatic System (21-22018) 21-22018 90,000                  90,000                       

Recreation Center Fire Panel Replacement (21-22042) 21-22042 74,045                  (26,000)              48,045                       

Attachment A Page 12 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM156



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Alarm System for Aquatic Center (21-23025) 21-23025 14,000                  14,000                       

Breezeway Security/ADA Upgrade Card-Lock System with Release Mechanism at Front Desk (21-23029)21-23029 10,000                  10,000                       

Total Recreation Center Improvements Appropriations 1,045,691            5,739                 -                      -                      -                -                1,051,430                  

6380 - Parks & Grounds Improvements

Big Creek Watershed Forest Resource Assessment (21047) 21047 65,000                  65,000                       

Forest Health Assessment (22-23066) 22-23066 50,000                  50,000                       

Tire Removal on the Bay Front (22-23067) 22-23067 15,000                  15,000                       

Nye Beach Restroom Floor Resurface (21-23045) 21-23045 6,500                    6,500                          

Magnetic Locks for Bathroom Access Doors (22-23037) 22-23037 25,000                  25,000                       

Sam Moore Restroom (22-23039) 22-23039 250,000               250,000                     

Deco District Park (18010) 18010 112,042               112,042                     

Ocean to Bay Trail Wayfinding Signage (21043) 21043 40,000                  40,000                       

Agate Beach Staircase Terminus Improvement (21059) 21059 135,000               7,176                 142,176                     

Abby Street Pier Modifications (21-23028) 21-23028 14,000                  14,000                       

Agate Beach Neighborhood and Dog Park Improvements (22-22022) 22-22022 260,000               390,000             650,000                     

Resurfacing of Frank Wade Park Tennis Courts (22-22024) 22-22024 18,000                  42,000               60,000                       

Urban Orchard (22-22025) 22-22025 38,500                  38,500                       

Kiosk Replacement at Ocean to Bay Trail (22-23036) 22-23036 10,000                  10,000                       

Playground Equipment Replacement (22-23038) 22-23038 80,000                  80,000                       

Betty Wheeler Park - Retaining Wall Repair (22-23053) 22-23053 250,000               250,000                     

Frank Wade Bench and Path at Community Garden (22-23068) 22-23068 10,000                  10,000                       

Total Parks & Grounds Improvements Appropriations 1,379,042            7,176                 -                      432,000             -                -                1,818,218                  

Transfers

Transfer to General Fund -                        21,864               21,864                       

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 59,838                  10,000               69,838                       

Total Transfers Appropriations 59,838                  10,000               -                      21,864               -                -                91,702                       

Total Appropriations: 6,423,263            207,653             -                      453,864             -                -                7,084,780                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures 39,000                  71,476               110,476                     

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total Capital Improvement Fund 6,462,263            279,129             -                      453,864             -                -                7,195,256                  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND - 405 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

601 - Water Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 786,818               (70,251)              716,567                     

Revenues 5,413,298            (286,500)            5,126,798                  

Interfund Loan -                        292,000             292,000                     

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  6,200,116            -                      5,500                 (70,251)              -                -                6,135,365                  

601 - Water Fund

Water Plant 1,560,897            21,575               1,582,472                  

Water Distribution 1,328,186            5,500                 1,333,686                  

Water Administration Programs 1,215,828            1,215,828                  

Transfer to Street Fund 70,000                  70,000                       

Transfer to Debt Service - Water Fund 880,874               880,874                     

Attachment A Page 13 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM157



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Transfer to Debt Service - Governmental Fund 5,826                    5,826                          

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 302,136               302,136                     

Contingency Account 410,491               (21,575)              (70,251)              318,665                     

Total Appropriations: 5,774,238            -                      5,500                 (70,251)              -                -                5,709,487                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 425,878               425,878                     

Total Water Fund 6,200,116            -                      5,500                 (70,251)              -                -                6,135,365                  

WATER FUND - 601 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

602 - Wastewater Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 177,675               381,690             559,365                     

Revenues 6,112,965            6,112,965                  

Transfer from Debt Service - Wastewater Fund 11,444                  11,444                       

Total Revenues:  6,302,084            -                      -                      381,690             -                -                6,683,774                  

602 - Wastewater Fund

Wastewater Plant 2,443,940            30,000               94,186               2,568,126                  

Wastewater Collections 772,393               156,000             928,393                     

Wastewater Administrative Programs 1,369,184            1,369,184                  

Transfer to Street Fund 70,000                  70,000                       

Transfer to Debt Service - Wastewater Fund 611,251               611,251                     

Transfer to Debt Service - Governmental Fund 1,166                    1,166                          

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 235,000               235,000                     

Contingency Account 447,732               (30,000)              131,504             549,236                     

Total Appropriations: 5,950,666            -                      -                      381,690             -                -                6,332,356                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 351,418               351,418                     

Total Wastewater Fund 6,302,084            -                      -                      381,690             -                -                6,683,774                  

WASTEWATER FUND - 602 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

603 - Stormwater Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 152,653               (27,060)              125,593                     

Revenues 1,454,187            (286,500)            1,167,687                  

Interfund Loan -                        292,000             292,000                     

Transfer from Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 150,000               150,000                     

Total Revenues:  1,756,840            -                      5,500                 (27,060)              -                -                1,735,280                  

603 - Stormwater Fund

Stormwater Maintenance 866,939               5,500                 872,439                     

Transfer to Debt Service - Stormwater Fund 628,461               628,461                     

Transfer to Capital Projects - Proprietary Fund 80,000                  80,000                       

Contingency Account 87,407                  (27,060)              60,347                       

Total Appropriations: 1,662,807            -                      5,500                 (27,060)              -                -                1,641,247                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Attachment A Page 14 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM158



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 94,033                  94,033                       

Total Stormwater Fund 1,756,840            -                      5,500                 (27,060)              -                -                1,735,280                  

STORMWATER FUND - 603 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

701 - Public Works Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 645,916               156,903             802,819                     

Revenues 1,626,502            1,626,502                  

Transfers In -                        -                              

Total Revenues:  2,272,418            -                      -                      156,903             -                -                2,429,321                  

701 - Public Works Fund

Public Works Administration 542,179               542,179                     

Engineering 1,377,847            78,441               1,456,288                  

Transfers Out -                        -                              

Contingency Account 198,790               (78,441)              156,903             277,252                     

Total Appropriations: 2,118,816            -                      -                      156,903             -                -                2,275,719                  

Reserve for Future Expenditures -                        -                              

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 153,602               153,602                     

Total Public Works Fund 2,272,418            -                      -                      156,903             -                -                2,429,321                  

PUBLIC WORKS FUND - 701 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

711 - City's Facility Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 652,389               101,259             753,648                     

Revenues 1,936,873            1,936,873                  

Transfer from General Fund 1,853,215            24,000               1,877,215                  

Transfer from Room Tax Fund 1,852,439            24,000               1,876,439                  

Transfer from SDC Fund 25,000                  25,000                       

Transfer from Reserve Fund 620,440               620,440                     

Total Revenues:  6,940,356            -                      -                      149,259             -                -                7,089,615                  

711 - City's Facility Fund

Facility Adminstration 403,443               403,443                     

City Hall Facility 251,639               251,639                     

Fire Facilities 75,093                  75,093                       

Library Facility 112,504               112,504                     

Park Maintenance 881,731               6,000                 887,731                     

Custodial 318,030               318,030                     

Piers & Broadwalks 23,759                  23,759                       

Performing Arts Center 169,720               169,720                     

Visual Arts Center 99,487                  99,487                       

Street Lights 448,055               448,055                     

Transfer to Capital Projects - Governmental Fund 35,000                  35,000                       

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 3,550,859            42,000               3,592,859                  

Contingency Account 499,964               101,259             601,223                     

Total Appropriations: 6,869,284            -                      -                      149,259             -                -                7,018,543                  

Attachment A Page 15 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM159



CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget with Supplements/Transfer Resolutions

Fiscal Year 2023-2024
7/1/2023 9/18/2023 11/6/2023 1/29/2024

Project Adopted Budget Resolution Resolution Resolution Resolution Total Adjusted

Fund Appropriation Level No. # 3987 # 3994 #3997 #4004 Budget

Reserve for Future Expenditures 71,072                  71,072                       

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance -                        -                              

Total City's Facility Fund 6,940,356            -                      -                      149,259             -                -                7,089,615                  

CITY FACILITIES FUND - 711 -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

CITY'S BALANCING AMOUNTS:

TOTAL RESOURCES: 114,423,353        3,055,203          11,000               1,832,618          -                -                119,322,174             

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 104,732,668        2,293,536          595,000             1,918,978          -                -                109,540,182             

TOTAL NON APPROPRIATIONS 9,690,685            761,667             (584,000)            (86,360)              -                -                9,781,992                  

TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS 114,423,353        3,055,203          11,000               1,832,618          -                -                119,322,174             

TOTAL CITY BUDGET BALANCE -                        -                      -                      -                      -                -                -                              

Attachment A Page 16 of 16 1/23/2024 3:30 PM160



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   
Public Hearing and Potential Adoption of Resolution No. 4009, a  Resolution Adopting a 
Position Profile as Standards, Criteria, and Policy Directives to be Used in Hiring a City 
Manager and Allowing for Public Comment.  
 
Background: 
In preparation for my retirement in July 2024,  the City Council has entered into an 
agreement with Jensen Strategies, LLC, to conduct the recruitment and hiring process for 
a new city manager for the City of Newport. ORS 192.660(2)(a) provides that it is 
permissible to conduct executive sessions to consider employment of a Chief Executive 
Officer, provided certain conditions are met. This includes adoption of hiring standards 
and timetable in connection with the recruitment and hiring process. The decision to 
formally hire a new city manager will be done in public session, however, the review of 
applicants, interviews, and discussion of the applicants will be done in executive session 
in accordance with this resolution. 
 
One other issue that was discussed by Council at the work session was the salary range 
that would be advertised for this position. Jensen Strategies outlined a range for Council 
consideration. There was a general consensus that a range of $150,000 to $180,000 
would be appropriate to include in the advertisement for this position.  
 
Following the general schedule, it will include position advertising from February 6 to 
March 11, review of the applications,  and preliminary Zoom interviews by Jensen 
Strategies. This information will be shared with the City Council during an executive 
session that will be held on Monday, April 1. Jensen Strategies will conduct background 
and reference checks on the finalists, with interviews scheduled for the week of April 15. 
There will be staff and community receptions and panel interviews by selected general 
public members, a panel of staff members,  and a panel of professional public managers, 
prior to the interviews by City Council. City Council will interview the finalists on Thursday, 
April 18, in a day-long interview process in executive session. On the morning of April 19, 
the City Council will meet in executive session to deliberate on the candidates interviewed 
for this position. A public meeting will be scheduled on Friday, April 19  to consider making 
a job offer to one of the candidates or extending the search process, if necessary.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the Mayor conduct public hearing on Resolution No. 4009, a resolution 
adopting the position profile as standards, criteria and policy directives to be used in hiring 
a city manager and allowing for public comment. 
 

161



Following the public hearing, and considering any comments made, I recommend the City 
Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution number 4009, a resolution adopting the position profile as 
standards, criteria and policy directives to be used in hiring a city manager. 
 
I further recommend the City Council consider the following motion:  
 
I move to direct Jensen Strategies to provide a salary range of $150,000 to $180,000 as 
part of the recruitment materials for the hiring of a city manager.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
The salary range will be used in developing the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 
1, 2024.  
 
Alternatives:  
Modify the standards, or as suggested by the City Council.  
   
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

162



CITY OF NEWPORT 

RESOLUTION NO. 4009 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE POSITION PROFILE AS THE STANDARDS, CRITERIA, AND 
POLICY DIRECTIVES TO BE USED IN HIRING A CITY MANAGER AND ALLOWING FOR PUBLIC 

COMMENT 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has announced his intent to retire in July 2024 which will create a 
vacancy in the position of City Manager; and 
WHEREAS, the City Council has initiated efforts to recruit and hire a City Manager by retaining 
the services of Jensen Strategies, LLC; and 
WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(a) it is permissible to conduct an executive session to 
consider employment of a chief executive officer provided certain conditions are met; and 
WHEREAS, the City Council may need to conduct two or more executive sessions to consider 
candidates for the position of City Manager; and 
WHEREAS, prior to conducting any executive session on the matter, there must be an opportunity 
for public comment on the employment of a City Manager and the standards, criteria, and policy 
directives to be used in the hiring process, and the hiring procedures; and 
WHEREAS, the City of Newport's recruitment consultant, Jensen Strategies, LLC, actively 
solicited robust input through one-on-one Council interviews, staff interviews, a community 
session, as well as an online survey open to staff and community members to guide the production 
of a draft Position Profile and hiring procedures reviewed by the Newport City Council at a special 
January 8, 2024 work session; and 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the Position Profile is to outline the standards, criteria, and policy 
directives that will be used in reviewing and hiring the City Manager candidates in addition to the 
desired knowledge, skills, and abilities being sought. 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The position profile, attached as Appendix A, is adopted as the standards, 
criteria, and policy directives to be used by the City Council in the hiring of a new City 
Manager. 
Section 2. The hiring procedures, attached as Appendix B, are adopted as the hiring 
procedures to be used by the City Council in the hiring of a new City Manager 

Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

Adopted by the Newport City Council on January 29, 2024. 

Jan Kaplan, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 

Res. No. 4009 -ADOPTING THE POSITION PROFILE AS THE STANDARDS, CRITERIA, AND POLICY 
1 

DIRECTIVES TO BE USED IN HIRING A CITY MANAGER AND ALLOWING FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



 
ADOPTION OF OFFICIAL POSITION DOCUMENTS                          NEWPORT CITY MANAGER RECRUITMENT 2024 
 

 
NEWPORT CITY MANAGER RECRUITMENT 2024 

 

Adoption of Official Position Documents 

Official adoption of certain documents is required under Oregon law for a City Council to hold 

an executive session for the purpose of considering the employment of a new City Manager 

(per ORS 192.660(2)(a) and ORS 192.660(7)(d)).  These documents include: 

 

• Position Profile (containing Hiring Standards, Criteria, and Policy Directives) 
 

• Hiring Procedures 
 

The City of Newport recruitment consultant, Jensen Strategies, LLC, gathered input through 

one-on-one interviews, online staff and community surveys, and an offered public input 

session, which was used to prepare a draft position profile and hiring procedures for the City’s 

2024 City Manager Recruitment.  These documents are attached hereto as Appendices A and B, 

respectively.  The documents will be reviewed, considered, and if deemed appropriate, 

approved at a meeting of the Newport City Council that affords an opportunity for public 

comment.   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

177



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   
From Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments – Nominations of Officials from the 
City of Newport to Serve on the Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation and 
the Technical Advisory Committee.  
 
Background: 
The terms of Mayor Kaplan and Beatriz Botello expired on the Cascades West Area 
Commission on Transportation (CWACT) on December 31, 2023. Nominations for 
reappointment are required by January 31st for consideration by the OCWCOG Board of 
Directors to appoint members to the CWACT. Since there was no decision as to who was 
willing to serve in these roles at the January 2 Council meeting, I have added this item to 
the January 29 Special meeting. 
 
The CWACT Full Commission meets at least quarterly, on the fourth Thursday of the 
month from 5:00 pm 7:00 pm.  Meetings are held both in person and virtually, depending 
on the meeting topics and need. The CWACT Full Commission member for each 
jurisdiction must be an elected official. Alternates do not need to be elected officials. 
Nominations must be made during a legally convened public meeting of the City Council, 
Commission, or Tribal Council, as appropriate. 
 
This is an important committee since it provides a forum for local governments in the Linn, 
Benton, and Lincoln County Regions to collaborate on transportation issues of Regional 
and Statewide significance. Among other work items, the CWACT solicits public input on 
transportation needs and provides recommendations to ODOT and the OTC on project 
priorities for the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). This is the plan 
that directs funding to communities for transportation projects. 
 
The CWACT also has a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). It would be good for the 
Council to reconfirm Derrick Tokos as a member of this committee representing the City 
of Newport. If there is not an elected member willing to serve as an alternate to CWACT, 
Derrick would be eligible for appointment by the Council as the City’s alternate as well. 
Please review this information (and the information below) and let Mayor Kaplan know if 
you are interested in serving as the City’s representative or alternate on the CWACT. 
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the Council Consider the following motion: 
 
I move to nominate to the Cascade West Area Commission on Transportation 
_____________________as primary representative and _______________ as alternate 

178



representative, and Derrick Tokos as the representative on the Technical Advisory 
Committee for two-year terms. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None. 
 
Alternatives: 
As suggested by the City Council. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 

Spencer R. Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 

179



Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation 
Nomination Form 

The following individuals have been nominated to represent (City/County/Port/Tribe) 

___________________________________ on the Cascades West Area Commission on 

Transportation (CWACT). The nominations were made during a legally convened public 

meeting of the (City Council/Commission/Tribal Council) _________________________ 

on (date) __________________________. 

Signed: _______________________ Date _______________ Time ________________ 

CWACT Full Commission Primary Representative 

Name & Title: ___________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________ 

City____________________________ State _________________ Zip______________ 

Phone: _________________________ FAX: __________________________________ 

E-mail: ________________________________________________________________

CWACT Full Commission Alternate Representative 

Name & Title: ___________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________ 

City____________________________ State _________________ Zip______________ 

Phone: _________________________ FAX: __________________________________ 

E-mail: ________________________________________________________________

CWACT Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Representative 

Name & Title: ___________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________ 

City____________________________ State _________________ Zip______________ 

Phone: _________________________ FAX: __________________________________ 

E-mail: ________________________________________________________________
180



18
1



182



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item: 
From the Airport Committee – Land Lease for Hangar Site D-3 to Michael and Karyn Vest. 

 
Background: 
On January 9, 2024 the Airport Committee recommended that Council provide its  consent 
for the sale of a hangar on hangar site D-3 to Michael and Karyn Vest, and entered into a 
land lease for a new initial lease term of 15 years, and terminate the existing lease with 
5D Holdings, LLC.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to consent to the sale of the hangar located on hangar site D-3 to Michael and 
Karyn Vest, and enter into a land lease with Michael and Karyn Vest  for a new initial lease 
term of 15 years, and to terminate the existing land lease with 5D Holdings, LLC, effective 
on the date of the new lease with Michael and Karyn Vest. 
  
Fiscal Effects: 
None by this action.  The City will continue to receive lease payments from hangar site D-
3.  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended.    
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

183



       
       

   
 
        Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
       

 
 

 
 
Title: Land lease for hangar site D3 to Michael & Karyn Vest.    
 
Prepared by: Lance Vanderbeck, Airport Director  
  
Recommended Motion: Recommendation to City Council to consent to the sale of the 
hangar, on hangar site D3 to Michael & Karyn Vest, and enter into a land lease with Michael 
& Karyn Vest for a new initial lease term of 15 years, and to terminate the existing land lease 
3415 with 5D Holdings, LLC effective on the date of the new lease with Michael & Karyn 
Vest. 
 
Background Information:  
During the January 9, 2024 Airport Committee meeting approved a recommendation to 
City Council to approve a new land lease for hangar site D3 to Michael & Karyn Vest.  
 
Real Estate agent Nancy Moore informed city staff through email on December 28, 2023 
hangar D3 was placed under contract with Michael & Karyn Vest. Currently, Mr. Vest is 
in the process of purchasing aircraft N43091 Archer II, pending final inspection.    
 
Fiscal: Continued revenue for airport.  
 
Attachments: Draft Lease for Michael & Karyn Vest.    

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM 

 

184



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 1 of 17 

NEWPORT MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 
HANGAR SITE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
BETWEEN: The City of Newport, an Oregon Municipal Corporation (Lessor) 
 
AND:  Michael & Karyn Vest                                                      (Lessee) 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. The Newport Municipal Airport (Airport) is operated by and under the jurisdiction 

of Lessor. In accordance with sound Airport management practices, the Airport 
rules and regulations and the Airport Plan of Development, as updated and 
amended from time to time, and other relevant policies of Lessor that apply to 
Airport usage, certain areas of the Airport are reserved for each of the several 
types of activities that occur. 

 
B. Lessee desires to construct and maintain a hangar at the Airport in an area 

designated for such facilities, and Lessor is willing to Lease the land to Lessee for 
the purpose of constructing and maintaining such a hangar in accordance with 
the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease. 

 
C. The following are attached and incorporated as part of the Lease: 
 Exhibit A – Description and Map of Leased Premises (land only). 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. Lease. For the purpose stated in this Lease and on the other terms and 

conditions stated herein, Lessor leases to Lessee the land as described on the 
attached Exhibit A, consisting of 2,500 square feet (Leased Premises). 

 
2. Initial Term for a New Lease. The period of the Lease will be fifteen (15) years, 

commencing ____________ and expiring ____________ subject to earlier 
termination in accordance with the terms of this Lease. 

 
3. Extension Term. Provided Lessee is not in default in the performance of any term 

or condition of this Lease, Lessee shall have the option to extend this Lease for 
two (2) additional terms of five (5) years per term, commencing with the 
expiration of the first or additional term, upon the following conditions: 

 
3.1 The extension option may be exercised at any time between 360 and 60 

days prior to the expiration of the initial term, or any extension term, with 
written notice given to Lessor by the Lessee. If not exercised within such 
period and in such manner, the option to extend shall be void. Even if 
exercised timely, the granting of the option is conditional upon the 
provisions in this Paragraph 3. 

185



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 2 of 17 

 
3.2 Within sixty (60) days after receipt of Lessee’s notice of exercise of the 

extension option, Lessor shall cause the improvements to be inspected by 
the Building Official for the City of Newport. The inspection shall be for the 
purpose of determining the condition of the improvements. 

 
3.3 Following the inspection, Lessor shall notify Lessee of the inspection 

results, including a list of any necessary repairs. The additional term shall 
be contingent upon Lessee’s completion of any necessary repairs and/or 
resolution of code compliance issues. 

 
3.4 Additionally, Lessor may require as a further condition to Lessee’s right to 

continue the Lease for an extension term, that Lessee make such 
alterations, improvements, or repairs Lessor deems necessary or 
appropriate for the good of the Airport, taking into consideration the state 
of repair and condition of other similar and newer improvements located at 
the Airport, and the overriding desire to maintain clean, safe, and attractive 
facilities for other users of the Airport. Items considered for improvement 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, structural integrity of the hangar, 
exterior finish, condition and operation of doors, and condition of roof. To 
effectuate any such additional conditions, Lessee’s right to continue the 
Lease during the extension term shall be subject to a supplemental 
document between Lessor and Lessee, setting forth a reasonable time, 
determined by Lessor, in which such alterations and repairs will be made, 
and providing that upon Lessee’s failure to make such alterations and 
repairs within that period, the extension term shall immediately terminate, 
in which event the provisions of Paragraph 18 shall apply. 

 
3.5 As used herein, the Building Official is the individual occupying that 

position or similar position at the time the inspection is made, or that 
person’s designee or agent, or the individual occupying a similar position 
in a successor agency or governmental unit having building code 
jurisdiction over the Airport facilities. 

 
3.6 Upon the expiration of the two (2) additional terms of five (5) year 

extensions, the lease shall terminate. At that time, Lessee may negotiate 
with Lessor on the terms and conditions of a new lease.  

 
4. Basic Rent. 
 

4.1 Basic rent is $0.277 per square foot of ground space per year. Basic rent 
shall be due and payable on a monthly basis, $57.71 monthly ($692.50 
annually), prorated to the first day of the month following signing, and due 
on the same day of each month thereafter. 

 
4.2 Any payments or partial payments not made under this Lease shall bear 

interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum until paid. 

186



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 3 of 17 

 
5. Adjustments to Basic Rent. 
 

5.1 CPI Adjustment. The basic rent provided in Paragraph 4 shall be 
increased each year by a percentage equal to the percentage change in 
the Consumer Price Index statistics published by the United States Bureau 
of Labor. Comparisons shall be made using the index entitled, “U.S. City 
Average/All Items and Major Group Figures for all Urban Consumers 
Portland Area (1982-84 = 100),” or the nearest comparable data on 
changes in the cost of living, if such index is no longer published. The 
change shall be determined by comparison of the figure for the previous 
January 1, with that of January 1 of the current year. In no event shall this 
calculation cause a reduction in base rent below that payable during the 
preceding year. The proposed adjustment shall be presented to Lessee by 
Lessor thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the assessment. 

 
5.2 Challenge. Lessee may give Lessor notice, within thirty (30) days of the 

notice of rental adjustment, challenging Lessor’s figures. If any such 
challenge is not made within thirty (30) days, Lessee’s challenge to the 
figures presented by Lessor shall be deemed waived. The challenge shall 
be restricted to Lessor’s calculations of increases relating to Lessee and, if 
not resolved by the parties, will be referred to arbitration as described in 
Paragraph 23. 

 
5.3 Fee.  An annual maintenance fee may be established for hangar lease 

sites at the Airport pursuant to resolution of the Newport City Council as 
provided under Newport Municipal Code 9.40.010. 

 
6. Taxes. Lessee shall pay when and if levied, any taxes on the Leased Premises, 

as well as any taxes on improvements and fixtures constructed and maintained 
on the Leased Premises. If any taxes on the Leased Premises are levied against 
the Lessor, they shall be reimbursed to the Lessor within thirty (30) days of 
written notice from Lessor to Lessee. 

 
7. Pre-Approval of Plans; Required Reviews. Lessee shall construct and maintain 

upon the Leased Premises an aircraft hangar which shall in all respects comply 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and resolutions of all 
governmental entities, including Lessor. The plans and specifications of the 
hangar shall be subject to approval by Lessor. Lessee shall submit such plans 
and specifications for the Community Development Department’s departmental 
review process. No site preparation or construction shall be commenced without 
first obtaining the written approval of the City Manager or designee. The Lease 
will be subject to Lessee obtaining any required reviews for impact on project 
stormwater erosion control, and any other reviews deemed necessary by Lessor. 

 
8. Construction of Improvements. Lessee shall construct its planned facilities and 

install therein all necessary fixtures, equipment, and accessories, all of which 

187



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 4 of 17 

shall be in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Lease and any 
applicable city code or FAA requirements. Lessee shall complete construction of 
the new improvements within two (2) years after the Effective Date of this Lease. 
Existing improvements shall be deemed to have been appropriately constructed 
so long as they are well-maintained and meet all applicable city code and FAA 
requirements. It is expressly understood that upon the expiration of the Lease, all 
hangar improvements shall become property of Lessor. 

 
8.1 Lessee agrees to reimburse Lessor for the apportioned costs of roadway 

improvements including, but not limited to: excavation, paving, drainage, 
and fencing required for all extensions of the access road to the Leased 
Premises. Lessee shall be responsible for the cost of all extensions, as 
applicable, of all water, sewer, and other utilities to the Leased Premises, 
as well as any fees for obtaining service. Lessee shall be responsible for 
payment at the time improvements are completed. Lessee shall remit 
payment to Lessor within thirty (30) days from the date of invoice. 

 
8.2 Lessee agrees to construct, at Lessee’s expense, aircraft access 

improvements, including without limitation driveways, taxi lanes, aprons, 
and ramps to its planned facility. Construction and location of the access 
improvements shall comply with specifications set forth by Lessor at the 
time of plan’s approval. Lessee understands that those portions of the 
constructed Airport access improvements situated outside the boundaries 
of the Leased Premises shall become, immediately upon their completion 
to Lessor’s satisfaction, the property of Lessor. All construction and any 
connections to the runway of any apron or taxi lane shall in addition be 
governed by any rules or regulations regarding Airport operations and 
must be approved of and overseen by Airport management. Constructed 
facilities shall not be occupied until access is completed and accepted by 
Lessor. 

 
8.3 Upon completion of improvements, Lessee shall provide an 8 ½” x 11” site 

plan detailing a scaled drawing of the Leased Premises, hangar foot print, 
office area, parking, landscaping, and any other improvements. 

 
8.4 The provisions provided above do not relieve Lessee from compliance with 

all applicable building code requirements and acquiring all necessary 
licenses and permits from any governmental authority. 

 
8.5 If the aircraft hangar or other improvements on the Leased Premises are 

damaged or destroyed, Lessee shall do whatever is necessary to repair, 
rebuild, or restore the structure and other improvements to substantially 
the same condition existing prior to the damage or destruction within 180 
days of the date of destruction. Upon written request from Lessee, Lessor 
may extend the 180-day timeline to the extent reasonably necessary due 
to conditions beyond the control of Lessee. 

 

188



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 5 of 17 

9. Use of the Leased Premises. Use of the Leased Premises is limited to 
aeronautical uses. The Lessee may use the Leased Premises, at its own risk, for 
the following purposes and for no other purpose (including commercial or 
business use) without the prior written approval of the Airport Director: 

 
9.1 Construction of an aircraft hangar for private use by the Lessee in 

accordance with Airport rules and regulations; 
 
 9.2 Storage of aircraft; 
 

9.3 Supplies, equipment, and other ancillary items necessary for the safe 
operations and maintenance of the Lessee’s aircraft; 

 
9.4 Construction, maintenance, and repair of Lessee’s aircraft by Lessee or by 

a person or firm in accordance with current and applicable future Airport 
rules and regulations. 

 
9.5 The hangar cannot be used for temporary or permanent residential use. 
 
9.6 Storage of non-aeronautical items that do not interfere with the 

aeronautical use of the hangar, in accordance with FAA and any related 
Airport rules and regulations. 

 
10. Lessee’s Additional Use Rights. Lessee shall have the use of Airport facilities and 

navigational aids for the purpose of landing, taking off, and taxiing of Lessee’s 
aircraft, and related rights of ingress and egress 24 hours a day, subject to the 
current or any amended laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and resolutions of 
applicable governmental bodies, including Lessor. 

 
11. Restriction on Assignment and Sublease. Lessee shall not assign this Lease, or 

any interest herein, including a sale/purchase of Lessee’s aircraft hangar, or 
sublease the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor. As a 
condition of any consent to assignment, Lessor may require one or more of the 
following: 

 
11.1 Updating Lease. Lessor may require or allow Lessee and/or the assignee 

to execute Lessor’s then current form of hangar site Lease, including a 
new initial lease term of fifteen (15) years, or a partial or complete 
amendment of this Lease to incorporate the terms and provisions of 
Lessor’s then current form of hangar site Lease. 

 
11.2 Environmental Assessment. If Lessor reasonably believes that there is a 

question regarding hazardous materials or other environmental issues that 
relate to Lessee’s use of the premises, Lessor may require, as a condition 
of assignment, an environmental assessment. Such assessment would be 
at Lessee’s expense, as a condition of approval of assignment. 

 

189



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 6 of 17 

11.3 Assumption. The assignee shall expressly assume Lessee’s obligations 
under this Lease, as may be modified in accordance with Paragraph 11.1. 
Any approval of assignment is not a release from any and all obligations of 
Lessee under the Lease, except to the extent that Lessor specifically, in 
writing, releases Lessee from such obligations. This provision does not 
apply to any of assignor Lessee’s obligations as set forth in Paragraph 
12.6. 

 
11.4 As a condition of approval, Lessor may require any improvements to the 

Leased Premises to bring it into compliance with rules or regulations of the 
Airport. 

 
12. Specific Obligations of Lessee. In connection with Lessee’s occupancy and use 

of the Leased Premises, the following specific conditions shall apply: 
 

12.1 Utilities. Lessor shall not be obligated to furnish any utilities or utility 
services to the Leased Premises. If, upon Lessee’s request, Lessor agrees 
to provide utility services to the Leased Premises as a condition of 
providing service, Lessee shall be responsible for all costs of installation of 
such service, including transmission lines, connection fees and utility 
service charges. Prior to construction, a payment agreement in a form 
acceptable to the Lessor shall be entered into between the parties. If 
payment includes costs of any transmission lines that have the potential 
for use by other lessees, there would be included a repayment schedule to 
the original paying Lessee as other parties apply for service. Such 
reimbursement agreement shall not exceed ten (10) years in length. 

 
12.2 Maintenance. Lessee shall, at its own cost, keep and maintain the Leased 

Premises, including hangar building, grounds, and all other improvements 
in good condition and repair. In determining whether or not the Leased 
Premises are in proper condition, the Airport Director shall take into 
consideration the appearance and character of other similar improvements 
at the Airport which are in good condition and repair. It is specifically 
acknowledged that the condition or repair includes appearance and 
improvements of the Leased Premises, and therefore the condition of paint 
or other exterior finish. Lessee shall not store parts, equipment, or other 
materials outside the hangar structure. Lessee shall not permit any refuse 
or debris to be deposited or to accumulate on the Leased Premises. 
Lessee shall not permit any bird nesting or attractants on the Leased 
Premises. Failure to maintain the Leased Premises shall be deemed a 
breach of this Lease. 

 
12.3 Taxi Lane. The cost of construction of the taxi lane shall be an obligation 

of the Lessee. Such construction shall be subject to the approval of the 
Lessor. Once constructed, the Lessor shall be responsible for 
maintenance and repair of the taxi lane. A taxi lane is defined as the 
portion of the aircraft parking area used for access between taxiways and 

190



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 7 of 17 

aircraft parking positions. A taxiway is defined as a path connecting 
runways with ramps, hangars, terminals, and other facilities. 

 
12.4 Compliance with Laws. Lessee shall comply with all applicable laws, 

ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations of any governmental bodies 
having jurisdiction over the Airport with respect to Lessee’s activity in 
relation to the use and occupancy of the Leased Premises, and of the 
Airport in general. Any act or failure to act by Lessee or by any subtenant, 
employee, invitee, or agent of Lessee in violation of any such laws, 
ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations shall be deemed a violation 
of this Lease. 

 
12.5 Airport Rules and Regulations. Lessee’s obligation under Paragraph 12.4 

shall include, but not be limited to, the rules and regulations of the Airport. 
Lessor reserves the right to adopt additional rules and regulations and 
amend existing and future rules and regulations which govern the Leased 
Premises and the facilities at the Airport used by the Lessee. Lessee 
agrees to observe, obey, and abide by all such rules and regulations 
currently existing or hereafter adopted or amended. Any action or failure to 
act by Lessee or by any subtenant, employee, invitee, or agent of Lessee 
which is in violation of such rules and regulations shall be deemed a 
violation by Lessee of this Lease. 

 
12.6 Environmental Laws. Lessee’s obligations under this Lease specifically 

include, but are not limited to, strict and timely compliance with all 
environmental laws. Lessee shall ensure that all operations on the Leased 
Premises comply with all environmental laws and orders of any 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction under any environmental laws. 
Lessee shall exercise extreme care in handling hazardous substances and 
shall undertake any and all preventive, investigatory, or remedial action 
(including emergency response, removal, containment, and other remedial 
action) which is either required by any applicable environmental laws or 
orders of any governmental authority having jurisdiction under such laws, 
or necessary to prevent or minimize property damage, personal injury or 
damage to the environment or threat of any such damage or injury, by 
releases of, or exposure to, hazardous materials in connection with the 
Leased Premises or operations thereon. Lessee shall immediately notify 
Lessor upon becoming aware of any leak, spill, release or disposal of 
hazardous substances on, under, or adjacent to the Leased Premises. In 
the event Lessee fails to perform any of Lessee’s obligations under this 
paragraph, Lessor may, but shall not be required to, perform such 
obligations at Lessee’s expense. In performing any such obligations of 
Lessee, Lessor shall at all times be deemed the agent of Lessee and shall 
not, by reason of such performance, be deemed to be assuming any 
responsibility of Lessee under any environmental law or to any other third 
party. At any time Lessor reasonably requests, Lessee shall provide to 
Lessor further assurance of Lessee’s compliance with this paragraph. The 

191



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 8 of 17 

assurances shall be in a form and substance satisfactory to Lessor, in 
Lessor’s sole discretion, and may include but not be limited to, Lessee 
providing to Lessor an environmental audit or assessment from a source 
acceptable to Lessor, at Lessee’s expense. 

 
12.6.1 As used in this Lease, the term “environmental laws” means all 

state, federal, and local statutes, regulations, and ordinances 
relating to the protection of human health and the environment. 

 
12.6.2 In this Lease, the term “hazardous materials” is used in its very 

broadest sense and refers to materials that, because of their 
quantity, concentration or physical, chemical, or infectious 
characteristics, may cause or pose a present or potential hazard to 
human health and to the environment when improperly used, 
treated, stored, disposed of, generated, manufactured, transported, 
or otherwise handled on the Leased Premises. The term includes, 
without limitation, petroleum products or crude oil or any fraction 
thereof, and any and all hazardous or toxic substances, materials, 
or wastes as defined by or listed under the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and 
Liability Act, and any other environmental laws. 

 
12.7 Signs. In addition to complying with any rule(s) or regulation(s) of Lessor 

pertaining to signs, Lessee shall not permit to be maintained any sign on 
the Leased Premises or at the Airport without the prior written approval of 
the Airport Director. This approval and rules and regulations are in addition 
to any rules or regulations that would apply to this site by any applicable 
governmental jurisdiction. 

 
12.8 Aviation Easement. Lessee acknowledges that its right to use the Leased 

Premises shall be secondary and subordinate to the operation of the 
Airport. Lessor reserves a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the 
airspace above the Leased Premises together with the right to cause noise 
inherent in the operation of aircraft. Lessee shall not take any action or 
construct any improvements that interfere with the navigational aids of 
flight operations of the Airport. 

 
12.9 Security. Lessee recognizes its obligation to comply with federal airport 

security regulations. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor in full for any fines or 
penalties levied against Lessor for security violations as a result of any 
actions on the part of Lessee, its agents, invitees, or employees. 

 
13. Liability to Third Parties. 
 

13.1 Lessee’s Indemnification. Lessee shall at all times indemnify, protect, 
defend, and hold harmless Lessor, its officers, agents, and employees 

192



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 9 of 17 

from any claims, demands, losses, actions, or expenses, including 
attorney fees, to which Lessor may be subject by reason of any property 
damage or personal injury arising or alleged to arise from the acts or 
omissions of Lessee, its agents, invitees, or employees, or in connection 
with the use, occupancy, or condition of the Leased Premises. 

 
13.2 Liability Insurance Required. Lessee shall procure and maintain 

throughout the term of this Lease and any extension, at Lessee’s cost, 
public liability and property damage insurance from a company authorized 
to do business in the State of Oregon with the combined single limit of not 
less than $1,000,000 and the general aggregate of not less than 
$2,000,000 for bodily injury, death, personal property or property damage 
in connection with Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Leased Premises, or 
the exercise of enjoyment of rights or privileges granted by this Lease. 
Lessor shall have the right to require Lessee to increase the limits of such 
coverage from time to time to an amount deemed by Lessor to be 
reasonable in view of conditions and circumstances existing at the time of 
such increase. Such circumstances include any modification by either 
court ruling or legislative change to the maximum recovery allowed under 
the Oregon Tort Claims Act. The insurance shall name Lessor, its officers, 
agents, and employees as additional insureds with the stipulation that the 
insurance, as to the interests of Lessor, shall not be invalidated by any act 
or neglect or breach of contract by Lessee. Lessee shall provide Lessor 
with a certificate of insurance evidencing the required coverage, with a 
thirty (30) day notice of cancellation or material change in coverage and 
shall provide Lessor with such evidence that the policy remains in force as 
Lessor may require from time to time. 

 
13.3 Liens. Except with respect to activities for which Lessor is responsible, 

Lessee shall pay as due all claims for work done on and for services 
rendered or material furnished to the Leased Premises and shall keep 
Leased Premises free from any liens. If Lessee fails to pay any such 
claims or to discharge any lien, Lessor may do so and collect the cost as 
additional rent. Any amount so added shall bear interest at the rate of 12% 
per annum from the date expended by Lessor and shall be payable on 
demand. Such action by Lessor shall not constitute a waiver of any right or 
remedy which Lessor may have on account of Lessee’s default. 

 
14. Subordination. This Lease shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing 

or future agreement between Lessor and the State of Oregon and/or the United 
States relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of 
which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure 
of state or federal funds for the development of the Airport, or any amendments 
thereto. 

 
15. Cessation of Airport Operation. Lessor, regardless of the terms of this lease, as a 

result of any orders of the State of Oregon, the United States, or any other 

193



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 10 of 17 

governmental unit or instrumentality, may cease airport operations. Lessee 
acknowledges Lessor’s right to cease such operations and releases Lessor from 
any and all damage claims by Lessee against Lessor as a result of such 
cessation of operations. This release does not apply to any other party who may 
be the basis for Lessor’s cessation of operations. Subject to the orders of 
cessation, Lessee shall be granted a period of twelve (12) months free of any 
rents and fees in which to cause the Leased Premises to be restored to a 
condition free of all improvements, including hangars and debris. Lessor shall not 
be liable to Lessee for any damages related to loss in use of the Leased 
Premises due to action under this paragraph. This provision does not eliminate 
any obligations of Lessee as a result of liability or indemnification obligations as 
set forth in other provisions of this lease. 

 
16. Airport Development. Regardless of the term of this lease, Lessor, at Lessor’s 

discretion or as a result of any orders of the State of Oregon, United States, or 
any other governmental unit or instrumentality having authority over the property 
may require the cessation of use of the specific Leased Premises for their leased 
purposes, prior to the expiration of this lease for the purpose of airport 
development. At Lessor’s option and expense, Lessor shall either (1) dismantle 
and move to another leasable premises on the Airport property, and there re-
erect Lessee’s improvement(s) or, (2) purchase Lessee’s improvement for fair 
market value as determined below. If Lessor acts under the first option, the lease 
reference to location of the Leased Premises shall change, and all other 
remaining terms of the expired lease shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
Fair market value under the second option shall be for an amount not less than 
the fair market value of the improvement immediately prior to determination as 
determined by an appraisal conducted by an independent appraiser engaged by 
Lessor. Specifically, the appraiser shall not determine salvage value, but rather 
the fair market value of the improvement, assuming the Airport was to remain in 
existence or the party to continue to use the leased area. Purchase price shall be 
determined and all funds transferred within 180 days of termination. Obligations 
of removal shall be Lessor’s. This action does not eliminate any obligations of 
Lessee as a result of any liability or indemnification obligations as set forth in 
other provisions of this lease. 

 
17. Eminent Domain. If the Leased Premises and any improvements thereon are 

taken as a result of eminent domain proceedings, it shall be as if termination was 
a result of Paragraph 15, except the time allowed for removal of Lessee’s 
improvements by Lessee shall be subject to the time limitation in any 
condemnation order or twelve (12) months, whichever is shorter. Lessor shall be 
entitled to all proceeds of condemnation as applied to the value of any real 
property condemned. Lessee shall be entitled to the value of all improvements. 
Lessee specifically waives any claims against Lessor as a result of 
condemnation, except such condemnation as may be instituted by Lessor upon 
Lessor’s own actions and not as a result of any order by other governmental unit.  

 

194



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 11 of 17 

18. Removal of Personal Property and Fixtures. 
 

18.1 Lessee shall remove all personal property and return the Leased Premises 
to proper condition upon the end of the term(s), or other cessation of use 
by Lessee, as set forth below. Lessee shall remove all Lessee property 
except fixtures permanently or semi-permanently affixed, which shall 
become property of the Lessor upon lease termination or abandonment by 
Lessee, and restore the grounds to a clean and orderly condition free of all 
debris. 

 
18.2 Abandonment. If Lessee abandons the Leased Premises, Lessor may 

treat such abandonment as a default under this Lease, and Lessor may 
exercise any rights it may have as in the case of default for which Lessee 
is not entitled to notice. Lessee shall be deemed to have abandoned the 
Leased Premises if it fails to occupy the same for a period of three (3) 
months; however, Lessor may consider Lessee to have abandoned the 
Leased Premises by other acts, words, or conduct evidencing 
abandonment or intent to abandon the Leased Premises. Any personal 
property remaining on the Leased Premises sixty (60) days after 
termination of this Lease for any reason shall be deemed as abandoned 
by Lessee and Lessor may make any disposition of such personal 
property as it deems appropriate. Lessor may charge Lessee for the 
reasonable costs incurred in disposing of such personal property. Upon 
abandonment, Lessee loses all rights and options set forth in Paragraph 
18.1. Lessee remains responsible for all Lessor’s costs. 

 
19. Default. Lessee shall be in default under this Lease upon the occurrence of any 

one or more of the following events (time of payment and performance being of 
the essence): 

 
19.1 Failure of Lessee to pay any rent or other charges within thirty (30) days 

after the same becomes due. 
 

19.2 Except as otherwise provided in this Paragraph 19, the failure of Lessee to 
comply with any term or condition, to fulfill any obligation, or to cure any 
violation of this Lease within thirty (30) days after written notice by Lessor 
specifying the nature of the default with reasonable particularity. If the 
default is of such a nature that it cannot be completely remedied within 
thirty (30) days, this provision shall be deemed complied with if Lessee 
begins correction of the default within the thirty (30) day period and 
thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to effect 
the remedy as soon as practicable. Lessor may require, as part of the cure 
of any violation by Lessee, reimbursement from Lessee for any and all 
costs and expenses incurred by Lessor by reason of Lessee’s violation of 
this Lease. 

 

195



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 12 of 17 

19.3 If Lessee cures a deficiency in the manner described in Paragraph 19.2, 
Lessee’s subsequent failure to comply with the same term or condition 
within twenty-four (24) months shall constitute immediate default without 
requirement of notice or opportunity to cure. 

 
19.4 If Lessee sub-leases or otherwise assigns its interests in this Lease, 

except in accordance with the provisions of the Lease, default shall be 
automatic without requirement of notice or opportunity to cure. 

 
 19.5 Lessee shall also be in default in the event of: 
 
  1. Lessee’s insolvency; 
 
  2. An assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors; 
 
  3. The filing by Lessee of a voluntary petition of bankruptcy action; 
 
  4. Adjudication that Lessee is bankrupt; 
 

5. The filing of an involuntary petition of bankruptcy and the failure of 
Lessee to seek a dismissal of the petition within thirty (30) days 
after the filing; and 

 
6. The attachment of or the levy of execution on the Lease hold 

interest and failure of the Lessee to secure a discharge of the 
attachment or release of the levy of execution within ten (10) days 
after such attachment or execution; 

 
  7. Abandonment of the Leased Premises. 
 
20. Inspections. Lessor shall have, at all times during normal business hours, the 

right to enter into the Leased Premises and inspect Lessee’s facilities and 
operations for the purposes of determining Lessee’s compliance with its 
obligations under this Lease. Lessor shall provide at least 24 hours’ notice before 
any inspection except in cases of emergency. Notice shall be sufficient if 
prominently posted on the building on the Leased Premises 24 hours prior to the 
inspection. 

 
21. Remedies on Default. In the event of a default, the Lease may be terminated at 

the option of the Lessor by notice in writing to Lessee. The notice of termination 
may be included in a notice of failure of compliance given under Paragraph 19. If 
the Leased Premises is abandoned by Lessee in connection with a default, 
termination shall be automatic and without notice. If the Lease is terminated for 
any reason, Lessee’s liability to Lessor for damages for breach shall survive such 
termination, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be as follows: 

 

196



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 13 of 17 

21.1 Lessee shall vacate the Leased Premises immediately, remove any 
property of Lessee including any fixtures which Lessee is required to 
remove at the end of the Lease term, perform any cleanup, alterations or 
other work required to leave the Leased Premises in the condition required 
by this Lease at the end of the term, and deliver all keys to Lessor. 
Possession to any structure on the Leased Premises shall immediately 
revert to Lessor and Lessee shall have no right or claim against Lessor as 
a result thereof. 

 
21.2 Lessor may re-enter, take possession of the Leased Premises, and 

remove any persons or property by legal action or self-help with the use of 
reasonable force and without liability for damages. 

 
21.3 Following re-entry or abandonment, Lessor may relet the Leased 

Premises and in that connection may relet all or part of the Leased 
Premises, alone or in conjunction with other properties, for a term longer 
or shorter than the term of this Lease, upon any reasonable terms and 
conditions, including the granting of some rent-free occupancy or other 
rent concession, and may make any suitable alterations and/or refurbish 
the Leased Premises, or change the character or use of the Leased 
Premises, but Lessor shall not be required to relet to any Lessee which 
Lessor may reasonably consider objectionable. 

 
21.4 The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to and shall not exclude any 

other remedy available to Lessor under applicable law or as set forth in 
this Lease. 

 
21.5 Any holding over after the expiration of the lease, with the written consent 

of Lessor, will be construed to be a tenancy from month to month, at 150% 
of the Basic Rent payable for the period immediately before the expiration 
of the Term and will otherwise be on the terms and conditions of this 
Lease. If Lessor consents to any such holding over, either party may 
thereafter terminate the tenancy at any time upon thirty (30) days’ advance 
written notice to the other party. Any holding over without consent will be a 
tenancy at sufferance, which Lessor may terminate at any time without 
notice. 

 
22. Attorney Fees and Costs. In the event any action or claim relating to the 

enforcement or interpretation of any of the terms of this Lease is made, except as 
stated in Paragraph 23, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs, 
fees, and expenses reasonably incurred, whether or not taxable as costs, 
including without limitation, attorney fees, inspection and investigation costs, 
copying charges, and all other related expenses. 

 
In the event any litigation is commenced relating to this Lease, including but not 
limited to any action or participation by Lessee or Lessor in or connected with a 
case or proceeding under the Bankruptcy Code or any successor statute, the 

197



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 14 of 17 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs, fees and expenses 
reasonably incurred, before and after trial, and on appeal and review, whether or 
not taxable as costs, including without limitation, attorney fees (including 
estimated fees to collect a judgment entered in favor of the prevailing party), 
witness fees (expert or otherwise), deposition costs, inspection and investigation 
costs, copying charges and all other related expenses. Expenses incurred in the 
event of arbitration shall be treated as if they were expenses incurred in litigation. 

 
23. Arbitration. If any contract dispute arises between the parties, it shall be decided 

by arbitration unless both parties agree to waive arbitration and proceed with 
litigation. Upon request for arbitration, the party requesting arbitration shall 
submit to the other party a list of the names of five independent arbitrators. The 
other party may select any one of the five. If the parties cannot decide on an 
arbitrator with qualifications that relate to the dispute at hand within fifteen (15) 
days, then either party may apply to the presiding judge of the Lincoln County 
Circuit Court, Oregon, to appoint the required arbitrator. 

 
The Arbitrator shall proceed according to Oregon statutes governing arbitration, 
and any rules specifically adopted by the parties. If the parties do not agree upon 
rules for the arbitration, the Arbitrator shall establish rules and advise each 
respective party. The award of the Arbitrator shall have the effect provided in the 
Oregon Revised Statutes. The arbitration shall take place in Lincoln County, 
Oregon. Costs of arbitration and attorney fees and costs may be awarded to a 
party at the discretion of the Arbitrator. 

 
24. Discrimination Prohibited. In connection with Lessee’s use and occupancy of the 

Leased Premises and the conduct of its operations at the Airport, Lessee shall be 
bound by the following non-discrimination requirements: 

 
24.1 General. Lessee will not discriminate against any person or class of 

persons by reason of race, color, national origin, sex, ancestry, creed, or 
on any other grounds prohibited by law. 

 
24.2 Civil Rights Act. Lessee will not on the grounds of race, creed, color, 

national origin or on any other prohibited grounds, discriminate or permit 
any discrimination against any person or group of persons in any manner 
prohibited by Part 21 of the Rules and Regulations of the Secretary of 
Transportation, effectuating Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Lessee agrees not to discriminate 
against any employees or applicants for employment because of race, 
creed, color, national origin or on any other prohibited grounds. 

 
24.3 FAA required terms. As required by the FAA, the following clauses are 

made part of Lessee’s obligations under this Lease: 
 

1. Lessee for itself, and its heirs, personal representatives, successors 
in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does 

198



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 15 of 17 

hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land 
that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise 
operated on the said property described in this lease for a purpose 
for which a US Department of Transportation program or activity is 
extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar 
services or benefits, the Lessee shall maintain and operate such 
facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements 
imposed pursuant to 49 CFR Part 21, Nondiscrimination in 
Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation, 
and as said Regulations may be amended. 

 
2. Lessee for itself, and its heirs, personal representatives, successors 

in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does 
hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land 
that: (1) no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin 
shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities; (2) 
that in the construction or any improvements on, over, or under 
such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the 
grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from 
participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to 
discrimination; (3) that the Lessee shall use the Leased Premises in 
compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to 49 CFR 
Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the 
Department of Transportation, and as said Regulations may be 
amended. 

 
25. Non-Waiver. Waiver by either party of strict performance of any provisions of this 

Lease shall not be a waiver of or prejudice the party’s right to require strict 
performance of the same provisions in the future or of any other provision. No act 
or omission shall constitute a waiver of this non-waiver clause. 

 
26. Notices. Any notice required or permitted under this Lease shall be considered 

given when actually delivered in person or when deposited with postage prepaid 
in the United States mail as registered or certified mail: 

 
 To Lessor:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 To Lessee:   
 
 

Michael & Karyn Vest 
5605 SW Arbor Drive 
South Beach, OR 97366 
858-774-4553 
mike@thevest.org  
 

Newport Municipal Airport 
c/o City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, Oregon 97365 
541.574.0603  
s.nebel@newportoregon.gov 

 

199

mailto:mike@thevest.org
mailto:s.nebel@newportoregon.gov


Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 16 of 17 

Or to such other address as may be specified from time to time by either of the parties in 
writing. 
 
27. Interpretation and Liability. In interpreting this Lease, the singular shall include 

the plural. If Lessee consists of more than one individual or entity, each such 
individual and entity shall be jointly and severally liable for Lessee’s obligations 
under this Lease. 

 
 The provisions of this Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Oregon, without regard to conflict of law principles.  
Any actions or suits arising under this Lease must be brought in the appropriate 
court of the State of Oregon, and the parties hereby consent to venue in Lincoln 
County Circuit Court, Oregon, unless exclusive jurisdiction is in federal court, in 
which case venue shall be in federal district court for the District of Oregon. 

 
28. Succession. Subject to the limitations set forth elsewhere in this Lease on the 

transfer of Lessee’s interest, this Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties, their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, 
and assigns. 

 
29. Clearing Matters of Record. Only at the option of Lessor shall this Lease or a 

memorandum of this Lease be recorded. If, at the election of Lessor, Lessor 
determines to create and record a memorandum of this Lease, Lessee shall 
execute such memorandum at the request of Lessor. In the event this Lease or 
Lessee’s interest in this Lease or in the Leased Premises becomes a matter of 
record by any means, directly or indirectly, without the consent of Lessor, then at 
any time after termination of this Lease or termination of Lessee’s interest in this 
Lease, upon request by Lessor, Lessee shall execute documents, in recordable 
form, as Lessor may reasonably require evidencing the termination of Lessee’s 
interest. This obligation shall survive termination of this Lease and termination of 
Lessee’s interest in this Lease. 

 
30. Inconveniences During Construction. Lessee recognizes that from time to time 

during the term of this Lease, it will be necessary for Lessor to initiate and carry 
forward programs of construction, reconstruction, expansion, relocation, 
maintenance, and repair in order that the Airport and its facilities may be suitable 
for the volume and character of air traffic and flight activity requiring 
accommodation, and that such construction, reconstruction, expansion, 
relocation, maintenance, and repair may inconvenience or temporarily interrupt 
Lessee’s operations at the Airport. Lessee agrees that no liability shall attach to 
Lessor, its officers, agents, employees, contractors, and representatives by 
reason of such inconveniences or interruptions and, for and in further 
consideration of this Lease, Lessee waives any right to claim damages or other 
considerations therefore, except that rent payable under this Lease shall be 
abated proportionately during and for such period that access to the Leased 
Premises by aircraft of Lessee and its invitees is denied by reason of such 
inconveniences or interruptions. 

200



Airport Hangar Lease – June 2023 template 
Page 17 of 17 

 
31. Rights Not Exclusive. Except for Lessee’s right to use and occupy the Leased 

Premises under this Lease, nothing in this Lease shall be construed as granting 
an exclusive right to Lessee. 

 
32. Entire Agreement. This Lease contains the entire Agreement between the parties 

concerning the Leased Premises and supersedes all prior agreements, oral and 
written, concerning the Leased Premises. This Lease may be modified only in 
writing and signed by the parties. 

 
The individuals executing this Lease warrant that they have full authority to execute this 
Lease and that they have thoroughly read this Lease prior to executing it. 
 
 
LESSOR:      LESSEE: 
 
City of Newport     Michael & Karyn Vest 
By: Spencer R. Nebel, City Manager 
 
 
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
 
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Date 

201



 

202



20
3



204



20
5



206



20
7



208



20
9



210



21
1



212



21
3



214



21
5



216



21
7



218



21
9



220



22
1



222



22
3



224



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
Agenda Item: 
Report and Possible Action of Modification to the City of Newport's Defined Contribution 
Retirement Program. 
 
Background: 
The City has been reviewing a number of issues to strengthen workplace culture within 
the City of Newport. During a job market in which there are more jobs than employees for 
many types of positions, employers are seeing much higher turnover and having difficulty 
in filling certain positions within their organizations. This is true for the City of Newport, as 
well. In 2012,  the City implemented a defined contribution retirement programs for all 
employees hired after March 5, 2012. This program provides a contribution into the City 
Newport employees retirement plan of 6% and will add an additional 3%, if the employee 
is participating in an employee-funded 457(b) deferred compensation plan. The 
workplace culture subcommittee is recommending that the City Council consider a 
change to the defined contribution retirement program by increasing the amount the City 
will match in the retirement fund from 3% to 6%. In this scenario, if an employee is a 
contributing at least 6% of their income into a qualified 457(b) deferred compensation 
plan, then the City would match that 6% in the City of Newport's retirement plan 
contributing 12%. This change does two things: One, it makes our retirement program a 
little more competitive. We are competing with other local governments that are PERS 
units. This will allow employees to build a higher pension, both through City contributions 
into the Newport employees retirement plan and build retirement funds in a qualified 
457(b) deferred compensation plan. This would be effective January 1, 2024. 
 
In addition, the current vesting requirements in the defined contribution retirement 
program provides the following:  
 

Years of Service Vesting Percentage 
Less than 3  

3 years  50% 
4 years 62% 
5 years 75% 

6 years 87.5% 
7 years or more  100%  

 
  

225



I am proposing that the City Council consider modifying this provision as follows: 
 

Years of Service Vesting Percentage 
Less than 1 year 0% 
2 years 40% 
3 years 60% 

4 years 80% 
5 years 100% 

 
We would maintain the provision that provides that an employee who reaches normal 
retirement age of 62 shall be hundred percent vested. I have reviewed this with the 
pension attorney, Christine Moehl of Saalfeld Griggs, and she has indicated that if Council 
is comfortable moving forward she will prepare the proper plan amendments which will 
have to be brought back to the City Council for approval.   
 
This change will only affect employees hired after March 5, 2012 that are currently 
covered by the 6+3 Defined Contribution Retirement Program. 
 
[Disclosure -- The City Manager employment agreement provides that the same benefits 
are provided to the City Manager as provided to the non-union department heads, unless 
stipulated differently in the agreement. Therefore, I would be eligible for this benefit if it is 
approved by the City Council.] 
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion:  
 
I move to authorize the City Manager to initiate an amendment of the City’s 6+3 Defined 
Contribution Retirement Plan to increase the contribution by the City for matching pretax 
deferrals to a City of Newport 457(b) deferred compensation program from 3% to 6%, and 
consider reducing the vesting for 100% vesting from seven years to five years.  
    
Fiscal Effects: 
The City will incur legal expenses from Saalfeld Griggs in order to complete the plan 
amendments as provided for in the motion. 
  

Alternatives:  
Do not proceed with this change, consider other changes to the pension plan, or as  
suggested by the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 

226



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item: 
Consideration of an Amendment to the Safe Routes to School Intergovernmental Grant 
Agreement for Bike and Pedestrian Improvements Along NE Harney Street.  
 
Background: 
On January 17, 2023, the Newport City Council authorized the City Manager to execute 
an intergovernmental agreement with the Oregon Department of Transportation for 
$1,309,752 for safe routes to school funds to improve bicycle and pedestrian safety 
among NE Harney Street. The total cost project is expected be $2,182,920 with the 
balance of the project coming from the North Side Urban Renewal District 
 
This project will be coordinated with an ODOT initiated intersection improvement project 
at US 20/Harney/Moore and will start construction in 2027 and will include signal 
enhancements, new turn lanes and crosswalk improvements.  
 
With the departure of the City Engineer and Assistant City Engineer, it is not possible to 
meet the original timeframe completing the design in September 2023, and the planned 
improvements completed by September 2024. The amendment defers both of these 
milestones for a period of 12 months. No other changes are made to the agreement.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I authorize the City Manager to execute the first amendment to the intergovernmental 
grant agreement number SRTS23-12 that will extend the estimated completion dates for 
design and construction by 12 months, subject to review and approval of the amendment 
by the City Attorney.   
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended.   
 
  

227



Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

228



Page 1 of 1 

       
       
   
 
             
   
                  Date: January 16, 2024 

 
 
Title: Authorization to Execute a First Amendment to Safe Routes to School Intergovernmental 
Grant Agreement No. SRTS23-12 for Bike/Ped Improvements Along NE Harney Street 
 
Prepared by: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director    
 
Recommended Motion I move to authorize the City Manager to execute this first amendment to 
Intergovernmental Grant Agreement No. SRTS23-12 that extends the estimated completion dates 
for design and construction by 12-months, subject to review and approval by the City Attorney. 
 
Background Information:  On January 17, 2023, the Newport City Council authorized the City 
Manager to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) for $1,309,752 of Safe Routes to School funds to improve bicycle and 
pedestrian safety along NE Harney Street. The total cost of the project is expected to be 
$2,182,920, with the balance of the project funding, $873,168, coming from the Northside Urban 
Renewal District.  The Intergovernmental Agreement was fully executed on May 15, 2023. 
 
Attachment A to the Agreement includes the key milestones and schedule for the project.  The 
estimated date for completing design, permitting and land acquisition was September 1, 2023.  
Construction of the planned improvements was to be completed by September 1, 2024.  With the 
departure of the City Engineer and Assistant City Engineer, it is not possible for the City to meet these 
milestones.  Accordingly, city staff requested that this amendment be prepared to defer both 
milestones for a period of 12-months. The new estimated completion date for design, permitting and 
land acquisition is September 1, 2024 with construction of the planned improvements to be 
completed by September 1, 2025.  In preparing the amendment, ODOT also took the opportunity to 
amend the terms of the agreement to extend the City’s maintenance responsibility to 20 years for 
portions of the project that are within ODOT right-of-way.  This amounts to a small section of sidewalk 
and curb ramps. 
 
This project is being coordinated with an ODOT initiated intersection improvement at US 
20/Harney/Moore that will go under construction in 2027.  The ODOT project will include signal 
enhancements, new turn lanes, and crosswalk improvements.  This amendment will allow the design 
of the two projects to be more closely coordinated.  The Safe Routes to School grant funds must be 
utilized within 5 years of the date of the original grant agreement. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  There are no fiscal impacts associated with this amendment. 
 
Alternatives:  Seek revisions to the agreement, forgo the agreement (and grant funds), or as 
suggested by Council. 
 
Attachments:   
First Amendment to Agreement No. SRTS23-12 
Request for Change Order 
Executed Agreement No. SRTS23-12 
Concept Drawing of Planned Improvements 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

229



Misc. Contracts and Agreements 
No. SRTS23-12 

 
AMENDMENT NUMBER 01 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM (SRTS) GRANT AGREEMENT 
Newport MS / Harney / Sidewalk / 22 

City of Newport 

This is Amendment No. 01 to the Agreement between the State of Oregon, acting by 
and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as “State” or 
“ODOT,” and City of Newport, acting by and through its Governing Body, hereinafter 
referred to as “Recipient,” entered into on June 23, 2023. 

It has now been determined by State and Recipient that the Agreement referenced above 
shall be amended to extend the Project Completion date and update Exhibit B. Section 3. 

1. Effective Date.  This Amendment shall become effective on the date it is fully executed 
and approved as required by applicable law.   

2. Amendment to Agreement.  Deleted information is shown in strikethrough and 
added information is shown in underline. 

a. Exhibit A, Section B, “Table 1: Key Milestones” 

 
Table 1: Key Milestones 
 

Key Milestone Description Estimated Due Date 

1 Planning, design, permitting and land 
acquisition. 

9/1/23 9/1/24 

2 Project completion (Project must be 
completed within 5 years of agreement 
execution.) 

9/1/24 9/1/25 

 
b. Exhibit B, Section 3 

3.  Recipient shall, at its own expense, maintain, and operate, repair, and 
replace the Project upon completion and throughout the useful life of the 
Project at a minimum level that is consistent with normal depreciation or 
service demand or both.  The Parties agree that the useful life of the Project 
is defined as seven (7) years from its completion date (the “Project Useful 
Life”).  After the Project Useful Life, maintenance of the Project shall conform 
to any maintenance agreement in place between the Parties.  If no 
maintenance agreement exists, ODOT will maintain that portion of the 
Project that is within its jurisdiction unless otherwise provided in Exhibit A to 
this Agreement.  Recipient shall maintain those portions of the Project that 
are within state highway right of way for an additional thirteen (13) years 

A136-G0092418 

230



ODOT / Recipient 
Agreement No. SRTS23-12, Amendment No. 01 
 

 2 

after the Project Useful Life. Recipient’s obligations under the Contribution 
and Contract-Related Indemnification provisions in Section 10.a and 10.b, 
respectively, and Exhibit C, Subagreement Insurance Requirements apply 
to ongoing maintenance work. 

 Recipient shall notify the appropriate ODOT District Office two (2) business 
days prior to performing any maintenance work on ODOT’s system. 

Recipient’s maintenance work on or along state highway right of way, 
including work performed by Recipient contractors, shall be protected in 
accordance with the versions of the MUTCD, Oregon Supplement to the 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, and the Oregon Temporary 
Traffic Control Handbook which are in place at the time the work is 
conducted.   

 
 
3. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in two or more counterparts (by 

facsimile or otherwise) each of which is an original and all of which when taken 
together are deemed one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all 
Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  

4. Original Agreement. Except as expressly amended above, all other terms and 
conditions of the original Agreement are still in full force and effect.  Recipient certifies 
that the representations, warranties and certifications in the original Agreement are 
true and correct as of the effective date of this Amendment and with the same effect 
as though made at the time of this Amendment. 

5. Electronic Signatures.  The Parties agree that signatures showing on PDF 
documents, including but not limited to PDF copies of the Agreement and 
amendments, submitted or exchanged via email are “Electronic Signatures” under 
ORS Chapter 84 and bind the signing Party and are intended to be and can be relied 
upon by the Parties. State reserves the right at any time to require the submission of 
the hard copy originals of any documents. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing 
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its 
terms and conditions. 

The Project was approved January 12, 2023 by the Strategic Investment Manager. 
 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

  

231



ODOT / Recipient 
Agreement No. SRTS23-12, Amendment No. 01 
 

 3 

CITY OF NEWPORT, by and through its 
Elected Officials.  
 
By _____________________________ 
 
Name ___________________________ 
           (printed) 
Date ___________________________ 
 
 
LEGAL REVIEW APPROVAL (If 
required in Recipient’s process) 
 
 
By ____________________________ 
Recipient’s Legal Counsel 
 
Name __________________________ 
          (printed) 
Date __________________________ 
 
 
 

STATE OF OREGON, by and through 
its Department of Transportation 
 
By ____________________________ 
Public Transportation Division Administrator 
 
Name ________________________ 
          (printed) 
Date _________________________ 
 
 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 
 
By ____________________________ 
Safe Routes to School Program Manager 
 
Name __________________________ 
          (printed) 
Date __________________________ 
 
 
By ____________________________ 
State Traffic-Roadway Engineer 
 
Name __________________________ 
          (printed) 
Date __________________________ 
 
 
By ____________________________ 
District Manager 
 
Name __________________________ 
          (printed) 
Date __________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
 
By ____________________________ 
Assistant Attorney General 
 
Date __________________________ 

 

232



23
3



23
4



23
5



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



5/10/2023

5/19/2023

247



ODOT / City of Newport
Agreement No. SRTS23-12 

12 

CITY OF NEWPORT, by and through its 
elected officials

By____________________________ 
(Legally designated representative)

Name__________________________ 
(printed) 

Date___________________________ 

By____________________________ 

Name__________________________ 
(printed) 

Date___________________________ 

LEGAL REVIEW APPROVAL  
(If required in Recipient’s process)

By____________________________ 
Recipient’s Legal Counsel  

Date___________________________ 

Recipient Contact: 

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP 
Community Development Director 
169 SW Coast Hwy 
Newport, Oregon 97365 
(541) 574-0626
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

STATE OF OREGON, by and through its
Department of Transportation 

By____________________________ 
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Name__________________________ 
(printed) 

Date___________________________ 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By____________________________ 
SRTS Program Manager 

Date _________________________ 

By____________________________ 
State Traffic-Roadway Engineer 

Date___________________________ 

By____________________________ 
District Manager

Date___________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

By____________________________ 
Assistant Attorney General 

Date___________________________ 

SRTS Program Manager:
Xao Posadas
555 13th Street NE
Salem, Oregon 97301 
971-718-6170
Xao.Posadas@odot.oregon.gov

5/15/23

See signature previous page

See signature previous page

248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



25
8

C.Beatty
Line

C.Beatty
Text Box
1



25
9



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item: 
Consideration and Potential Adoption of Resolution 4008, a Resolution Recertifying a 
Water Supply Management and Conservation Work Group.  
 
Background: 
In May 2022,  the City Council adopted Resolution No. 3949, a resolution creating a water 
supply management conservation work group. The work of this group was initiated then 
stopped, when a vacancy in the Deputy City Recorder position impacted our ability to 
support a number of projects, including the Water Supply Management Conservation 
Work Group. This Group resumed meeting late in 2023,  and  the mission remains the 
same for utilizing this Group moving forward.  
 
In addition, the City has received a grant to conduct a water protection plan. We have 
entered into a contract with GSI Water Solutions to develop this plan. The Water 
Conservation Group will be utilized as part of the steering committee for this effort. Finally, 
I am soliciting proposals for consulting services to assist in preparing the technical report 
for the Water Conservation Group. With the vacancies we currently have in the public 
works director and city engineer positions, we are limited on resources to assist with the 
development of a report and  recommendation for this Group. The Group will be reviewing 
proposals in February and a recommendation will come forth to the City Council about 
funding these services. Resolution No. 4008 will extend the Work Group and the terms of 
the members through December 31, 2024.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 4008, a resolution recertifying a Water Supply 
Management Conservation Work Group through December 31, 2024.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None by recertifying the Work Group. City Council will be receiving a recommendation to 
provide some funding to provide technical assistance to the Work Group to complete their 
task at a future Council meeting.  
  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended.   
 
Respectfully submitted,  

260



 
 
 

Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

261



 

 
Res. No. 4008 Recertifying a Water Supply Management and Conservation Work Group    

 
1/2 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

RESOLUTION NO. 4008 

RESOLUTION RECERTIFYING A WATER SUPPLY MANAGEMENT AND CONSERVATION 
WORK GROUP 

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2021, the city issued notice of an Alert Stage 1 Water Curtailment in 
conjunction with the Lincoln County Commissioner’s declaration of a countywide drought. This 
was a water system advisory which informed the community of the situation and recommended 
voluntary water conservation; and 
WHEREAS, the Newport City Council adopted an Alert Stage 2 Water Curtailment restriction 
effective August 4, 2021. A Stage 2 Water Curtailment is issued when unplanned 
maintenance/repairs or construction activities occur that significantly affect the water treatment 
plant or storage and distribution system operations in a short-term manner; and 
WHEREAS, the Siletz River, which is the main supply for the Big Creek Reservoir, and the City 
of Newport drinking water system has been experiencing declining flows, and the Siletz River 
flows continue to decline; and 
WHEREAS, considering complexities inherent to this program, and community interest in its 
successful implementation, it is both appropriate and necessary to establish a work group to 
evaluate the program; and 
WHEREAS, on May 16, 2022, the Newport City Council Adopted Resolution # 3949 creating a 
Water Supply Management and Conservation Work Group; and 
WHEREAS, the initial meeting schedule and duration of work group task was supposed to end 
on December 31, 2023; and 
WHEREAS, the workgroup needs additional time to issue a report of findings to the Newport 
City Council, and the workgroup duration needs extended.  
 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Water Supply Management and Conservation Work Group Established. There is 
hereby established a Water Supply Management and Conservation Work Group. The Work 
Group shall consist of an individual representing each of the following stakeholder groups: 
 

Fish Plant Processing Industry (1) Hydrologic and Service Water Industry (1) 
Hospitality Industry (1) Mid-coast Watersheds Council (1) 

Brewery Industry (1) Oregon Coast Community Forest Association (1) 
Restaurant/Retail Industry (1) Residential Customer (1) 

Lincoln County SWCD (1) 

 
Section 2.  Work Group Responsibilities. The Water Supply Management and Conservation 
Work Group shall have the following powers, duties, and functions: 
 

A. Collect and evaluate information, provide recommendations to city administration on 
water management and conservation strategies and technologies, watershed condition and 

262



 

 
Res. No. 4008 Recertifying a Water Supply Management and Conservation Work Group    

 
2/2 

 

production, potential water conservation policies and practices, and water supply 
infrastructure condition and capacity. 
 
Section 3.  Administrative Support. City staff shall perform administrative functions for the 
Water Supply Management and Conservation Work Group.  
 
Section 4.  Meeting Schedule and Duration. The Water Supply Management and 
Conservation Work Group shall begin meeting as soon as appointments are made and 
practicable. The dates and times of the meetings will be determined by a majority of the Work 
Group in consultation with city staff. The Work Group shall complete its work by December 31, 
2024. 
 
Section 5.  Appointment. The terms of the appointed members of the workgroup will be 
extended to December 31, 2024. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon passage. 
 
Section 7.      Newport Res. # 3949 is repealed and replaced.  
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Newport on January 29, 2024. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
 

263



26
4



26
5



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item: 
Authorization of an Additional Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Position for Finance.  
 
Background: 
This position, if authorized, will focus on receivables, including responsibilities that will be 
forthcoming in our collections and write-off policy that is currently under development. 
This has been a discussion item at many Budget Committee meetings, and as part of our 
long-term financial planning. I am convinced that our current staffing levels will not be 
sufficient to provide the level of work that will be beneficial to the City in the long-run. If 
this position is successful, it should actually result in additional receivables coming into 
the City that might help offset a portion of the cost of the position. This will go a long way 
toward equitably dealing with all of our customers in the City. If  authorized, we will 
proceed to fill this position this fiscal year.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 

I move to authorize the addition of one FTE to the Finance Department for an Accounting 
Tech – Receivables position with a non-exempt salary range of N210 ($4068-$5333 per 
month)  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
The supplemental budget included $50,000 for the addition of this position for the balance 
of this fiscal year. It is unlikely we will spend that much,  due to the time if will take to hire 
for this position.  
 
Alternatives:  
None recommended.   
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

266



 

 

       
       

   
 
       Meeting Date: January 16, 2024  
      

 
 
Title: Finance Position – Full-time Accounting Technician-Receivables 
 
Prepared by:  Barb James, HR Director  
  
Recommended Motion: Request to establish a new full-time (40 hrs./week) Accounting 
Technician-Receivables position for the Finance Department.    
 
Background Information:  
 
The Finance Department has been working short staffed on and off in 2023 due to a 
retirement of a long-term employee in August 2022, the departure of the Finance 
Director in February 2022, and Steve Baugher filling both the Assistant Finance Director 
and the Finance Director roles until the hiring of the Assistant Finance Director (Eric 
Carpenter) in July 2023.  
 
The staffing challenges combined with the existing workload in the department has 
hindered staff’s ability to focus on much needed collection activity of water bills, property 
clean-up, and various other delinquent accounts.  
 
In addition to the collection function, the position will perform a variety of accounting and 
clerical tasks primarily related to transient room tax, business license, airport leases, 
and other receivables (excluding utility bills). The position will also perform monthly 
reconciliations for receivable accounts to the General Ledger, and provide back-up for 
front desk reception services for the Finance Department.  
 
Fiscal Notes: Non-Exempt/ Salary Range N210   $4,068 - $5,333/month 
 
Alternatives:  None at this time 
 
Attachments: Accounting Technician-Receivables Job Description 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

267



 

ORGANIZATION: City of Newport      LOCATION: Newport, Oregon 
DEPARTMENT: Finance       DATE: December 2023 

Non-Exempt 
Regular Full-Time 
Non-Represented 

JOB TITLE: Accounting Technician - Receivables     Range: N 210 

 
PURPOSE OF POSITION 
 
Perform a variety of accounting and clerical tasks primarily related to transient room tax, business licenses, 
Airport leases, and other receivable billings (excluding utilities).  Perform monthly reconciliations for 
receivable accounts to the General Ledger.  Process and distribute incoming and outgoing mail. Provide 
back-up only front desk reception services for the Finance Department. Perform collection activity related to 
unpaid water bills, property maintenance issues, and other delinquent accounts. 
 

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS AND EXAMPLES OF DUTIES PERFORMED 
 
Process business license applications, which includes vacation rentals, and business license renewals.  
Prepare, generate, and maintain documentation for business licenses, vacation rentals, and parking permits.  
Manage the business license receivable accounts which includes preparing billings, processing payments, 
and monitoring receivable accounts to ensure timely payments of billings.  Review City ordinance to verify 
that businesses are meeting all the requirements in the City ordinance. 

 
Prepare, generate, and maintain documentation for transient room tax receivable accounts.  Manage 
transient room tax receivable accounts which includes mailing monthly room tax return forms, processing 
completed room tax returns, processing payments, and monitoring receivable accounts to ensure timely 
payments of transient room taxes. 

 
Prepare, generate, and maintain documentation for accounts receivable.  Accounts receivable accounts 
includes Airport leases; City property leases; Fire, Police, Engineering, and other department billings; and 
other miscellaneous accounts receivable billings.  Manage the accounts receivable accounts which includes 
preparing billings, processing payments, and monitoring receivable accounts to ensure timely payments of 
billings. 

Perform collection activity related to unpaid water bills, property maintenance issues, and other delinquent 
accounts, and provide reporting data to department management on status of uncollected accounts.  

Accurately process and distribute all incoming and outgoing mail.  For internal control purposes, maintain a 
log of total daily check amounts received in the mail.  Cross train for other functions as directed. 

Back up the front desk as needed by accepting daily payments form walk-in customers, receipting payments 
by mail, receipting payments and checks from City departments, balancing the cash drawer on a daily basis, 
preparing deposits, and posting deposits to the general ledger, as needed. 

 
Perform other duties as assigned. 

 
JOB QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
MINIMUM/MANDATORY EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS: 
Any equivalent combination of education and experience that provides the applicant with the knowledge, 
skills, and abilities required to perform the duties as described.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge, skills, 
and abilities would be a high school diploma or equivalency with some college courses in accounting or 

268



finance, AND 3 years related experience, OR an Associate’s Degree with one (1) or more years of 
progressively responsible experience. 
 
KNOWLEDGE: Knowledge of current office practices and procedures, basic accounting practices, and 
general customer service procedures. Office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and 
such applicable software applications as word processing, spreadsheets, and databases. Mathematical 
principles. Methods and techniques of proper phone etiquette. Customer service and public relations 
methods and techniques. English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. Business letter writing and the 
standard format for typed materials.  Knowledge of internal control procedures, office automation, 
computerized financial applications, and accounts receivable functions.  Knowledge of accounting and 
reporting systems. 
 
SKILLS:  Skill in the use of personal computers, various related software programs including Microsoft 
Office (Outlook, Excel and Word), and standard office equipment. Strong time management, analytical, 
organization, and prioritization skills. Customer service orientation and skills. Exceptional interpersonal skills, 
and strong oral and written communications skills with a variety of audiences. competence in business 
English, spelling, and punctuation. Strong reasoning, math, analysis, and problem-solving skills, combined 
with excellent judgment and professionalism.  
 
ABILITIES:  Ability to establish and maintain an effective working relationship with city management, 
employees, Council members, other entities, and the general public. Ability to communicate effectively, both 
orally and in writing, with individuals and groups. Ability to communicate complex material in a simple, 
understandable manner. Ability to maintain efficient and effective systems and procedures. Ability to prepare 
and analyze complex financial reports.  Ability to function in an intense work environment with numerous 
interruptions and conflicting demands. Ability to elicit information and cooperation from individuals and 
groups. Ability to honor the confidentiality required of this position. Ability to manage multiple demands and 
deadlines that are occurring simultaneously. Physical ability to perform the essential job functions. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS OF POSITION 
 
While performing the duties of this position, the employee is frequently required to sit, stand, bend, kneel, 
stoop, communicate, reach, and manipulate objects.  The position requires mobility, including the ability to 
frequently lift or move materials up to 5 pounds, and occasionally lift or move materials up to 25 pounds.  
Manual dexterity and coordination are required more than 50% of the work period to operate such 
equipment as computers, keyboards, telephones, and standard office equipment. 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS/WORK ENVIRONMENT 
 
Work location is primarily indoors where work occurs under usual office working conditions.  
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED 
 
Work is performed under the general direction of the Finance Director. 
 

SIGNATURES 
 
This document has been reviewed between the Supervisor and the Incumbent.  I understand that this 
document is intended to describe the most significant essential and auxiliary duties performed by the 
job/position for illustration purposes, but does not include other occasional work, which may be similar, 
related to, or a logical assignment for the position.  This job/position description does NOT constitute an 
employment agreement between the employer and employee, and is subject to change by the employer as 
the organizational needs and requirements of the job change. 
 

269



I understand and acknowledge I have read the above job description and can perform the essential 
functions of this position with or without reasonable accommodation. I understand it is my responsibility to 
contact Human Resources if at any time I require an accommodation to complete the essential functions of 
the position.  

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Incumbent Name    Incumbent Signature                     Date 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Supervisor Name    Supervisor Signature                     Date 
 
Date Revised: December 2023 
 
Approved by: ______________________ 
                      City Manager 
 
Date: _____________________________ 

270



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:   
Draft Policy for Government Speech.  
 
Background: 
I have drafted a resolution for Council review and discussion regarding use of government 
speech by departments of the City of Newport. Government speech doctrine is a principle 
of constitutional law which says that, although the First Amendment free speech clause 
limits government regulation of private speech, it does not restrict the government when 
government speaks for itself. In other words, the government is not required to be neutral 
when expressing its own opinion. It also should be noted that under the First Amendment, 
the speech includes things such as flags, symbols, and certain actions. Flags and symbols 
represent different things to different individuals and the meaning of the symbols can 
change over time based on political and social issues impacting society. As an 
organization, it may be appropriate for the City to adopt guidelines, or a policy, that provide 
a process and approval of forms of government speech that may be used by departments 
to convey certain messages to the public utilizing our facilities and services.  
 
The draft policy provides Department Heads with the latitude to utilize government 
symbolic speech for short-term issues as the Department Head feels is appropriate. For 
example, for specific events occurring at the Recreation Center, symbols may be used for 
events to celebrate or recognize the various groups utilizing the Recreation Center. The 
temporary events duration is currently identified as 30 days in the draft policy. 
 
For more permanent use of symbolic speech, logos, signs, banner and flags, the draft 
policy would establish an internal committee to review the proposed logo, emblem, 
symbol, etc., if it is intended to use the logo or sign for more than 30 days. The City 
Manager will convene a group of no less than four staff members to review the proposed 
use and either approve or provide direction to address any concerns with the use of 
symbolic speech by that department. The City Manager has final approval on the use of 
any department symbolic speech. 
 
It should be noted that this does not replace the City's flag policy as is currently outlined 
in Resolution No. 3964. This policy would be used for other forms, logos, welcome signs 
and other government speech utilizing symbols and other forms of government 
expression by that department.  
 
The attached draft policy has been developed to create a system of review and guidelines 
for the use of emblems, logos, welcome signs or other expressions of government speech 
that departments may utilize either for short-term periods or for longer term periods within 

271



their department or facilities on vehicles, uniforms or for other similar activities. It is the 
intent of this policy to provide internal guidance to address the desire of departments to 
utilize government speech that expresses the opinions of that department and/or the City 
of Newport.  
 
If Council is comfortable with the draft policy, it will be brought back for potential adoption 
at a February or March City Council meeting. If Council would like to look at a different 
direction for addressing these issues, then this should be discussed at the meeting with 
direction provided to the City Manager on how to proceed with this issue.  
 
Recommendation: 
None.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None.  
 
Alternatives:  
Direct City Administration and City Attorney to proceed with revisions for potential 
adoption of a resolution on the use of some symbolic government speech by City 
departments; redirect this effort to address the government speech in some other manner; 
do not proceed with any policy at this point;  or as suggested by the City Council.   
   
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

272



City of Newport Resolution No. ______ 
Resolution Establishing a Policy for Government Speech by Departments 

of the City of Newport 
 
 WHEREAS, the government speech doctrine, in American constitutional law, says 
that the government is not infringing the free speech rights of individual people when the 
government declines to use viewpoint neutrality in its own speech and, as a result, 
government speech allows a government to advance its speech without required 
viewpoint neutrality when the government itself is the speaker; and  
 WHEREAS the First Amendment of the U.S. Constitution has been interpreted to 
include nonverbal or written expressions such as symbols, flags, logos and conduct as 
part of speech herein referred to as symbolic government speech; and  
 WHEREAS government speech can send important messages to the public 
regarding the City's viewpoint on various issues; and  
 WHEREAS the City Council has adopted a statement regarding the City of Newport 
being an inclusive organization in the community that embraces diversity, ethnicity, race, 
age, gender identity, sexual orientation, self-identity and other perspectives; and  
 WHEREAS speech, symbols, logos and other emblems represent many different 
things to individuals, and these symbols can take on different meanings over time; and  
 WHEREAS  it has been determined that it could be beneficial to have a City policy 
where use of various symbols, logos, and emblems be reviewed and approved as it 
relates to standards adopted by the City Council.  
 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Symbolic Government Speech. Symbols, logos,  flags, vehicle markings, 
markings, uniforms  and slogans are all various forms of government speech. The 
authority to utilize symbolic government speech is provided below.   
 
Section 2 Newport Flag Policy. Resolution No.  3964, a resolution establishing the City of 
Newport flag policy governs the policy for flying outdoor flags at City Hall.  
 
Section 3. Temporary Symbolic Government Speech. City departments may utilize 
temporary symbolic speech to celebrate or recognize certain events or group activities in 
the city. The decision to utilize symbolic speech shall be reviewed and approved at the 
department head level. The use of temporary government symbolic speech shall be for a 
period of time of 30 days or less.  
 
Section 4.  Long-Term Government Symbolic Speech. Long-term government symbolic 
speech includes, but is not limited to, logos, symbols and other forms of symbolic speech 
that are proposed to be used by departments for a period in excess of 30 days. Symbolic 
government speech utilized for more than 30 days shall generally represent a broad 
spectrum of the Newport community or be neutral in nature. The U.S. flag, State of Oregon 
flag, POW/MIA flag and City of Newport flags may be displayed at all locations where 
appropriate.  
 

273



Symbolic government speech that will be used for greater than 30 days will be submitted 
to the City Manager  who will submit the proposal to a review committee appointed by the 
City Manager  for review and approval.   
 a.) The  City Manager shall appoint a review committee consisting of not less than 
four staff members to review proposed logos, symbols, and other symbolic speech;  
 b.) The symbolic government speech will be presented to the committee to 
determine whether the expression of government speech is consistent with the following 
criteria: 

1.) Does the expression broadly represent Newport's diverse population;  
2.) Does the expression convey a message that encompasses a broad range 
of Newport citizens;  
3.) Is the symbolic government speech consistent with the City statement of 
diversity, equity and inclusion;  
4.) Is the expression consistent with the general messages provided by the City 
of Newport.  

 
Section 5. Appeal of the Departmental Use of Symbolic Speech. In the event that a person 
wishes to challenge the use of symbolic speech by a City Department, that issue can be 
appealed by submitting a complaint to the City Manager. The City Manager shall provide 
a response back to the complainant within 21 calendar days. If the complainant remains 
unsatisfied with the response from the City Manager, then the complainant may appeal 
the City Manager's decision to the City Council within 14 days from  the date of the City 
Manager’s response for final review. The decision of the City Council is final.  
 
Section 6.  City Council Government Speech.  The City Council is not required to act 
neutral when expressing its own opinion under the doctrine of government speech. 
 
Section 7. Effective Date. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.  
 
Adopted by the City Council on ________________2024. 
 
______________________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor  
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Attest: Erik Glover, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder 
 
 
 
 

274



Including a link to this US Supreme Court opinion for agenda item 8.E. - Draft Policy for Government 
Speech - could be useful if there are any questions on government speech.  I had provided this link 
during council discussion in adopting a city hall flag policy a year ago (Res. 3964), and found it to be a 
useful reference during the discussion. --David 
 

https://supreme.justia.com/cases/federal/us/596/20-1800/ 

 

275

https://supreme.justia.com/cases/federal/us/596/20-1800/


CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item: 
Authorization of Travel to Washington DC for Council Members for Meetings for Big Creek 
Dam.   
 
Background: 
Peggy Hawker from Dig Deep Research and Drake Wood  from Water Strategies, LLC, 
are recommending the City plan a trip to Washington DC on behalf of Big Creek Dam in 
March of this year. Specific dates have not been set for this trip. It has been indicated that 
it would be appropriate to send two elected officials on this trip and was suggested that 
Mayor Kaplan and Councilor Hall be designated to go, if they are able to participate and 
the Council is comfortable with them representing the City. I would like to also consider 
sending City Engineer, Chris Beatty, to help get him up-to-speed on this project and 
answer any engineering questions, as well. A delegation of three would be appropriate 
for this meeting. 
 
The Council rule provides that Council members are allowed to participate with the City 
reimbursing expenses for attending the League of Oregon Cities function. For other travel, 
Section 5.10 Conferences and Seminars states: “a request to attend other government – 
related conferences, training, seminars, and meetings will be presented to the Council for 
approval.” As a result, Council is required to approve the travel for any Council members 
to represent the City in Washington on Big Creek Dam.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize Mayor Kaplan and Councilor Hall to represent the City in Washington 
DC with various departments regarding funding for the Big Creek Dam Project.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
The airfare, hotel and meals would be borne by the City. An estimated cost would be 
approximately $1,800 per person depending on the length of stay in Washington DC.  
 
Alternatives:  
Send different representatives from the City Council, or as suggested by the City Council.    
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 

Spencer Nebel, City Manager 

276



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item: 
Award of Bid for the Water Treatment Plant Excess Recirculating (XR) Upgrade/Storage 
Building Project to Emory and Sons Construction Group, LLC, in the Amount of $568,940. 

 
Background: 
The remaining project that resulted from the 2020 water crisis is the installation of an 
excess recirculating (XR) upgrade at the water treatment plant. Added to this project was 
a storage building project, however, it was anticipated that the bids would not allow for the 
construction of this facility. Only one bid was received in the amount of $568,940 for the 
base bid for the excess recirculating upgrade and payment to Aria Fittra for services in 
the amount $125,660. Sufficient funds have been appropriated to award this bid.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, consider 
the following motion: 
 
I move to award the base bid for the water treatment plant excess recirculating (XR) 
upgrade to Emory and Sons Construction Group, LLC, in the amount of $568,940 and 
direct the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the City of Newport subject 
to final review  and authorization by the City Attorney.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
The amount of $873,681 is available for this project. We are not able to proceed with a 
storage building at this time based on the bids for that unit.  
 
Alternatives:  
Reject the bids, or as  suggested by the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

277



 

 

       
       

   
 

Meeting Date: 
Special Meeting 
January 29, 2024 
   
   

 
 

 
 
Title: Award of the Base Bid for the WTP Excess Recirculation (XR) Upgrade / Storage 
Building Project to Emory & Sons Construction Group, LLC. 
 
Prepared by:  Chris Beatty, PE, Acting City Engineer 
  
Recommended Motion:  
 
I move to award the Base Bid for the WTP Excess Recirculation (XR) Upgrade / Storage 
Building Project to Emory & Sons Construction Group, LLC.in the amount of $568,940.00 
and direct the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the City of Newport, subject 
to final revisions and authorization by the City Attorney. 
 
Background Information:  
 
The XR system is necessary in order to consistently treat Big Creek Reservoir water.  
Water quality changes in the reservoir each year are unpredictable, leaving the City 
vulnerable to water treatment shortfalls and curtailments of supply.   
 
It involves the retrofit of the XR system into the existing WTP.  Because the XR system 
displaces storage area inside the WTP building, a separate storage building is required.  
 
Due to the unknown construction costs of the of the entire project, the bid was based on 
the following items: 
 
L.S. Bid Price – Payment to Aria Fittra for Services (fixed cost)  $ 125,6600.00 
L.S. Bid Price – Base Bid for WTP Excess Recirculation (XR) Upgrade $           X 
L.S. Bid Price – Alternate A – Rammed Aggregate Piers / Storage Building $          X 
 
The award of the project is based as following options: 
 

A. If the combined cost for all bid items is within the unobligated, available cash 
balance of $873,681.33, the contractor with the lowest total bid will be awarded 
the contract. 
 

STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

278



 

 

B. If the combined cost for all bid items is not within the unobligated, available cash 
balance of $873,681.33, the contractor with the lowest total bid minus Alternate A 
will be awarded the project. 
 

The City received 1 bid for the entire project in the amount of $1,996,640.00 that was 
not within the option A, however the following bid was within the option B budget. 
 
L.S. Bid Price – Payment to Aria Fittra for Services    $ 125,660.00 
L.S. Bid Price – Base Bid for WTP Excess Recirculation (XR) Upgrade $ 443,280.00 
Total Bid           $ 568,940.00 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 

The unobligated cash balance as of 12/31/2023 is $873,681.33 and is available for 
construction of a portion of this project.  Future funding for 2024-2025 fiscal year will be 
requested for the construction of the storage building. 
 
Alternatives: 
 

1. Reject the Base Bid submitted to the City of Newport by Emory & Sons 
Construction Group, LLC. 

 
Attachments: 
 
None 
 
 

 

279



CITY MANAGER REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2024 
 
Agenda Item: 
Authorization of Funding and the Purchase of a Storage Area Network (SAN)  from  
[RE]DESIGN in the Amount of $466,810 through the National Cooperative Purchase 
Alliance (NCPA). 

 
Background: 
The critical component of the City’s information systems is with the storage area network 
(SAN). The City's lease with the current system ends in August 2024. It is to the City's 
advantage to replace our current SAN with one that will provide capacity for growth and 
is built on current technology to provide connectivity with Microsoft’s Azure Government 
Cloud. In the current year budget, we had provided $104,000 anticipating a lease for this 
arrangement. In looking at the terms of the lease, and in an effort to take advantage of a 
price that will be going up by $88,000 after February 1, it makes sense for us to do an 
outright purchase of this system. This will allow for the decommissioning of our existing 
system without interfering with current operations, since we will be up and running with 
the new replacement prior to August, should Council approve this purchase. This will 
result in a savings of the $88,000 upfront costs, as well as annual finance charges up to 
10% per year, if the City chose to lease it over the three-year period, instead of 
purchasing. 
 
The total cost for this acquisition is $466,810. The amount of $104,000 was budgeted as 
a lease payment in the current fiscal year, presuming that we would lease this equipment 
going forward. That would require Council to appropriate $362,810 from the General Fund 
reserve for future expenditures. The balance in the fund for reserve for future expenditures 
is $1,067,084. Since the General Fund is in a relatively strong financial position, I think 
the City will be better served by making this purchase now rather than spreading out these 
costs at a higher rate over the next three years.  
 
The City is a member of the National Cooperative Purchase Alliance. The SAN can be 
purchased through this cooperative purchasing agreement.  
 
Recommendation: 
I recommend that the City Council consider the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize the transfer of the $362,810 from the General Fund reserved for future 
expenditures, for the purchase of a new SAN for the City of Newport with this change 
being reflected in a future supplemental budget. 
 

280



If this motion passes, I recommend the City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review 
Board consider the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize the purchase of a new storage area network (SAN) through the 
cooperative purchasing agreement through NCPA for an amount of $466,810 through 
Dell and their partner [RE]DESIGN in the amount of $466,810.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
The amount of $1,067,084 is in the General Fund reserved for future expenditures can be 
utilized for this purpose.  
 
Alternatives:  
Lease a new SAN, or as suggested by the City Council.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
 

Spencer Nebel 
City Manager 
 
 
 

281



1 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

2024 
STORAGE AREA 
NETWORK (SAN) 
REPLACEMENT 
PROPOSAL 

282



 

2024 SAN REPLACEMENT PROJECT |  P a g e  | 2 

STORAGE AREA NETWORK (SAN) 
REPLACEMENT PROPOSAL 
BACKGROUND 
 
In order to maintain pace with data growth needs, and since our current san is 
going to end its lease in August 2024, The City of Newport needs to replace our 
current SAN with one that will provide capacity for growth and is built on current 
technology to provide connectivity with Microsoft’s Azure Government Cloud. To 
keep pace with this data growth, it’s also necessary to match our backup 
capacity with the purchase of Apex Backup Solutions and an Integrated Data 
Protection Appliance (IDPA) from Dell to provide backup of our server 
infrastructure, email and cloud data. To enable disaster recovery in case of 
complete failure over multiple existing sites, critical data is to be replicated to 
secure Cloud-based storage as well as to a local redundant site in Newport. A 
data Deduplication unit coupled with Cloud-storage replication accomplishes 
this goal. These combined efforts provide protection and expansion for the 
future, whilst covering a range of online and offline recovery scenarios. 
To maintain compatibility with the existing Storage Area Network, and to 
leverage aggressive end of sales year purchasing, the proposed solution would 
come from our existing vendor, Dell (see attached quotes).  Part of our discount 
is the consideration that we are replacing Dell EMC units with the newer Dell 
EMC hardware. 

283



 

2024 SAN REPLACEMENT PROJECT |  P a g e  | 3 

FINANCIAL 

We are utilizing a Cooperative Purchase Agreement with NCPA from Omnia 
Partners – Our membership ID is: 4028925.  The requested amount for this 
purchase is $466,810.00. 

RECOMMENDATION 

IT is recommending this replacement as a means of modernizing the City 
Datacenter, to provided redundancy in the event of an emergency, and to better 
protect and shorten the recovery in the event that the City of Newport is the 
target of a hack or ransomware event.  IT also recommends to purchase this 
equipment outright rather than enter a 3-year lease agreement as this will save 
the City of Newport the 8-10% Annual Finance Charges over the next 3 years. 

MOTION 

Authorize the City of Newport to modernize its data center through the purchase 
of a new SAN, with the services and hardware provided by Dell and their 
Partner [RE]DESIGN in the amount of $466,810.00. 

ATTACHEMENTS 
 
Quote from [re]Design – Dells partner for this deployment 
Contract from Dell and [re]Design 

284



Prepared By:

The Redesign Group

Prepared for:

City of Newport, OR

Project 
Proposal
Data Center Modernization
 Version # 2

 Delivered on 12/15/23

285



Agenda

Current State Analysis 

Introduction to Redesign

Proposed Solution Review

Financial Summary

Q&A

Next Steps

286



Managed Security 
Services

Private Cloud Hosting

Managed Services

United States

The Redesign Group

UK
The Redesign Group LTD

EU
The Redesign Group FR

Canada
The Redesign Group Canada

Core Values
To Operate in the Service of Others

To Be Problem Solvers
To Focus on Long Term Partnerships

Industry 
Recognition 

Mission
To disrupt the Technology Solutions Provider 

Market by setting a new standard in 
customer and manufacturer experience.

287



Top Data 
Center 

Partners

Top Security 
Partners

288



Save Time in Evaluation

Make More Informed 
Technical Decisions

Optimize Spend

Improve Time to Value

Build Long Term 
Partnership

Propose

Client Benefit

ImplementAssess Validate

Our Process – Delivering Value with Velocity

289



Proposed Solution – High-Level Architecture

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

Stack ID

Stack ID

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

Stack ID

Stack ID

Azure Stack AX750
HCI Nodes

PowerSwitch S5224
(24x) 25 GbE SPF28 Ports

PowerVault ME5012
Storage Array

PowerProtect DP4400
Integrated Data Protection 

Appliance (IDPA)
Cloud Tier for LTR

290



Proposed Solution – Azure Stack HCI
Production Overview

HCI Infrastructure Configuration 
Network Configuration 

Current State Comparison
Professional Services 

291



Software Value DriversHardware Design

• Node-Based Hyperconverged 

Infrastructure

• Mesh or Scale out Fabric

• Automated cluster deployment

• AMD and Intel Options

• ARC Integration

• Hybrid Cloud Enabled

• All-Flash Performance

• Microsoft Validated AX Nodes

• Single Source Support HW/SW

• Windows Server OS Deployment

• Azure Stack HCI OS Deployment

• OpenManage Integration for Microsoft 

System Center

• Windows Admin Center

Credibility

• 1500+ Customers

• Over 8100 nodes deployed WW

• Microsoft validated partnership 

since 2017

• 99.9999% hardware availability

Product Overview – Azure Stack HCI

EdgeCoreCloud

Azure Stack Hub

Cloud-native integrated system
• Disconnected scenarios

• Data sovereignty

• Application modernization

Become an Azure 

service provider

Dell Integrated System for Azure Stack Hub Dell Integrated System for Azure Stack HCI

Azure Stack HCI
Modernize Hyper-V 

Infrastructure with HCI

HCI service in Azure
• Scalable virtualization and storage

• Remote branch office

• High-performance workloads

• Hybrid cloud computing operating model

Azure Stack Edge

Cloud-managed appliance
• Machine learning at the edge

• Edge compute and IoT solutions

• Network data transfer to cloud

Azure ML/IoT services 

at the edge

Azure Subscription

Azure Stack

HCI

292



AX750 – All-Flash Cluster
2 Node Cluster – 6 Total Rack Units

CPU
Dual Intel 6326 Processor | 16 Cores x 2.9 GHz 

32 cores per node (92.8 GHz)  | 64 cores per cluster (185.6 GHz)

Memory
1024 GB (16  x 64 GiB DIMMs) per node  | 16 open memory slots

2048 GiB per cluster

Drives
BOSS Controller Card + (2) M.2 480GB (RAID 1) | BOOT
(10) 7.68 TB vSAS SSD | 14 free capacity slots per node

Capacity
Total Usable Capacity – 63.2 TiB

2-Way Mirror protection

NICs

(1) Broadcom 57414 Dual Port 10/25GbE, OCP 3.0 | LAN
(2) Nvidia ConnectX-6 Dual Port 10/25GbE SFP28, PCIe v2 | RDMA

4 Ports Used per Node | Fully Converged
8 Ports Total

Switches
Fully Converged Network

(2) S5224F - (24) 25G SFP28 Ports per Switch

Power
(2) 1100W Fully Redundant (1+1) PSU Per Node

120-240V Autosensing

Licensing

Windows Server 2022 Datacenter – 32 Cores Included Per Node
Windows Server User/Device CALs – Not Included

Azure Stack HCOI Subscription – Not Included ($10/physical core/month)
iDRAC9 Data Center

Support 36 Months ProSupport Mission Critical (4 Hour)

DELL ToR and RDMA Network

(Uplinks to core)

Management/VM 

network

AX nodes

Proposed Solution – Azure Stack HCI (per site) 

293



Node 1 & 2 Current v. Future State Comparison 

Component  Current State New Solution Difference  % Difference

Compute Nodes 2 2 0 0.00%

CPU/Sockets 4 4 0 0.00%

Cores Total 64 64 0 0.00%

vCPU Ratio 1 : 2.63 1 : 2.28 -0.35 -13.31%

Peak CPU (GHz) 26 185.6 159.6 14.01% Consumed

Net CPU (GHz) 179.2 185.6 6.4 3.57% Change

Peak Memory (GiB) 449.56 2,048 1,598 21.95% Consumed

Net Memory (GiB) 1,024 2,048 1,024 100.00% Change

Storage Used (TiBu) 27.14 63.2 36.06 42.94% Consumed

294



Node 3 & 4 Current v. Future State Comparison 

Component  Current State New Solution Difference  % Difference

Compute Nodes 2 2 0 0.00%

CPU/Sockets 4 4 0 0.00%

Cores Total 64 64 0 0.00%

vCPU Ratio 1 : 2.63 1 : 2.28 -0.35 -13.31%

Peak CPU (GHz) 22 185.6 163.6 11.85% Consumed

Net CPU (GHz) 179.2 185.6 6.4 3.57% Change

Peak Memory (GiB) 259.37 2,048 1,789 12.66% Consumed

Net Memory (GiB) 1,024 2,048 1,024 100.00% Change

Storage Used (TiBu) 15.6 63.2 47.6 24.68% Consumed

295



PowerVault ME5012

CPU
(1) Xeon Hewitt Lake CPU Per Controller

(2) Controllers 

Memory
16GB Per Controller

32GB Appliance Total

Drives (12) 8TB 7.2K NL-SAS 3.5”

Capacity

87.31TiB Raw | 58.2TiB Usable
Virtual Storage Mode

ADAPT RAID (8+1) | 1 Groups | Embedded Hot Spares
No Data Reduction

Performance
Block Optimized

Max Workload 760 IOPS @ 5.93MiB/s 

Power
(2) 2200W Fully Redundant (1+1) PSU | C19/C20

120-240V Autosensing

IO Modules
Quad Port 25GbE Per Controller

4 Ports Used per Controller
8 Ports Total

Support 36 Months ProSupport Mission Critical (4 Hour)

Proposed Solution – PowerVault

296



Proposed Solution – White Glove Delivery AS HCI

Rack & Stack:
• Unpack and inspect all hardware
• Rack, mount and/or position all products and components
• Install and route power, data, and KVM cables
• Apply customer-provided labels to newly installed cables
• Power on all equipment
• Confirm hardware boots and check for errors on all systems
• Configure network addresses on IPMI (i.e., iDRAC) if applicable

HCI Cluster & Network Implementation:
• Install and Configure Backend Network Switches if applicable
• Install Hypervisor and Based on Customer Choice of Windows OS or Azure Stack HCI OS
• Confirm all component drivers and firmware are latest supported versions
• Configure Cluster Shared Volumes
• Install latest firmware and software patches/updates
• Activate and Install all licensing and features
• Validate Cluster implementation and review results with customer
• Setup vendor support systems and automated health checks (SRS Virtual, CloudIQ)

Phase 1 – Deployment 

Testing, Validation and Documentation:
• Verify that all components have network connectivity to Client’s network
• Perform basic verification tests (i.e., ping, traceroute, show commands)
• Test product failover capability 
• Verify configuration aligns with the design
• Create vendor support requests to update all client configuration information and entitlements 
• Conduct Knowledge Transfer with the client
• Register customer to receive vendor product alerts if required
• Handover As-Built Documentation

Phase 2 – Migration

Redesign will deploy certified engineering resources both onsite & 
remote who will be guided by an experience project manager to ensure 

successful implementations of all proposed infrastructure solutions.

Production Migration: 
• Identify all existing Network, Storage, Server, and VM Configs
• Establish migration framework/plan

• Establish migration order and timeline with Client 
• Setup native migration tools
• Run a test migration using test/non-production VM

• Includes Hyper-V Replicas or offline copy migration of up to 25 virtual machines.
• Additional Prof. Services SOW  =  Additional migration services available with a custom SOW including, 

ARC Integration, SCVMM Configuration, P2V, RDM, MS Clusters, 2008 or Older OS, Guest OS updates, 
applications, Horizon , 3rd party vendor specific migrations, Optimized Migration Tool Licensing and 
services.

Impacting Factors: 

NOTE: We have separated out the migration as Phase 2 due to inherent nuances that warrant an extended and 
often fragmented implementation timeline. Examples include:

• Business impact or strict change control
• Complexity of source to target configuration
• Size and variability of workload types
• Legacy tech debt and/or non-supported configurations
• Maintenance, patching, update, or version issues in environment
• Lack of documentation or knowledge of environment
• Resource availability and/or capacity issues

Redesign is committed to assisting with the migration of your workloads. Our 
Senior Engineers will architect and test the migration strategy and transition to a 
seasoned migration specialist to execute the migration with you on your timeline.

297



Proposed Data Protection Solution
VM Backup & Recovery w/ Integrated Data Protection (IDPA)

APEX Backup Services for M365

(1) Dell Data Protection DP4400 Appliance
(2) APEX Backup for SaaS Apps

(3) [re]DESIGN Onsite Implementation Services

298



Deduplication

Cloud DR 

+ LTR

Backup & 

Restore

Disaster 

Recovery

Replication

Instant Access

+ Restore8TB–96TB + 192TB with

without additional HW*

Densest 2U appliance—up to 20% more capacity2

Search & 

Analytics

VMware 

Integration

Days Hours

2U and 10x1

Easy to deploy & upgrade

Integrated Data Protection (IDPA) Solution Overview

299



Integrated Data Protection (IDPA) – Sizing Inputs

300



Integrated Data Protection (IDPA) - Solution Overview

301



INTEGRATED DATA
PROTECTION APPLIANCE

• Performant  → Industry-best deduplication (55:1 industry average) 
• Efficient → Space-efficient 2U footprint (scales to 96TB without additional hardware)
• Integrated  → Native integration and single line of support between SW/HW
• Cloud Enabled  →  Industry leading public cloud integration for LTR & DR
• Secure →  FIPS-140-2 Encryption At-Rest and In-Flight

Production IDPA DP4400
2 Total Rack Units

System (2) Integrated Data Protection Appliance – DP4400

Capacity 48 TB  Active Tier Capacity

Cloud Tier 15TB Cloud Tier Enablement License

Software Avamar Backup Software – Integrated

Compute PowerEdge Server – Integrated

Services Comprehensive Implementation Services 

Support 36 Months - ProSupport Mission Critical - 4 Hour

0202

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

(1) IDPA DP 4400

Proposed Backup & Recovery Solution – IDPA

302



APEX Backup Services for M365
Production Overview

Sizing & Retention Details
APEX Backup Services Licensing & Included Features Review

Professional Services
Financial Summary

303



Cloud Data Protection

• All-in-one secure protection with backup, disaster 

recovery and long-term retention. 100% SaaS

• Leverages Data Deduplication across WAN

• Rapid Time to Value – Deploys in minutes and can 

be expanded in seconds 

• Data is replicated across 3 Availability Zones

• Option to leverage AWS for Disaster Recovery (1 

Hour RPO, 4 Hour RTO)

Centralized Management

• Single console to monitor and manage all cloud 

workloads 

• VMware, Hyper-V, NAS, SQL, Oracle

• Office 365 (Exchange, OneDrive, Teams & 

Sharepoint),Google Workspace, Salesforce.com

• Endpoints – Laptops, Desktops, Mobile 

Credibility

• 350PB+ Data Under Management

• 14K+ Customers

• Gartner Peer Insights Customers 

Choice Recipient (Highest Honor)

• Meets or exceeds FIPS, HIPPA, 

ITAR, ISO, SOC2 Compliance 

Product Overview – APEX Backup Services  

Architecture 

Hybrid Workloads 

Highly Secure 

• All backups air-gapped in Dells hardened S3 

account completely separated from production

• External access to backup data blocked via 

IAM, RBA, MFA

• All backup data encrypted in transit and at rest 

with customer-managed keys 

• Metadata needed to assemble sharded data 

stored in separate AWS service

• Anomaly detection and deletion prevention 

Microsoft 365 Data Protection

NASFile servers

Ransomware Protection

R E C O V E RI D E N T I F Y C O N T A I N

Unusual Data Activity
Identify anomalous data sets

Quarantine
Prevent Malware Spread

Recovery Scans & Recovery
Automatically recover clean, 

uninfected data

APEX Backup Service

304



Licensing – APEX Backup Services

Not Included Included Not Included

305



* Pricing Does Not Include Taxes or Shipping

TOTAL INVESTMENT:

$466,810

ANNUAL PAYMENT:

$163,411.51

COMPONENT DETAIL INVESTMENT

Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 1 • (2) S5224F Top of Rack Switches + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $18,375

Production Cluster 1 • (2) Node Azure Stack HCI + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $134,918

Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 2 • (2) S5224F Top of Rack Switches + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $18,375

Production Cluster 2 • (2) Node Azure Stack HCI + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $134,918

Milestone Storage • (2) PowerVault ME5012 Storage Array + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $39,428

VM Backup & Recovery • (1) IDPA DP4400 + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $102,188

O365 Protection • (180) Users APEX Backup Services for SaaS Premium – Office 365 Users +  36 Month Subscription $18,608

[RE]DESIGN Services • [RE]DESIGN White Glove Delivery and Migration Services $0

[RE]DESIGN Services • Additional Services for Complete Migration + Backup Setup (Offer Expires 1.31.24) $0

TOTAL INVESTMENT (3YR) $466,810

Financial Summary

3-Year Satisfaction Guarantee

With the purchase of a three-year 
ProSupport agreement, Dell EMC guarantees 
three-years of storage, data protection, and 
hyperconverged product satisfaction, while 
the industry standard is 30-days.

Hardware Investment Protection

Take the opportunity to trade-in 
existing, or competitive systems, for 
credit towards next generation Dell EMC 
storage, data protection, or HCI product 
offerings.

Clear Price Maintenance

Clear and transparent support pricing 
that details prepaid support and locks 
in future maintenance costs with the 
Dell EMC Clear Price Support 
Framework.

$88,112 Additional Discounts Applied to Quote for Dell Q4 FY24 (Expires Jan 31, 2024)

306



Q-004783 Version 1
Monday, December 18

Travis Reeves
t.reeves@newportoregon.gov
City of Newport
Acting IT Director

Data Center
Modernization
City of Newport, OR

forby Sarah Reynolds
Technical Inside Sales Representative
The [RE]DESIGN Group
sreynolds@redesign-group.com 307



Contract Code

Description Qty

NCPA 01-143
Contract Code C000001105509 

Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 1

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

BUILD (2) S5224F Top of Rack Switches + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $18,375.00 1 $18,375.00

210-APHT Dell EMC S5224F-ON Switch, 24x 25GbE SFP28, 4x 100GbE QSFP28
ports, PSU to IO air, 2x PSU

2

343-BBLP Dell EMC S52XX-ON Series User Guide 2

634-BRWJ OS10 Enterprise, S5224F-ON 2

634-BYIJ OS10 SmartFabric Services 2

818-4983 Dell Hardware Limited Warranty 1 Year 2

818-4996 ProSupport:Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem
Diagnosis, 1 Year

2

818-4997 ProSupport:Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem
Diagnosis, 2 Years Extended

2

818-5015 ProSupport:7x24 HW/SW Technical Support and Assistance, 3 Years 2

975-3461 Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Extended Year(s) 2

989-3439 Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355

2

997-6306 Info 3rd Party Software Warranty provided by Vendor 2

812-4037 ProDeploy Plus No Charge Training 500 2

870-5162 CoDeliver - ProDeploy Plus Dell Networking S Series 5xxx Switch -
Deployment

2

848-8538 3 Years ProSupport OS10 Enterprise Software Support-Maintenance 2

450-AASX Dell Networking, Jumper Cord, 250V, 12A, 2 Meters, C13/C14, US 2

450-AASX Dell Networking, Jumper Cord, 250V, 12A, 2 Meters, C13/C14, US 2

210-AXLU Cables & Others Virtual Base 1

407-BCZR Dell Networking, Transceiver, SFP+, 10GbE, SR, 850nm Wavelength,
300m Reach

4

Page 2 of 16 308



Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 1

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

470-BBCX Dell Networking, Cable, SFP28 to SFP28, 25GbE,Passive Copper
Twinax Direct Attach Cable,3 Meter

8

470-ABOU Dell Networking Cable, 100GbE QSFP28 to QSFP28, Passive Copper
Direct Attach Cable, 0.5 Meter

2

470-ACLK Dell Networking Cable, OM4 LC/LC  Fiber Cable, (Optics required), 5
Meter

4

929-3709 Thank you for Your Order 1

935-6720 Thank you for Your Order 1

Subtotal: $18,375.00

Production Cluster 1

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

BUILD (2) Node Azure Stack HCI + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $134,918.00 1 $134,918.00

379-BDTF 2.5  Chassis 2

379-BDSS SAS/SATA Backplane 2

379-BDTE No Rear Storage 2

379-BDSR No GPU Enablement 2

210-BBSN Dell EMC AX-750 2

379-BEHU Windows Server Operating System 2

350-BCBP All Flash Node, Azure Stack HCI 2

350-BCBR Luggage Tag Label, Azure Stack HCI 2

350-BCGU Lug Tag, Azure Stack HCI AX-750 2

350-BCKG IDM, AX-750 2

461-AAIG Trusted Platform Module 2.0 V3 2

321-BGFC 2.5" Chassis with up to 24 SAS/SATA Drives 2

338-CBXJ Intel Xeon Gold 6326 2.9G, 16C/32T, 11.2GT/s, 24M Cache, Turbo,
HT (185W) DDR4-3200

2

338-CBXJ Intel Xeon Gold 6326 2.9G, 16C/32T, 11.2GT/s, 24M Cache, Turbo,
HT (185W) DDR4-3200

2

379-BDCO Additional Processor Selected 2

Page 3 of 16 309



Production Cluster 1

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

412-AAVB Heatsink for 2 CPU configuration (CPU greater than or equal to
165W)

2

370-AAIP Performance Optimized 2

370-AEVR 3200MT/s RDIMMs 2

780-BCDI No RAID 2

405-AAXY Dell HBA355i Controller Front 2

750-ADED Front PERC Mechanical Parts, for 2.5" x24 SAS/SATA Chassis 2

800-BBDM UEFI BIOS Boot Mode with GPT Partition 2

750-ADGJ Very High Performance Fan x6 2

450-AJHG Dual, Hot-Plug,Power Supply Redundant (1+1), 1400W, Mixed
Mode

2

330-BBRX Riser Config 2, Half Length, 4x16, 2x8 slots, SW GPU Capable 2

329-BFGT R750 Motherboard with Broadcom 5720 Dual Port 1Gb On-Board
LOM

2

528-CRVW iDRAC9 Datacenter 15G 2

528-CJIT OpenManage Integration with MS Windows Admin Center
Premium License for MSFT HCI Solutions, Perpetual

2

540-BCOC Broadcom 57414 Dual Port 10/25GbE SFP28, OCP NIC 3.0 2

325-BCHU PowerEdge 2U Standard Bezel 2

403-BCMB BOSS-S2 controller card +  with 2 M.2 480GB (RAID 1) 2

470-AERR BOSS Cables and Bracket for R750 (Riser 1) 2

350-BBYX No Quick Sync 2

379-BCSG iDRAC,Legacy Password 2

379-BCQY iDRAC Group Manager, Disabled 2

611-BBBF No Operating System 2

605-BBFN No Media Required 2

770-BBBQ ReadyRails Sliding Rails 2

770-BDRQ Cable Management Arm, 2U 2

750-ACOM Fan Foam, HDD 2U 2

Page 4 of 16 310



Production Cluster 1

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

631-AACK No Systems Documentation, No OpenManage DVD Kit 2

340-CULS PowerEdge R750 Shipping 2

481-BBFG PowerEdge R750 Shipping Material 2

389-DYHE PowerEdge R750 CE Marking, No CCC Marking 2

389-DYHF Dell/EMC label (BIS) for 2.5" Chassis 2

865-7971 Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus Onsite Service 2

886-8102 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Onsite Service 3 Years 2

886-8480 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Technical Support and Assistance 3 Years 2

989-3439 Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355

2

812-4011 ProDeploy Plus No Charge Training 200 2

839-3618 ProDeploy Plus for AX 1U-2U 2

370-AEVP 64GB RDIMM, 3200MT/s, Dual Rank, 16Gb 32

345-BCTI 7.68TB SSD vSAS Read Intensive 12Gbps 512e 2.5in Hot-Plug ,AG
Drive SED,  1DWPD

20

450-AALV Power Cord - C13, 3M, 125V, 15A (North America, Guam, North
Marianas, Philippines, Samoa, Vietnam)

4

492-BBDH Jumper Cord - C13/C14, 0.6M, 250V, 13A (North American, Guam,
North Marianas, Philippines, Samoa)

4

540-BDJO Nvidia ConnectX-6 Lx Dual Port 10/25GbE SFP28, No Crypto, PCIe
Low Profile

4

Subtotal: $134,918.00

Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 2

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

BUILD (2) S5224F Top of Rack Switches + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $18,375.00 1 $18,375.00

210-APHT Dell EMC S5224F-ON Switch, 24x 25GbE SFP28, 4x 100GbE QSFP28
ports, PSU to IO air, 2x PSU

2

343-BBLP Dell EMC S52XX-ON Series User Guide 2

634-BRWJ OS10 Enterprise, S5224F-ON 2

634-BYIJ OS10 SmartFabric Services 2

Page 5 of 16 311



Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 2

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

818-4983 Dell Hardware Limited Warranty 1 Year 2

818-4996 ProSupport:Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem
Diagnosis, 1 Year

2

818-4997 ProSupport:Next Business Day Onsite Service After Problem
Diagnosis, 2 Years Extended

2

818-5015 ProSupport:7x24 HW/SW Technical Support and Assistance, 3 Years 2

975-3461 Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Extended Year(s) 2

989-3439 Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355

2

997-6306 Info 3rd Party Software Warranty provided by Vendor 2

812-4037 ProDeploy Plus No Charge Training 500 2

870-5162 CoDeliver - ProDeploy Plus Dell Networking S Series 5xxx Switch -
Deployment

2

848-8538 3 Years ProSupport OS10 Enterprise Software Support-Maintenance 2

450-AASX Dell Networking, Jumper Cord, 250V, 12A, 2 Meters, C13/C14, US 2

450-AASX Dell Networking, Jumper Cord, 250V, 12A, 2 Meters, C13/C14, US 2

210-AXLU Cables & Others Virtual Base 1

407-BCZR Dell Networking, Transceiver, SFP+, 10GbE, SR, 850nm Wavelength,
300m Reach

4

470-BBCX Dell Networking, Cable, SFP28 to SFP28, 25GbE,Passive Copper
Twinax Direct Attach Cable,3 Meter

8

470-ABOU Dell Networking Cable, 100GbE QSFP28 to QSFP28, Passive Copper
Direct Attach Cable, 0.5 Meter

2

470-ACLK Dell Networking Cable, OM4 LC/LC  Fiber Cable, (Optics required), 5
Meter

4

929-3709 Thank you for Your Order 1

935-6720 Thank you for Your Order 1

Subtotal: $18,375.00

Production Cluster 2

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

BUILD (2) Node Azure Stack HCI + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $134,918.00 1 $134,918.00

Page 6 of 16 312



Production Cluster 2

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

379-BDTF 2.5  Chassis 2

379-BDSS SAS/SATA Backplane 2

379-BDTE No Rear Storage 2

379-BDSR No GPU Enablement 2

210-BBSN Dell EMC AX-750 2

379-BEHU Windows Server Operating System 2

350-BCBP All Flash Node, Azure Stack HCI 2

350-BCBR Luggage Tag Label, Azure Stack HCI 2

350-BCGU Lug Tag, Azure Stack HCI AX-750 2

350-BCKG IDM, AX-750 2

461-AAIG Trusted Platform Module 2.0 V3 2

321-BGFC 2.5" Chassis with up to 24 SAS/SATA Drives 2

338-CBXJ Intel Xeon Gold 6326 2.9G, 16C/32T, 11.2GT/s, 24M Cache, Turbo,
HT (185W) DDR4-3200

2

338-CBXJ Intel Xeon Gold 6326 2.9G, 16C/32T, 11.2GT/s, 24M Cache, Turbo,
HT (185W) DDR4-3200

2

379-BDCO Additional Processor Selected 2

412-AAVB Heatsink for 2 CPU configuration (CPU greater than or equal to
165W)

2

370-AAIP Performance Optimized 2

370-AEVR 3200MT/s RDIMMs 2

780-BCDI No RAID 2

405-AAXY Dell HBA355i Controller Front 2

750-ADED Front PERC Mechanical Parts, for 2.5" x24 SAS/SATA Chassis 2

800-BBDM UEFI BIOS Boot Mode with GPT Partition 2

750-ADGJ Very High Performance Fan x6 2

450-AJHG Dual, Hot-Plug,Power Supply Redundant (1+1), 1400W, Mixed
Mode

2

330-BBRX Riser Config 2, Half Length, 4x16, 2x8 slots, SW GPU Capable 2

Page 7 of 16 313



Production Cluster 2

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

329-BFGT R750 Motherboard with Broadcom 5720 Dual Port 1Gb On-Board
LOM

2

528-CRVW iDRAC9 Datacenter 15G 2

528-CJIT OpenManage Integration with MS Windows Admin Center
Premium License for MSFT HCI Solutions, Perpetual

2

540-BCOC Broadcom 57414 Dual Port 10/25GbE SFP28, OCP NIC 3.0 2

325-BCHU PowerEdge 2U Standard Bezel 2

403-BCMB BOSS-S2 controller card +  with 2 M.2 480GB (RAID 1) 2

470-AERR BOSS Cables and Bracket for R750 (Riser 1) 2

350-BBYX No Quick Sync 2

379-BCSG iDRAC,Legacy Password 2

379-BCQY iDRAC Group Manager, Disabled 2

611-BBBF No Operating System 2

605-BBFN No Media Required 2

770-BBBQ ReadyRails Sliding Rails 2

770-BDRQ Cable Management Arm, 2U 2

750-ACOM Fan Foam, HDD 2U 2

631-AACK No Systems Documentation, No OpenManage DVD Kit 2

340-CULS PowerEdge R750 Shipping 2

481-BBFG PowerEdge R750 Shipping Material 2

389-DYHE PowerEdge R750 CE Marking, No CCC Marking 2

389-DYHF Dell/EMC label (BIS) for 2.5" Chassis 2

865-7971 Dell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus Onsite Service 2

886-8102 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Onsite Service 3 Years 2

886-8480 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Technical Support and Assistance 3 Years 2

989-3439 Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355

2

812-4011 ProDeploy Plus No Charge Training 200 2

839-3618 ProDeploy Plus for AX 1U-2U 2

Page 8 of 16 314



Production Cluster 2

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

370-AEVP 64GB RDIMM, 3200MT/s, Dual Rank, 16Gb 32

345-BCTI 7.68TB SSD vSAS Read Intensive 12Gbps 512e 2.5in Hot-Plug ,AG
Drive SED,  1DWPD

20

450-AALV Power Cord - C13, 3M, 125V, 15A (North America, Guam, North
Marianas, Philippines, Samoa, Vietnam)

4

492-BBDH Jumper Cord - C13/C14, 0.6M, 250V, 13A (North American, Guam,
North Marianas, Philippines, Samoa)

4

540-BDJO Nvidia ConnectX-6 Lx Dual Port 10/25GbE SFP28, No Crypto, PCIe
Low Profile

4

Subtotal: $134,918.00

Milestone Storage

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

BUILD (1) IDPA DP4400 + 36 Months ProSupport (4 Hour) $102,188.00 1 $102,188.00

379-BDTQ Thank you for buying Dell EMC 1

210-BCHH DP4400 24TB 8X10G SFP 1

321-BFRG IDPA DP4400 24TB 8X10G SFP 1

329-BDWH PSNT Info 1

350-BBSU IDPA DP4400 Branding 1

877-4367 Dell Hardware Limited Warranty 1

891-1713 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Onsite Service 3 Years 1

891-1938 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Technical Support and Assistance 3 Years 1

989-3439 Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355

1

844-2466 3 Years ProSupport IDPA DP4400 ENV CONFIG 12TB Software
Support Contract

1

838-3484 3 Years ProSupport IDPA DP4400 Capacity Expansion Pack 12TB
Software Spt Contract

1

149-BBHO IDPA BoostFS Enabler ENTRY=IA 1

149-BBHP IDPA BU Search Enabler ENTRY=CA 1

149-BBHR IDPA BU App Enabler ENTRY=IA 1

Page 9 of 16 315



Milestone Storage

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

149-BBHS Federated Reporting Server ENTRY=IA 1

149-BBHV Analytics Enabler ENTRY=CB 1

149-BBIC IDPA Target Protocol Enabler ENTRY=CA 1

149-BBIF Data Protection Central for DPD=CA 1

149-BBIG vRealize Enabler ENTRY=IA 1

838-3704 3 Years ProSupport IDPA DP4400 ENV Enablers Software Support-
Maintenance

1

658-BDZK IDPA DP4400 Software Factory Installed 1

151-BBKU DP4400 Cloud Tier 5TB Starter Pack 1

838-3584 3 Years ProSupport IDPA DP4400 Cloud Tier Starter Pack Software
Support-Maintenance

1

151-BBKY DP4400 Cloud DR 5TB Starter Pack 1

838-3644 3 Years ProSupport IDPA DP4400 Cloud DR Starter Pack Software
Support-Maintenance

1

350-BBXS PowerProtect DP 2U Bezel 1

389-DSWP PowerEdge R740 CE, CCC, BIS Marking 1

385-BBNZ iDRAC9, Enterprise 1

461-AAEM Trusted Platform Module 2.0 1

340-CHLV IDPA DP4400 Shipping 1

340-CORZ PowerEdge R740 Shipping Material 1

800-BBSN IDPA DP4400 Platform  Hypervisor 1

800-BBSM IDPA DP4400 Platform HPVSR MAINT 3YR 1

626-BBBI Storage Dell Fulfilled Info 1

825-8623 Certified Deployment Partner T1 or Distributors 1

379-BEOH Total Desired Capacity 24

149-BBIR DP4400 ENV CONFIG 12TB 1

844-2386 3 Years ProSupport IDPA DP4400 ENV CONFIG 12TB Software
Support-Maintenance

1

149-BBHZ DP4400 SW 12TB Expansion 1

Page 10 of 16 316



Milestone Storage

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

838-3464 3 Years ProSupport IDPA DP4400 Capacity Expansion Pack 12TB
Software Support-Maint

1

492-BBDI C13 to C14, PDU Style, 12 AMP, 6.5 Feet (2m) Power Cord, North
America

1

460-9052 Dell E Com will help you buildinternet ideas/infrastucture  see
www.dell.com/us/en/gen/   corporate/howeworks.htm

1

210-AWPV Granular Recovery 1

929-3709 Thank you for Your Order 1

935-6720 Thank you for Your Order 1

528-BFNZ EMC Granular Recovery Microsoft MID=CA 1

838-3764 3 Years ProSupport EMC Granular Recovery Microsoft Software
Support-Maintenance

1

900-9997 On-Site Installation Declined 1

Subtotal: $102,188.00

VM Backup & Recovery

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

BUILD (2) PowerVault ME5012 Storage Array + 36 Months ProSupport (4
Hour)

$39,428.00 1 $39,428.00

210-BBII Dell ME5012 Storage Array 1

403-BCPG 25Gb iSCSI 8 Port Dual Controller 1

770-BECR Rack Rails 2U 1

325-BDDO ME Series 2U Bezel 1

450-ALXL Power Supply, 580W, Redundant, WW 1

389-EERU Dell PowerVault ME Series 2U-12, CE Marking 1

340-DCFR Dell ME5012 Shipping 1

871-9053 Dell Hardware Limited Warranty 1

892-4158 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Onsite Service 3 Years 1

892-4380 ProSupport 4-Hour 7x24 Technical Support and Assistance 3 Years 1

989-3439 Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//www.dell.com/support or call 1-800- 945-3355

1

Page 11 of 16 317



VM Backup & Recovery

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

812-4019 ProDeploy Plus No Charge Training 800 1

871-8807 CoDeliver - ProDeploy Plus Dell EMC Storage ME 5xxx 2U 1

470-ACEV Dell Networking, Cable, SFP28 to SFP28, 25GbE, Passive Copper
Twinax Direct Attach Cable, 3 Meter

8

400-BMFC 8TB Hard Drive SAS ISE 12Gbps 7.2K 512e 3.5in Hot-Plug 12

492-BBDH Jumper Cord - C13/C14, 0.6M, 250V, 13A (North American, Guam,
North Marianas, Philippines, Samoa)

1

492-BBDH Jumper Cord - C13/C14, 0.6M, 250V, 13A (North American, Guam,
North Marianas, Philippines, Samoa)

1

450-AAME Powercord,125 Volt,15Amp,10 Foot, C13 to NEMA 5-15 1

450-AAME Powercord,125 Volt,15Amp,10 Foot, C13 to NEMA 5-15 1

210-AHHE BASE,SVC,PRODEPLOY,DELL 1

847-2755 Data Sanitization for Enterprise Onsite-PVault Cmplnt EQL 1

847-2723 Data Sanitization for Enterprise Onsite-Server 1

Subtotal: $39,428.00

O365 Protection

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

BUILD (180) Users APEX Backup Services for SaaS Premium – Office 365
Users + 36 Month Subscription

$18,608.004 1 $18,608.004

210-AZFU PowerProtect Backup Service For SaaS Apps 1

800-BBQV Informational Purposes Only 1

800-BBQV Informational Purposes Only 1

854-4950 3 Years ProSupport PowerProtect Backup Svc PREM SftwrSpt-Cntrct 1

900-9997 On-Site Installation Declined 1

929-3709 Thank you for Your Order 1

935-6720 Thank you for Your Order 1

626-BBBG Storage Software Info 1

141-BBBO PowerProtect Backup Service for SaaS Apps Premium Tier 1 3YR
SU=MC

180

Page 12 of 16 318



O365 Protection

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

854-5034 3 Years ProSupport PowerProtect Backup Svc PREM T1 SftwrSpt 180

Subtotal: $18,608.00

[re]DESIGN Services

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

[RE]DESIGN
Services

[RE]DESIGN White Glove Delivery and Migration Services $0.00 1 $0.00

[RE]DESIGN
Services

Additional Services for Complete Migration + Backup Setup (Offer
Expires 1.31.24)

$0.00 1 $0.00

Subtotal: $0.00

Contract Code

Description Qty

NCPA 01-143
Contract Code C000001105509 

Incentives

Description Qty

$88,112 Additional Discounts Applied to Quote for Dell Q4 FY24 (Expires Jan 31, 2024)

Page 13 of 16 319



Data Center Modernization

Prepared by: Quote Information:

The [RE]DESIGN Group Quote #: 004783

Sarah Reynolds
(424) 207-1600
sreynolds@redesign-group.com

Prepared for:

City of Newport, OR

169 Southwest Coast Highway 
Newport, OR  97365 
Travis Reeves
t.reeves@newportoregon.gov

Version: 1
Delivery Date: 12/18/2023
Expiration Date: 01/31/2024

Quote Summary

Description Amount

Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 1 $18,375.00

Production Cluster 1 $134,918.00

Top-of-Rack Switches for Prod 2 $18,375.00

Production Cluster 2 $134,918.00

Milestone Storage $102,188.00

VM Backup & Recovery $39,428.00

O365 Protection $18,608.00

[re]DESIGN Services $0.00

Total: $466,810.00

Acceptance and Incorporation by Reference

Acceptance of this Quote is binding and the above item(s) will be purchased in reliance thereon. All sales are final. Payment Terms are Net
30. After orders are placed, a final invoice will be provided that shall include all applicable taxes and shipping charges not included herein.

This Order together with the Master Services Agreement and Service Attachments and other terms and conditions identified on Exhibit A, all
of which are incorporated herein by reference (collectively, the “Agreement”) is between REDESIGN Group (sometimes referred to as “we,”
“us,” “our,” or “Provider”), and the customer found on the signature block at the end of this Order (sometimes referred to as “you,” “your,” or
“Client”). This A reement is effective as of the date both parties have signed below (the “Effective Date”). Both Provider and Client are
sometimes referred to individually as a “Party”, or together as the “Parties”. Any capitalized terms in this Order not directly defined are
referred to in the applicable document identified on Exhibit A of this Order. If there is a conflict between this Order, the Master Services
Agreement, any Service Attachment, or Exhibit, this Order will control.

By signing or accepting this Order, Client acknowledges, represents, and warrants that it has read and agrees to the terms and conditions
identified on Exhibit A to this Order which are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

The parties hereby agree that electronic signatures to this Order shall be relied upon and will bind them to the obligations stated herein. Each
party hereby warrants and represents that it has the express authority to execute this Agreement(s). This Order supersedes all prior
negotiations, proposals, orders, agreements and communications between the parties regarding Provider’s Services.

Provider may make changes to the Agreement at any time. If there are changes, Provider will revise the date at the top of the document.
Provider may or may not provide Client with additional notice regarding such changes. Client should review the terms and conditions
regularly. Unless otherwise noted, the amended terms and conditions will be effective immediately, and your continued use of the Services
thereafter constitute your acceptance of the changes. If you do not agree to the amended terms and conditions, you must stop using the
Services immediately. Please note, you may incur a termination fee or other third-party fees, if applicable. You may access the current version
of the terms and conditions at any time by visiting http://redesign-group.com/legal.

Page 14 of 16 320



The parties, acting through their authorized officers, hereby execute this Agreement.

The [RE]DESIGN Group City of Newport, OR

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Page 15 of 16 321



Exhibit A

Agreement Description

Master Services Agreement General terms and conditions applicable to all Provider products and services

Services Attachment for Managed Services Core managed services including monitoring, remote management, and help-desk

Data Processing Agreement Data security and privacy agreement including statutorily required terms

Service Level Objectives Targeted response times by tier of severity

Schedule of Services Description of managed services offered by Provider

Schedule of 3rd Party Services Notice of third-party services and waiver of claims

Page 16 of 16 322

https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-MSA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-MSA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-MSA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-MSA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-MSA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-MSA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Managed-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-DPA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-DPA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-DPA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-DPA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-DPA-Final.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-SLO.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-SLO.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-SLO.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-SLO.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-SLO.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Schedule-of-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Schedule-of-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Schedule-of-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Schedule-of-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-Schedule-of-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf
https://scottandscottllp.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/ReDesign-3rd-Party-Services.pdf


redesign-group.com

The [RE]DESIGN Group

2629 Manhattan Ave, Suite 307

Hermosa Beach, CA 90254

The Future Belongs 
to the Curious

323


	City Council Special Meeting Agenda
	2018-8767 - Video Links for Minutes to be approved 1-29-2024.pdf
	2018-8768 - December_21__2023_Special_City_Council_Meeting_Minutes_Final.pdf
	2018-8768 - 01-02-2024_City_Council_Minutes-final.pdf
	2018-8768 - 01-02-2024_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf
	2018-8768 - 01-08-2024_City_Council_Work_Session_Minutes-_Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - 60 Plus Minutes 10-23-23.pdf
	2018-8769 - 60 Plus Minutes-11-20-23.pdf
	2018-8769 - 9-12-2023_BPAC_Minutes__Approved_12.19.23_.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_March_15_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_April_12_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_July_12_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_May_10_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_August_9_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_September_13_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_November_8_2022_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_January_10_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_May_23_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_June_13_2023_minutes-FInal.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_March_14_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_July_11_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_August_8_2023_minutes-Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_September_12_2023_minutes.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_November_14_2023_minutes-_Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - AC_December_12_2023_minutes_Final.pdf
	2018-8769 - PC_Reg_Session_12-11-23_Approved_01-08-24.pdf
	2018-8769 - PC_Work_Session_12-11-23_Approved_01-08-2024.pdf
	2018-8770 - Staff_Report_-_Committee_Appointment-_Airport.pdf
	2018-8771 - Staff_Report_-_Committee_Appointment-_Audit.pdf
	2018-8772 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8772 - Council_Staff_Report_Fireworks_ban_Public_Hearing_ordinance_1-16-24.pdf
	2018-8772 - Fireworks_-_Sales___Use_-_by_Jurisdiction__12.22.23_.pdf
	2018-8772 - Lincoln County Ordinance 532 Fireworks amendments 1_3_24.pdf
	2018-8772 - Ord._No._2218_-_Fireworks_-_amending_NMC_8.20.020_-_final_draft_-track_changes.pdf
	2018-8772 - Ord._No._2218_-_Fireworks_-_amending_NMC_8.20.020_-_final_draft_-clean_copy.pdf
	2018-8772 - Trout_Public_Comment.pdf
	2018-8772 - K Kelly Fireworks Comment .pdf
	2018-8772 - Walser-Clark Comment Fireworks.pdf
	2018-8772 - Wilson Fireworks Comment.png
	2018-8773 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8773 - NMC_ch._4.15_modified_1-11-24_-_track_changes.pdf
	2018-8774 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8774 - Staff_Report1.pdf
	2018-8774 - Resolution No. 4007 - In Lieu Fees_updated.pdf
	2018-8774 - Ord_2215_Signed.pdf
	2018-8774 - Special_Parking_Area_Map.pdf
	2018-8776 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8776 - Staff Report for Resolution 4004 City Supplemental Budget - January 29, 2024.pdf
	2018-8776 - Resolution No. 4004 City Supplemental Budget January 29, 2024.pdf
	2018-8776 - Resolution No. 4004 - Attachment A.pdf
	2018-8775 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8775 - Res 4009 Final.pdf
	2018-8775 - Newport_CM_Position_and_Hiring_Cover_Page_vF.pdf
	2018-8777 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8777 - CWACT Member Nomination Fillable Form.pdf
	2018-8777 - CWACT email.pdf
	2018-8778 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8778 - Staff_Report_Michael___Karyn_Vest_D3_lease.pdf
	2018-8778 - Agreement_XXXX_Vest_D3.pdf
	2018-8778 - South_Hangar_Site_2020.pdf
	2018-8778 - agreement_3415_5D_Holdings_LLC_D3.pdf
	2018-8779 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8780 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8780 - Staff Report.pdf
	2018-8780 - SRTS23-12_City_of_Newport_Amd_1.pdf
	2018-8780 - Newport_Request_for_Change_Order_No._1.pdf
	2018-8780 - SRTS23-12_City_of_Newport_fully_executed.pdf
	2018-8780 - Hwy_20_and_Harney_Base_Map__7-28-2022_.pdf
	2018-8781 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8781 - Res 4008.pdf
	2018-8781 - Resolution_3949_Signed_EG_5252022_Final.pdf
	2018-8782 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8782 - Staff_Report_Accounting_Technician_-_Receivables_2024.pdf
	2018-8782 - Accounting_Technician_Receivables_Final_2023.pdf
	2018-8783 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8783 - Resolution.pdf
	2018-8783 - Email_from_Allen_Justia_Government_Speech_Link.pdf
	2018-8786 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8784 - City Manager's Report.pdf
	2018-8784 - WTP XR Upgrades - Staff Report for Construction.pdf
	2018-8785 - City Manager's Report 
	2018-8785 - SAN 2024 Report.pdf
	2018-8785 - City of Newport x [re]DESIGN x Dell - Data Center Modernization 12.15.23.pdf
	2018-8785 - City of Newport - Data Center Modernization - 12.18.23 (3).pdf

	on the Cascades West Area Commission on: 
	meeting of the City CouncilCommissionTribal Council: 
	on date: 
	Signed: 
	Date: 
	Time: 
	Name  Title: 
	Mailing Address: 
	City: 
	State: 
	Zip: 
	Phone: 
	FAX: 
	Email: 
	Name  Title_2: 
	Mailing Address_2: 
	City_2: 
	State_2: 
	Zip_2: 
	Phone_2: 
	FAX_2: 
	Email_2: 
	Name  Title_3: 
	Mailing Address_3: 
	City_3: 
	State_3: 
	Zip_3: 
	Phone_3: 
	FAX_3: 
	Email_3: 


